
 

 
 
 
The Council, members of the public and the press may record/film/photograph or 
broadcast this meeting when the public and the press are not lawfully excluded. Any 
member of the public who attends a meeting and wishes to be filmed should advise 
the Committee Clerk. 
 

 
A G E N D A 

 

1. Apologies for absence/substitutions 
 
2. To receive any declarations of pecuniary or non-pecuniary interest by 
Members 
 
3. Declarations of lobbying 
 
4. Declarations of personal site visits 
 
5. Confirmation of the minutes of the meeting held on 30 March 2016 
 

 Report NA/10/16  Pages A to R 
 
6. To receive notification of petitions in accordance with the Council’s Petition 

Procedure 
 
7. Questions from Members 
 
 The Chairman to answer any questions on any matters in relation to which the 

Council has powers or duties which affect the District and which fall within the 
terms of reference of the Committee of which due notice has been given in 
accordance with Council Procedure Rules 

 

 

DEVELOPMENT CONTROL 
COMMITTEE A 

 

Please ask for:  Val Last 

Direct Line: 01449  724673 

Fax Number: 01449  724696 

E-mail: val.last@baberghmidsuffolk.gov.uk 
 

DATE 
 
PLACE 
 
 

 
 

TIME 
 

 

Wednesday 25 May 2016 
 
Council Chamber, Council 
Offices, High Street, Needham 
Market 
 
9.30am 
 

 
 

 
 
 

13 May 2016 

Public Document Pack



 
8. Schedule of planning applications  
 

Report NA/11/16  Pages 1 to 169 
 

 
 

9. Site Inspections 
 

 

Note: Should a site inspection be required for any of the applications this will 
be held on Wednesday 1 June 2016 (exact time to be given).  The 
Committee will reconvene after the site inspection at 12:00 noon in the 
Council Chamber.  
 
Would Members please retain the relevant papers for use at that 
meeting 

 
10. Urgent business – such other business which, by reason of special 

circumstances to be specified, the Chairman agrees should be considered as 
a matter of urgency. 

 
(Note:  Any matter to be raised under this item must be notified, in 
writing, to the Chief Executive or District Monitoring Officer before the 
commencement of the meeting, who will then take instructions from the 
Chairman) 
 

Notes:    
 

1. The Council has adopted a Charter for Public Speaking at Planning 
Committees.  A link to the full charter is provided below.  

 

http://www.midsuffolk.gov.uk/assets/UploadsMSDC/Organisation/Democratic-
Services/Constitution/Revised-2015/Pages-22-25-Charter-on-Public-Speaking-
Planning-Committee-Extract-for-web.pdf 

 
Those persons wishing to speak on a particular application should arrive in 
the Council Chamber early and make themselves known to the Officers.  They 
will then be invited by the Chairman to speak when the relevant item is under 
consideration. This will be done in the following order:   

 Parish Clerk or Parish Councillor representing the Council in which the 
application site is located  

 Objectors  

 Supporters  

 The applicant or professional agent / representative  
 

Public speakers in each capacity will normally be allowed 3 minutes to speak. 
 

2. Ward Members attending meetings of Development Control Committees and 
Planning Referral Committee may take the opportunity to exercise their 
speaking rights but are not entitled to vote on any matter which relates to 
his/her ward. 

Note:  The Chairman may change the listed order of items to accommodate 
visiting Ward Members and members of the public  

http://www.midsuffolk.gov.uk/assets/UploadsMSDC/Organisation/Democratic-Services/Constitution/Revised-2015/Pages-22-25-Charter-on-Public-Speaking-Planning-Committee-Extract-for-web.pdf
http://www.midsuffolk.gov.uk/assets/UploadsMSDC/Organisation/Democratic-Services/Constitution/Revised-2015/Pages-22-25-Charter-on-Public-Speaking-Planning-Committee-Extract-for-web.pdf
http://www.midsuffolk.gov.uk/assets/UploadsMSDC/Organisation/Democratic-Services/Constitution/Revised-2015/Pages-22-25-Charter-on-Public-Speaking-Planning-Committee-Extract-for-web.pdf


 
 
 

 
Val Last 
Governance Support Officer 



 

 
 
 

Members: 
 
Councillor Matthew Hicks – Chairman – Conservative and Independent Group 
Councillor Lesley Mayes – Vice Chairman – Conservative and Independent Group 
 

Conservative and Independent Group 
    

Councillors: Gerard Brewster 
David Burn 
Lavinia Hadingham 
Diana Kearsley 
David Whybrow 

  

    

Liberal Democrat Group 

 
Councillor: 

 
John Field 
 

  

Suffolk Together, Green and Independent Group 

 
Councillor: 

 
Sarah Mansel 

  

    
Substitutes 

 
Members can select a substitute from any Member of the Council providing they have 
undertaken the annual planning training. 
 
Ward Members 
 
Ward Members have the right to speak but not to vote on issues within their Wards. 
 



 
Mid Suffolk District Council 

 
Vision 
 
 “We will work to ensure that the economy, environment and communities of 
Mid Suffolk continue to thrive and achieve their full potential.” 
 
 

Strategic Priorities 2016 – 2020 
 
1. Economy and Environment 

 
Lead and shape the local economy by promoting and helping to deliver 
sustainable economic growth which is balanced with respect for wildlife, 
heritage and the natural and built environment 

 

2. Housing  
  
Ensure that there are enough good quality, environmentally efficient and cost 
effective homes with the appropriate tenures and in the right locations 
 
3. Strong and Healthy Communities 
 
Encourage and support individuals and communities to be self-sufficient, 
strong, healthy and safe 
 

Strategic Outcomes 
 
Housing Delivery – More of the right type of homes, of the right tenure in the right 
place 
 
Business growth and increased productivity – Encourage development of 
employment sites and other business growth, of the right type, in the right place and 
encourage investment in infrastructure, skills and innovation in order to increase 
productivity 
 
Community capacity building and engagement – All communities are thriving, 
growing, healthy, active and self-sufficient 
 
An enabled and efficient organisation – The right people, doing the right things, in 
the right way, at the right time, for the right reasons 
 
Assets and investment – Improved achievement of strategic priorities and greater 
income generation through use of new and existing assets (‘Profit for Purpose’) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Suffolk Local Code 

of Conduct 

 

1. Pecuniary Interests 
 

2. Non-Pecuniary Interests 

Does the item of Council 
business relate to or affect 

any of your  
non-pecuniary interests ? 

 

Does the item of Council 
business relate to or affect 
any of your/your spouse 

/partner’s pecuniary 
interests? 

 

No 

Participate fully and vote 

Breach = non-compliance 
with Code  

 

No interests to 
declare 

 

Breach = criminal offence 

Declare you have a 
pecuniary interest 

Yes 

Leave the room. Do not 
participate or vote (Unless 
you have a dispensation) 

 

No 

Yes 

Declare you have a non-
pecuniary interest 

 

 



 NA/10/16 

A 

 
MID SUFFOLK DISTRICT COUNCIL 

 
Minutes of the DEVELOPMENT CONTROL COMMITTEE ‘A’ held at the Council Offices, 
Needham Market on Wednesday 30 March 2016 at 9:30am. 
 
PRESENT: Councillor: Matthew Hicks (Chairman) 
  Gerard Brewster 
  David Burn 
  John Field 
  Lavinia Hadingham 
  Derrick Haley * 
  John Levantis 
  John Matthissen * 
  Lesley Mayes 
  David Whybrow 
   
Denotes substitute *   
   
Ward Members: Councillor:   Suzie Morley 

Derek Osborne 
   
In Attendance: Senior Development Management Planning Officer (JPG) 

Senior Planning Officer (GW/IW) 
Development Management Planning Officer (SLB/RB/LE/SB) 
Enabling Officer – Heritage (WW) 
Senior Legal Executive (KB) 
Senior Development Management Engineer (Central Area) –   
                                                                    Suffolk County Council  
Governance Support Officers (VL/KD) 

 
NA50 APOLOGIES/SUBSTITUTIONS 
  
 Councillors Derrick Haley and John Matthissen were substituting for Councillors 

Diana Kearsley and Sarah Mansel respectively.  
  
NA51 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 

Councillor John Field declared a non-pecuniary interest in Application 0072/16 as 
he knew the applicant. 
 
Councillor Lavinia Hadingham declared a non-pecuniary interest in Application 
2285/15 as her son belonged to the First Fressingfield Scout Group and she knew 
the applicant. 
 
Councillor Gerard Brewster declared a non-pecuniary interest in Application 
2285/15 as he was the Chairman of the Stowmarket District Scouts. 
 
Councillor John Field declared a non-pecuniary interest in Application 2285/15 as 
he knew the First Fressingfield Scout Group Scoutmaster. 
 

Page 1

Agenda Item 5



 

 
B 

Councillor Gerard Brewster declared a non-pecuniary interest in Application 
4188/15 as in his role as Economy and Stowmarket Regeneration Portfolio Holder 
he had previously met with the applicant. 
 
Councillor Matthew Hicks declared a non-pecuniary interest in Application 4188/15 
as the Suffolk County Councillor for the Thredling Division. 

 
NA52  DECLARATIONS OF LOBBYING 
 
 It was noted that Members had been lobbied on Applications 2285/15, 4188/15 

and 0610/15. 
 
NA53  DECLARATIONS OF PERSONAL SITE VISITS 
 
 None received. 
 
NA54 MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD 3 FEBRUARY 2016 
 
 Report NA/08/16 
 

The minutes of the meeting held 2 March 2016 were confirmed as a correct 
record.  

 
NA55 PETITIONS 
 

None received. 
 
NA56 QUESTIONS FROM MEMBERS 
 

None received. 
 
NA57 SCHEDULE OF PLANNING APPLICATIONS 
 
  Report NA/09/16 
 
 In accordance with the Council’s procedure for public speaking on planning 

applications representations were made as detailed below: 
 

Planning Application Number Representations from 
  
0072/16 Kate Wood (Agent) 

Julian Cunningham (Applicant) 
0150/16 Kate Wood (Agent) 

Julian Cunningham (Applicant) 
2285/15 Philip Eastgate (Objector) 

Dawn Carmen-Jones (Supporter) 
Robert Williams (Applicant) 
Mark Allen (Agent) 

3622/15 John Blakeway (Objector) 
4188/15 Nick Hardingham (Parish Council) 

Trevor Stiff (Applicant) 
3701/15 Marion Ravenhill (Parish Council) 

Roger Gilles (Agent) 

Page 2



 

 
C 

0610/15 Peter Dow (Parish Council) 
Jennifer Tooke-Merchant (Objector) 
John Moore (Applicant) 

2982/15 Alan Cowell (Applicant) 
 

Item 1 
Application Number: 0072/16 
Proposal: Change of use and conversion of former dairy and 

adjoining workshop into 2 no one bedroom dwellings 
Site Location: ELMSWELL – Dagwood Farm, Ashfield Road IP30 9HJ 
Applicant:   Mr J Cunningham 
 
In response to Members’ questions the Officer clarified the area of shared parking 
and proposed garden size for the dwellings. 
 
Kate Wood, the agent advised that the dairy and workshop were no longer 
required for any agricultural purpose and the intention of the proposal was to bring 
them back into use.  The other agricultural buildings connected to the farm had 
already been converted and the proposed changes to the building were not 
significant.  Current Government policy supported the principle of conversion.  
Although a previous application for listed building consent had been refused, 
policy had changed since that time.  Paragraph 14 of the NPPF stated that 
permission should be granted unless the impacts significantly and demonstrably 
outweighed the benefits and in this case they did not.  She advised that the 
change of use was to prevent the building falling into disrepair.     
 
In response to Members’ questions Julian Cunningham, the applicant, advised that 
conversion to holiday lets had been considered but this was not felt suitable for the 
area.  He confirmed that the building was no longer required for agricultural 
purposes. 
 
Councillor John Levantis, Ward Member said it was a finely balanced application.  
There had been some concern regarding the impact of the conversion on the listed 
building, the density of dwellings within the site and the hazardous pedestrian 
access to the village.  However, the proposal would provide two small, energy 
efficient dwellings which were much needed.  On balance, he supported the 
application. 
 
Councillor Sarah Mansel, Ward Member, commenting by email said she supported 
this application and that for listed building consent.  She advised that Elmswell 
was working on a Neighbourhood plan and information gathered showed that 
there was a need for smaller properties.  Elmswell was a large key service centre 
with numerous facilities, and although the site was outside the Settlement 
Boundary the lack of a five year land supply meant that development was 
supported in sustainable locations.  There was a pavement in close vicinity which 
led to the village centre and facilities could be accessed on foot.  The use of the 
building for dwelling purposes would not constitute any further harm to the listed 
building over and above the development already underway on the site.  The work 
already carried out had improved the appearance of both the barn and the dairy 
building, and it could be argued that it had enhanced the setting of the listed 
building.  She had a slight concern regarding the increase in density of housing 
within the site but felt this was a minor issue outweighed by the benefits.   
 

Page 3



 

 
D 

It was generally felt that although the Planning and Heritage Officers had given 
some sound reasons for refusal the earlier development on site had changed the 
situation.  It was a sustainable location and the already approved solar panels 
were felt to have a greater impact on the setting of the listed building than the 
proposed conversion.  There was support from both Ward Members and the 
Parish Council.   
 
It was considered that the application accorded with planning policy FC1 and 
paragraph 55 of the NPPF and a motion to approve the application subject to 
appropriate conditions was moved and seconded. 

 
By 5 votes to 3 with 1 abstention 
 
Decision – Grant Planning Permission subject to the following conditions: 
 

• Time limit for commencement 
• Approved plans 
• Details of boundary treatment and timetable for being carried 

out/maintained 
• No external lighting 
• Wildlife survey and mitigation 
• Details of windows to be agreed 
• Surface and foul water drainage to be agreed 
• Highways condition on parking 
• Details of bin storage 

   
Item 2 

Application Number: 0150/16 
Proposal: Works associated with the change of use and 

conversion of former dairy building to two dwellings  
Site Location: ELMSWELL – Dagwood Farm, Ashfield Road IP30 9HJ 
Applicant:   Mr J Cunningham 
 
Kate Wood, the agent, said that the only issue was the impact of the gable 
windows, roof lights and changes to the internal structure.  All the other buildings 
on the site had already been converted and she did not feel this proposal caused 
any harm to the setting of the listed building which was some distance away.  The 
conversion would provide two needed one bedroom homes and had the support of 
both Ward Members.  She advised that the applicant would be happy for 
conditions regarding landscaping, hard surfacing and removal of permitted 
development rights to be included with an approval.    
 
The Ward Member comments for Application 0072/16 were reiterated. 
 
By 6 votes to 3 
 
By a unanimous vote 
 
Decision – That Listed Building Consent be approved subject to the following 
conditions: 
 
• Time limit for commencement of works 

Page 4



 

 
E 

• Approved plans 
• Details of insulation and internal works to be agreed 
 

Item 3  
Application Number: 2285/15 
Proposal: Full Planning permission – Erection of new Scout 

Headquarters with associated facilities and new access 
road.  Outline Planning Permission – Erection of 30 new 
dwellings with all matters reserved (except the new road 
access to serve the properties) 

Site Location: FRESSINGFIELD – Land and buildings at red house 
Farm, Priory Road IP21 5PH 

Applicant:   Mr and Mrs Barrett and The First Fressingfield Scout 
Group 

 
It was noted that the recommendation should be amended to read ‘for reason(s) in 
resolution 1 and 2’ not ‘for reason(s) in resolution A’. 
 
Phil Eastgate, an objector, said there was strong local opinion against the proposal 
because of traffic concerns and the destruction of a natural habitat.  It was not 
possible to guarantee the required visibility splays and as much traffic exceeded 
the speed limit this would result in an increased danger.  The additional traffic from 
the Scout Hut, which he did not feel was a replacement for the existing one, but an 
activity centre which would hold evening and camping activities more appropriate 
elsewhere, would also adversely impact on residents.  The bungalows in Priory 
Crescent would be overlooked by the new development and the infrastructure 
needed to be increased to cope with the additional residents.  
 
Dawn Carmen-Jones, a supporter, said that ‘scouts’ referred to the Scout 
Association and members’ ages ranged from 5 to 15 years of age.  The 
Fressingfield Group had grown over the last five years and there was much 
concern over the existing hall which had no running water and very poor facilities.  
The area used by parents to drop off children was also very dangerous.  Other 
halls had been approached but none could provide what was required and no 
other landowner had offered a suitable site.  The proposed development 
represented in fill and provided a safe pedestrian/cyclist access.  The applicant 
had worked with agencies to ensure the proposed housing was suitable for 
requirement and no harm would be caused by the proposal. 
 
Robert Williams, the applicant and Mark Allen, the agent shared the speaking 
time.  Robert Williams advised that he had first met with a Planning Officer in July 
2014 and been briefed on the required surveys, including Highways.  He had met 
with Peter Black, the Highways Officer at that time who had given acceptance in 
principle to the proposal, including the entrance from New Street.  The first 
objection from Highways was received in September 2015 citing reasons for 
refusal as the lack of a footway and inadequate visibility splays.  An alternative 
professional opinion was commissioned and this found that the access point on 
New Street provided visibility splays within the tolerances and the new footway 
and illuminated bollards provided a safe route for pedestrians.  The development 
on the adjoining site had not been required to provide footways.  He said that 
Highways had withdrawn from an arranged site meeting and he was not aware 
that the current officer had visited the site.      

Page 5



 

 
F 

 
Mark Allen, advised that he was a Chartered Planner in Highways and felt the 
objections put forward were unfounded.  He believed the proposed visibility splay 
was within guidelines for sites within the Settlement Boundary* on a road with 
speeds well below 40mph.  He believed the SCC Highways Officer was measuring 
the visibility splay within standards usual for trunk roads and was therefore over 
provisioning what was required.  He felt that the information used was out of date 
and misleading.  (* Note:  It was confirmed that the site was outside the Settlement 
Boundary)    
 
Andrew Pearce, Senior Development Management Engineer (Central Area),                                                                     
Suffolk County Council advised that he was unaware of any comments made by 
the previous officer dealing with the application.  He confirmed that he had visited 
the site and that in view of the results of the speed survey, which showed that 
traffic regularly travelled at speeds above the 30mph limit, that the correct 
guidance had been used in coming to the decision to recommend refusal. 
 
Councillor Lavinia Hadingham, Ward Member, said that the new Scout Hall was 
needed as the existing had no running water, toilets, was cold in winter and poorly 
lit outside.  She was not overly concerned regarding the lack of a footpath in New 
Street as many people used the footpath across the field and only walked a short 
distance along New Street.  There were other facilities in the village, eg the 
Methodist Church and shop, where there was no pavement along New Street to 
access them.  The applicant had done everything possible to comply with 
guidance and it was frustrating that the change of Highways Officer had resulted in 
a change to the guidance given.  Fressingfield was a primary village and the 
proposed development would provide much needed affordable units and a 
recreational area. 
 
Member opinion was divided.   
 
Some Members considered the application was satisfactory as the housing was 
needed in the village to support sustainability and provided a pedestrian route to 
the school and although there was no footpath to the shop most people would 
drive anyway.  The road was like many others in Suffolk which did not have a 
pavement or lighting and some provision had been made for a footpath.  
Permission had already been given for houses either side of the site with no 
requirement for a footpath to be provided.  The visibility splay was across mown 
grass and the original Highways advice had been that it was acceptable. 
 
Others, while having sympathy for the applicant and accepting the need for both 
the new Scout Headquarters and the housing considered that the professional 
opinion of the Highways Officer could not be ignored.  He had visited the site and 
confirmed his opinion was that a safe access and pedestrian link could not be 
provided in the proposed location. 
 
A motion to refuse the application as per the recommendation was drawn by four 
votes for, four against and one abstention.    

 
By the Chairman’s casting vote 
 
Decision – That Full and Outline Planning permission be refused for the following 
reasons: 

Page 6



 

 
G 

 
1. The development does not provide adequate pedestrian links to the 

services and facilities in Fressingfield.  The development would lead to an 
increase in pedestrian activity within the road resulting in greater conflict 
between pedestrians and traffic.  The proposal does not provide suitable 
and safe pedestrian links to services and facilities.  The development does 
not provide or promote viable infrastructure necessary for the development, 
or prioritise pedestrian access and as such does not contribute to the 
achievement of sustainable development.  The proposal is deemed contrary 
to policy T10 of the Mid Suffolk Local Plan 1998, policies FC1 and FC1.1 of 
the Core Strategy Focused Review 2012 and paragraphs 6, 31, 32, 34, 35 
and 72 of the NPPF 

 
2. Part of the visibility splay required for the new road entrance and exit are 

not within the Highway Authority’s or applicant’s ownership or control.  Their 
provision and future retention cannot be secured and on that basis the 
development cannot deliver safe and secure access as required by Policy 
T10 of the Mid Suffolk Local Plan and paragraph 32 of the NPPF 

 
At such time Committee determine the application without a Planning 
Obligation being secured the Professional Lead – Growth and Sustainable 
Planning be authorised to refuse full planning permission for reasons in 
resolution above and including the following reason for refusal: 
 
Inadequate provision of open space and/or infrastructure contrary to policy CS6 or 
the Core Strategy 2008 without the requisite S106 obligation or CIL being in place 

 
Item 4 

Application Number: 3622/15 
Proposal: Proposed residential development consisting of 3 no 

four bedroom detached houses with detached garages 
and proposed access 

Site Location: WALSHAM-LE-WILLOWS – Land to rear of 1 and 2 
Upper Meadow IP31 3AY 

Applicant:   Mr Farrow 
 

  It was noted that the date in Recommendation 2 should be amended to read 10 8 
April 2016, and that the site area on page 138, paragraph 3, should read 0.29ha. 

 
  John Blakeway, an objector, said that the views he was expressing were 
supported by all neighbours in Upper Meadow.  He said the site was outside the 
Settlement Boundary, and although the NPPF had overruled previous guidance, 
questioned whether some weight should still be given to this.  He said the NPPF 
stated that any adverse impacts should not outweigh the advantages of 
development and this proposal would severely impact on the residential amenity of 
neighbouring properties.  He questioned the adequacy and safety of the proposed 
access and noted that the driveway was owned by himself and the owners of 2 
Upper Meadow and when purchasing their properties no mention had been made 
of access being to multiple owners.   As the owners of the driveway there was no 
intention of making any alterations so the access could not be amended.  The 
proposals would double the use of the driveway which was single lane with bushes 
to each side.  There was no footway along the driveway limiting access to village 
facilities.   

Page 7



 

 
H 

 
Councillor Derek Osborne, Ward Member, said that he had visited the site and 
considered that the access was onto a large road and should not pose a problem 
for anyone entering or exiting the site. 

 
Councillor Jessica Fleming, Ward Member, commenting by email advised that she 
had visited the site and wished to make the following comments: 

• The proposal was for 4 bed detached homes with detached garages when 
local need was for more modest and affordable dwellings 

• The access had poor visibility 
• The rural nature of the site access both onto the road and from the site itself 

posed challenges for construction traffic and to enable sufficient width for 
two vehicles 

• Manging construction would be important if approved due to close proximity 
of homes 

• There was a likelihood of buried resources of high archaeological interest 
• The effect on the Conservation Area did not appear to have been 

considered     
  She said she could not support the application. 
 
In response to a Member’s question Andrew Pearce, Senior Development 
Management Engineer (Central Area), Suffolk County Council advised that he had 
not visited the site but on looking at the plans he had no concerns regarding the 
access.  He believed that sufficient land was in Highway ownership and the 
hedges could be cut back sufficiently to meet the visibility splay requirements. 
 
Members generally found the application acceptable.  It was felt the site was 
contiguous with the Settlement Boundary and the proposed development was 
consistent with the existing and did not cause any significant harm to residential 
amenity.  A motion for approval was proposed and seconded.     
 

  By 9 votes to 1 
 

  Decision – That Full Planning Permission be granted subject to: 
 
(1) The Professional Lead – Growth and Sustainable Planning being 
authorised to secure a planning obligation under Section 106 of the Town 
and Country Planning Act 1990 to provide: 

 
• Financial contribution of £54,933 towards off site affordable housing 

 
  and the following conditions 
 

1. Time limit 
2. Development in accordance with approved plans 
3. Details of facing and roofing materials to be agreed 
4. Access to be improved in accordance with requirements of the Highway 

Authority 
5. Visibility splays to be provided in accordance with requirements of the 

Highway Authority 
6. Parking and manoeuvring area to be provided 
7. Archaeological investigation to be undertaken and findings discharged 

Page 8



 

 
I 

8. Construction management plan to be agreed and implemented 
9. Recommendations of the arboricultural report to be implemented 

 
(2) In the event the applicant fails to provide an executed Section 106 
planning obligation to the satisfaction of the Professional Lead – Growth 
and Sustainable Planning by 10 April 2016 that the Professional Lead be 
delegated authority to proceed to determine the application and secure 
appropriate developer contributions by a combination of Section 106 
planning obligation and the Council’s CIL charging schedule subject to the 
following conditions: 

 
1. Time limit 
2. Development in accordance with approved plans 
3. Details of facing and roofing materials to be agreed 
4. Access to be improved in accordance with requirements of the Highway 

Authority 
5. Visibility splays to be provided in accordance with requirements of the 

Highway Authority 
6. Parking and manoeuvring area to be provided 
7. Archaeological investigation to be undertaken and findings discharged 
8. Construction management plan to be agreed and implemented 
9. Recommendations of the arboricultural report to be implemented 

 
Item 5 

Application Number: 4188/15 
Proposal: Hybrid application comprising:  (a)  Outline application 

for 52 dwellings including access and associated works 
(matters to be reserved layout, scale, appearance and 
landscaping)  (b)  Full planning application for a 
proposed new training facility, workshop and parking 
area 

Site Location: CREETING ST MARY – J Breheny Contractors Ltd, 
Flordon Road IP6 8NH 

Applicant:   Mr T Stiff 
 
It was noted that the date in Recommendation 3 should be amended to read 8 
April 2016 and that an additional condition was to be included in Recommendation 
3:  ‘To secure the provision of and adoption of public footpath’. 
 
Nick Hardingham, speaking for the Parish Council advised the Committee that a 
public meeting held to discuss the application had been very well attended with 
much concern being expressed regarding the scale of the development and its 
impact on the village.  The development was not sustainable as there were 
inadequate facilities locally to cope with the increase in residents; the local school 
and that in Needham Market were full as was the doctor’s surgery.  Flordon Road 
was narrow, as was the footpath which was also on a blind bend and there would 
be safety issues for both vehicles and pedestrians.  The proposal was for urban 
style development on an isolated site with poor connectivity and was not 
appropriate for the location.  There was also inadequate parking provided.   There 
had not been any community engagement in any pre-application discussions.  
 
Trevor Stiff, the applicant, began by giving the Committee a brief history of the site 
and company.  He advised that due to the recession the company expanded its 

Page 9



 

 
J 

boundaries and as such, the site was no longer logistically sensible.  During the 
recession the company had not been able to take on youngsters for training but it 
was now able to do so but current laws did not allow under 18 year olds to be 
trained on the job.  The company had therefore decided to build a facility to enable 
young people to be brought into the business and provided with the training to give 
them the necessary skills and allow the company to provide further employment 
for local people. 
 
Councillor Suzi Morley, Ward Member, stated that although this was a large 
application for the village of 52 dwellings, it did include 18 affordable houses and 
open space provision, which would contribute to the wider housing needs of the 
District. The developers had made themselves available at a public meeting and 
site visit.  She advised that she felt that all objections regarding Highways and 
pedestrian safety had been addressed and concerns had been satisfied.  She 
concluded by stating that she concurred with the Officers recommendation. 

 
Members commended the applicant on building a centre that would be used to 
train young people in the area, and during the debate that followed they 
considered matters including: 
 
• HGV movements on Flordon Road 
• The proposed footpath 
• Noise impact 
• Use of the training facility by other organisations. 

 
Having considered all the representations Members generally felt that the proposal 
was sustainable, with the footpath link, and would not have a detrimental effect on 
the characteristics of the village.  Large lorry movements were reduced as 
equipment was now kept at a site in the West Midlands and the noise issue was 
resolved by the bund topped with acoustic fencing.  Members requested that the 
condition for the training centre to be used only by Breheny Contractors was 
changed so that other local organisations could also use the facility. 
 

By 6 votes to 2 with 2 abstentions 
 
Decision – Subject to no new material planning considerations being raised: 
 
(1) That the Professional Lead – Growth and Sustainable Planning be 

authorised to secure a planning obligation under Section 106 of the Town 
and Country Planning Act 1990 to provide: 

 
• On site affordable housing (35%) 
• Provision of public open space and play equipment and management 
• Contributions to education, libraries, public rights of way, health and waste 

 
(2) That, subject to the completion of the Planning Obligation in Resolution 

(1) above to the satisfaction of the Professional Lead – Growth and 
Sustainable Planning be authorised to grant outline planning permission 
and full planning permission: 

 
Full Planning Permission 
 

Page 10



 

 
K 

• Time limit  
• Approved plans 
• Details of materials 
• Training centre use  
• Parking and turning area to be provided before first use of either the training 

or workshop buildings 
• Details of hard and soft landscaping and implementation 
• Details of preventing surface water discharging on to the highway 
• Hours of operation 07:30 to 18:00 (Monday to Friday); 08:00 to 18:00 

(Saturdays); and no working on Sundays or Bank Holidays 
• Details of external lighting 
• Tree protection measures 
• Provision and adoption of public footpath 

 
Outline Planning Permission 
 
o Standard time limit 
o Reserved matters 
o Approved plans 
o Phasing of development to be agreed in writing by the LPA 
o Concurrent with the submission of reserved matters – surface water 

management   strategy 
o Concurrent with the submission of reserved matters – an Arboricultural 

Impact Assessment 
o Details of materials to be agreed by the LPA 
o Concurrent with the submission of reserved matters application details of the 

new footway and kerbing shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the 
LPA.  The approved details to be laid out, constructed and functional 
available for use prior to occupation of the first dwelling 

o Concurrent with the submission of reserved matters – details of the estate 
road, any other roads and parking and turning areas 

o Details showing means to prevent discharge surface water from the 
development on to the highway 

o Details of fire hydrants to be installed within the development 
o Details of hedgehog friendly fencing 
o Timings of work – wildlife mitigation 
o Details of lighting scheme (wildlife mitigation) 
o Mitigation measures identified in Mill House Ecology Report to be 

implemented in full 
o A strategy for investigating land contamination, details of any remedial works 

required and those required to be implemented in full 
o Details of surface water drainage 
o Details of a foul water strategy 
o Removal of permitted development rights (extensions and outbuildings) 
o Concurrent with the submission of reserved matters – details of the 

attenuation bund and acoustic barrier 
o Any first floor bedrooms on the northern and eastern boundary of the site 

facing the A14 to have acoustic double glazing with a minimum weighted 
sound reduction index of 35 dB Rw + Ctr or better 

o Details of passive ventilation to any first floor bedrooms for dwellings in the 
eastern and northern parts of the site 

o Details of boundary treatments 

Page 11



 

 
L 

o Details of waste bins and garden composting bin storage 
o Tree protection including method statement and monitoring schedule 
o Hard and soft landscaping scheme and implementation 
o Levels 
o External lighting 
o Concurrent with the submission of reserved matters – details of the play 

equipment to be provided on the open space 
 

(3) In the event that the applicant fails to provide an executed Section 106 
planning obligation on terms to the satisfaction of the Professional Lead – 
Growth and Sustainable Planning by 10 April 2016 that the Professional 
Lead be delegated authority to proceed to determine the application and 
secure appropriate developer contributions by a combination of Section 106 
planning obligation (for on-site contributions and obligations) and the 
Council’s CIL charging schedule.  To prevent duplication of developer 
contributions this is achieved by: 

 
a. Having regard to those matters which would have been planning obligations 

under Section 106 and which are details in the Council’s CIL charging 
regulation 123 infrastructure list, to omit those from the requisite Section 106; 

 
b. To secure funding for those remaining infrastructure items removed from the  

Section 106 planning obligation sunder the CIL charging schedule; and 
 

c. To secure those matters which are not infrastructure items by the requisite 
Section 106 

 
(4) That, subject to the completion of the Planning Obligation in Resolution (1) 

or CIL in Resolution (2) above to the satisfaction of the Professional Lead – 
Growth and Sustainable Planning, the Professional Lead be authorised to 
grant outline and full planning permission subject to the conditions listed in 
(2) above 

 
(5) That in the event of the Planning Obligation and/or CIL regulation referred to 

in Resolution (1 and 2) or (3 and 4) above not being secured the 
Professional Lead – Growth and Sustainable Planning be authorised to 
refuse full planning permission for reason(s) including: 

 
Inadequate provision of affordable housing, open space and/or infrastructure 
contrary to Policy CS6 of the Core Strategy 2008 and Altered Policy H4 without 
the requisite S106 obligation or CIL being in place 

 
Item 6 

Application Number: 3701/15 
Proposal: Conversion of Kelly House to residential use, conversion 

of the Old Chapel to residential use, demolition of 
workshop adjoining the Old Chapel, demolition of free-
standing workshop building and the erection of 7 no new 
houses 

Site Location: THORNDON – Kerrison Conference and Training 
Centre, Stoke Ash Road IP23 7JG 

Applicant:   Winesham Ventures Ltd 
 

Page 12



 

 
M 

The Case Officer clarified that as the flats had independent gardens that are 
accessible to the rear of the property, cycle storage was not a problem. The date 
in the Recommendations should read 8 April 2016, not 10 April 2016. 
 
Marion Ravenhill, speaking for the Parish Council gave full support to the 
application. She praised the Developers for working with both the Parish Council 
and the Community, in order to provide a proposal that was suitable. She did 
comment that a report from the Water Company was required as no comments 
from them regarding this development had been received. 
 
Roger Gilles, the Agent spoke to the Committee and advised that there had been 
a great deal of positive input and support from the local community and that all 
recommendations and comments received had been taken on board and 
addressed.  
 
Members debated the Application and commented that it was positive to see 
community engagement on this level. It was agreed that this development would 
support existing services in the community, and as the site was currently dis-used 
the development would enhance the area. Members took into account the 
comments from the Parish Council regarding surface and foul water drainage and 
requested that this be added to the Recommendation as a condition. 
 
By a unanimous vote. 
 
Decision –  
 
(1) Subject to the prior agreement of a Section 106 Planning Obligation on 

appropriate terms to the satisfaction of the Professional Lead – Growth 
and Sustainable Planning to secure: 

 
o Affordable housing contribution of £68,587 
o Education contribution – £73,086 primary contribution to Thorndon 

CEVP School; £73,420 secondary contribution and £19,907 sixth form 
contribution to Eye Hartismere School 

o Estate management 
 

(2) In the event that the applicant fails to provide an executed Section 106 
planning obligation on terms to the satisfaction of the Professional 
Lead – Growth and Sustainable Planning by 10 April 2016 that the 
Professional Lead be delegated authority to proceed to determine the 
application and secure appropriate developer contributions by a 
combination of Section 106 planning obligation (for on-site 
contributions and obligations) and the Council’s CIL charging 
schedule.  To prevent duplication of developer contributions this is 
achieved by: 

 
(a) Having regard to those matters which would have been planning 

obligations under Section 106 and which are details in the Council’s 
CIL charging regulation 123 infrastructure list, to omit those from the 
requisite Section 106; 

 

Page 13



 

 
N 

(b) To secure funding for those remaining infrastructure items removed 
from the  Section 106 planning obligation sunder the CIL charging 
schedule; and 

 
(c) To secure those matters which are not infrastructure items by the 

requisite Section 106 
 

(3) That, subject to the completion of the Planning Obligation in Resolution 
(1) or CIL in Resolution (2) above to the satisfaction of the Professional 
Lead – Growth and Sustainable Planning, the Professional Lead be 
authorised to grant full planning permission and full planning permission 
subject to conditions including: 

 
o Standard time limit 
o Approved plans 
o Tree protection plan and method statement 
o Assessment and mitigation of activities around retained trees 
o Engineering and construction methods for any works required within Root 

Protection Areas 
o Auditable system of arboricultural site monitoring 
o Hard and soft landscaping scheme and implementation 
o Demolition carried out prior to first occupation 
o Land contamination 
o Biodiversity enhancement measures 
o Scheme for carrying capacity of pumping/high reach appliances 
o Vehicular access surfaced prior to first occupation 
o Details to show means to prevent discharge surface water from the 

development on to the highway 
o Construction of carriageways and footways 
o Provision of parking and manoeuvring areas 
o Scheme for cycle parking and storage to be agreed 
o Removal of permitted development rights Schedule 2 Part 1 Class A, B, 

C, D, E and G 
o Construction management to include demolition management and 

construction working hours 
o Provision of walls and fences prior to first occupation and subsequently 

retained 
o Material details to include road surfaces 
o Details of lighting columns and bollards 
o Surface and foul water drainage to be agreed 

 
(4) That in the event of the Planning Obligation and/or CIL regulation referred 

to in Resolution (1 and 2) or (3 and 4) above not being secured the 
Professional Lead – Growth and Sustainable Planning be authorised to 
refuse full planning permission for reason(s) including: 

 
o Inadequate provision/contribution towards infrastructure and 

management contrary to policy CS6 of the Core Strategy 2008 without 
the requisite S106 obligation and/or CIL being in place 

 
Item 7 

Application Number: 0610/16 

Page 14



 

 
O 

Proposal: Change of use and conversion of redundant church to 
dwelling house with provision of parking and formation of 
new vehicular access 

Site Location: ELMSWELL – Elmswell Methodist Church, School Road 
IP30 9EW 

Applicant:   Mr J Moore 
 
The Case Officer drew Members attention to the tabled papers, and in particular 
comments from Councillor Sarah Mansel regarding investigating the location of 
where any graves might be, and appropriately managing this. 
 
Peter Dow, speaking for the Parish Council advised the Committee that there were 
a range of objections for this development from the Parish Council, the village 
itself and other organisations. He advised that the building played an important 
role in the community of the village and would continue to do so in the future. 
There would be major growth in Elmswell in the future, and this building would be 
required to continue to support local amenities. The designation as an ACV 
showed the great support for the retention of the buildings for community use. 
 
Jennifer Tooke-Marchant, an objector supported comments made by the Parish 
Council. She advised that the building was used by villagers and people from the 
surrounding area. Without the use of the building some of the groups that currently 
used it would cease. It was in a central location in the village making it easily 
accessible.  
 
John Moore, the applicant, advised the Committee that the Methodist Church were 
keen that the community retained the site, but at a fair price to the Church, and for 
this reason planning permission had been sought. He advised that the site was still 
available for purchase. The proposal would not affect groups using the site, as 
there were numerous meeting rooms in the village. Although the NPPF sought the 
preservation of community facilities, e.g. shops, he did not believe this related to 
Churches, or that an ACV could be placed on a Church. 
 
Councillor John Levantis, Ward Member, stated that the site contained both a hall 
and a chapel, and the site was well maintained and easily accessible. As the 
population of Elmswell was due to increase he felt that more community space 
was required to support this in the future. If the site was split and the Church 
converted to a dwelling this would make the remainder of the site unviable. 
 
Councillor Sarah Mansel, Ward Member, commenting via email asked the 
Committee to refuse the application. She agreed with comments made by the 
Parish Council and reiterated that Elmswell was a thriving village that needed the 
community space offered by Wesley Hall. She commented that parking provided in 
the proposal was inadequate and would cause future issues. The Parish Council 
were trying to purchase the whole site and had plans for the future community use 
of the Church in perpetuity. 
 
During the course of the debate Members commented on the roof lights on the 
proposal and agreed that these would be detrimental to the character of the 
historic building. It was requested that this reason be added to the reasons for 
refusal. Members remarked that a comprehensive case from the Parish Council 
had been presented, and it was felt that it was important to support the community 
in their endeavours to preserve a much valued building. 

Page 15



 

 
P 

 
By a unanimous vote. 
 
Decision – That Full Planning Permission be refused for the following reasons, 
subject to the receipt of any additional consultation response 
 
The Methodist Church, together with the Wesley and Exchange Halls has been 
designated as an Asset of Community Value for which significant community 
support has been demonstrated.  The loss of the church as a community facility 
would be harmful to the provision of community facilities in the area and adversely 
affect the vitality of the locality to the detriment of sustainable development with 
particular regard to the social role performed by those facilities.  The conversion of 
the church to residential use would also be likely to prejudice the continuing 
viability and sustainable operation of the remaining halls with which it currently 
shares off street parking provision. 
 
On that basis the proposal is contrary to paragraphs 7, 28 and 70 of the National 
Planning Policy Framework that seek to guard against the unnecessary loss of 
valued facilities and promotes the retention of such uses, and Policies FC1 and 
FC1.1 of the Core Strategy Focused Review which translates the guidance 
contained in the NPPF to local circumstances in seeking to deliver Sustainable 
Development 
 
The introduction of roof lights on the west elevation would be detrimental to the 
character of the historic building contrary to policy HB1 of the Local Plan 

 
Item 8 

Application Number: 2982/15 
Proposal: Change of use from retirement home to 18 flats and one 

staff flat 
Site Location: WHITTON – Whitton Park, Thurleston Lane IP1 6TJ 
Applicant:   Mr Cowell 
 
Members were advised that the recommendation should be amended as follows: 
 
o Recommendation 2 – Condition 5 – add ‘of first dwelling’ 
o Include Recommendation 3 as per the tabled paper 

 
Alan Cowell, the applicant, advised that when he originally purchased the park in 
order to manage the Care Home he had always wanted to provide low cost 
housing for the community at some point in the future.  The opportunity to do so 
had now arisen and the architect had designed a sympathetic scheme for 19 flats 
and the bank had agreed to fund the development.  A footpath would be put in to 
provide pedestrian access and SCC Highways had agreed to widen the road to 
improve this for car users.   
 
Councillor John Whitehead, Ward member, commenting by email said that he 
supported the application.  He considered the proposal to be in a sustainable 
location, albeit in the ‘countryside’, and welcomed the reuse of the existing 
building.  The plans and elevation showed an attractive development set in a 
pleasant rural setting which provided easy access to all local facilities close by in 
North Ipswich.  It was crucial, however, that the highway improvements and 
footpath provision were implemented prior to occupation. 

Page 16



 

 
Q 

 
Members fully supported the proposal and a motion for approval was proposed 
and seconded, subject to an additional condition to remove permitted development 
rights. 
 
By a unanimous vote 
 
Decision – That authority be delegated to the Professional Lead – Growth 
and Sustainable Planning to grant planning permission subject to the prior 
completion of a Section 106 on terms to his satisfaction to secure the 
following heads of terms: 
 
Financial contribution towards: 
  

o Affordable housing (payable on occupation of fourth dwelling) 
o Education 
o Libraries 
o Waste collection 

 
Provision of new footway along Thurleston Lane to Whitton Park Lane prior to 
occupation 

 
(2) And that such permission be subject to the conditions as set out below: 

 
o Standard time limit 
o List of approved documents 
o Highways – improvements to access prior to any other works 
o Highways – details of footpath to be agreed prior to commencement 
o Highways – footpath to be completed prior to occupation of first dwelling 
o Details of hard and soft landscaping 
o Timescale for landscaping 
o Details of surface water drainage to be agreed prior to commencement 
o Arboricultural impact assessment to be submitted prior to any works to form 

parking spaces 
o ‘No dig’ construction in root protection area of oak tree 
o Removal of permitted development rights * 

 
* Note:  Thus was later confirmed as not necessary as flats do not have permitted 
development rights for outbuildings 
 
(3) In the event that the applicant fails to provide an executed Section 106 
planning obligation on terms to the satisfaction of the Professional Lead – 
Growth and Sustainable Planning by 8 April 2016 that the Professional Lead 
be delegated authority to proceed to determine the application and secure 
appropriate developer contributions by a combination of Section 106 planning 
obligation (for on-site contributions and obligations) and the Council’s CIL 
charging schedule.  To prevent duplication of developer contributions this is 
achieved by: 
 
(a) Having regard to those matters which would have been planning obligations 

under Section 106 and which are details in the Council’s CIL charging regulation 
123 infrastructure list, to omit those from the requisite Section 106; 

 

Page 17



 

 
R 

(b) To secure funding for those remaining infrastructure items removed from the  
Section 106 planning obligation sunder the CIL charging schedule; and 

 
(c) To secure those matters which are not infrastructure items by the requisite 

Section 106 
 
 

 
 

 

 

………………………………………………. 

Chairman 

Page 18



MID SUFFOLK DISTRICT COUNCIL 

DEVELOPMENT CONTROL COMMITTEE A 

251
" MAY 2016 

SCHEDULE OF APPLICATIONS FOR DETERMINATION BY THE COMMITTEE 

Item Ref No. Location And Ward Member Officer Page 
Proposal No. 

1. 3918/15 Former Gram~ian Harris Cllr S Mansel RB 1-160 
site1 St Edmunds Drive1 Cllr J Levantis 
Elmswell: 

Application for approval of 
reserved matters pursuant 
to outline planning 
permission 0846/13 
relating to Appearance, 
Landscaping, Layout & 
Scale for the development 
which includes the erection 
of 190 residential dwellings 

2. 1873/16 10 Eastward Place, Cllr B Humphreys SS(RB 161-
Stowmarket: Cllr D Muller presenting) 169 

Cllr G Green 
Erection of two storey side 
extension. 

Page 19

Agenda Item 8



This page is intentionally left blank



MID SUFFOLK DISTRICT COUNCIL 
DEVELOPMENT CONTROL COMMITTEE- 25 May 2016 

AGENDA ITEM NO 
APPLICATION NO 
PROPOSAL 

SITE LOCATION 
SITE AREA (Ha) 
APPLICANT 
RECEIVED 
EXPIRY DATE 

1 
3918/15 
Application for approval of reserved matters pursuant to outline 
planning permission 0846/13 relating to Appearance, Landscaping, 
Layout & Scale for the development which includes the erection of 
190 residential dwellings 

Former Grampian Harris site, St Edmunds Drive, Elmswell IP30 9HF 
6.64 
Taylor Wimpey East Anglia 
October 30, 2015 
April?, 2016 

REASONS FOR REFERENCE TO COMMITTEE 

The application is referred to committee for the following reason : 

(1) it is a "Major" application for:-

a residential development for 15 or over dwellings 

PRE-APPLICATION ADVICE 

1. Pre-application advice was sought prior to the submission of the 
application for Reserved Matters. In summary, the developer was 
advised to ensure a sufficient buffer to the countryside edges to the north 
and east boundary. The landscaping scheme should be informed by the 
Landscape Officer's response to the outline application. The footpath 
diversion should be safe and quiet, avoiding the main spine road and the 
footpath link to the industrial estate should have passive surveillance. 
The copper beech should be retained. 

SITE AND SURROUNDINGS 

2. The site measures 6.64 hectares and formed a derelict industrial site 
comprising a number of low level industrial buildings and six disused 
dwellings. The industrial units have been demolished and the site 
cleared. 

The site is accessed from Station Road. A public footpath skirts around 
the site from Station Road to Hawk End Lane via a pedestrian crossing 
over the railway line. There are other public footpaths along the north 
boundary. The majority of the site has previously been built on, although 

Page 21



HISTORY 

..2 
there are some significant trees, particularly on the edge of the site. 

To the North and West of the site are agricultural fields. To the east of the 
site are residential dwellings fronting onto Station Road and to the South 
of the site are commercial buildings located on Station Road Industrial 
Estate. 

The site is located within the settlement boundary although the existing 
sewerage pumping station is located outside of the settlement boundary. 

3. The planning history relevant to the application site is: 

0846/13 Outline planning application for demolition of all17/03/2015 
buildings on site (comprising redundant factory 
buildings in Use Class B2, settlement tanks and 6 Granted 
derelict residential properties) and erection of up to 190 
residential dwellings and pumping station. Construction 
of a new access road to Station Road. (Appearance, 
landscaping, layout and scale to be the subject of a 
future reserved matters application) 

3489/12 EIA Screening Opinion- re-development of the existing 07/12/2012 
residential and industrial site for a residential 
development of up to 190 dwellings on an area of 6.62 EIA not 
hectares. required 

PROPOSAL 

4. The application seeks approval of the reserved matters associated with 
outline planning permission 0846/13. The outline planning application 
granted permission for demolition of all the buildings on site comprising 
redundant factory buildings in Use Class B2, settlement tanks and 6 
derelict residential properties, and erection of up to 190 residential 
dwellings and pumping station. The application was subject to detailed 
viability review and a Section 1 06 obligation having regard to that. 

The proposal included construction of a new access road to Station 
Road. Appearance, landscaping, layout and scale are the Reserved 
Matters to be considered by this application. 

The proposal is for 190 dwellings providing a variety of dwelling types, 
sizes and tenures. This is approximately 29 dwellings per hectare. 169 
private dwellings are proposed ranging from 2-5 bedrooms with a mix of 
bungalows, detached, semi-detached and terrace properties. 21 
Affordable Units (11% as agreed in the Outline Application) are proposed 
with a mix of terrace and bungalow properties ranging from 1-3 bedroom 

Page 22



POLICY 

3 
properties. 

The dwellings' designs are informed by a character analysis of Elmswell. 
The dwellings are divided into character areas to provide visual variety 
and legibility. The scheme was amended to strengthen these character 
areas. Most notable was the relocation of the primary green space to 
improve the appearance of a village green. 

The proposal incorporates a primary road with a tree lined avenue and 
grass verge. The primary route forks to the south-east corner providing a 
secondary road incorporating the footpath diversion leading to the railway 
crossing, pumping station and footway connection to the adjacent 
industrial estate. A number of shared surface streets link the two roads. 
All properties front on the street with properties on the west boundary 
facing out across the agricultural field. 

Each property has approximately 2.5 parking spaces per property with 
475 spaces in-total. The garages have internal parking spaces of 3m x7m 
and parking spaces are 2.5m x 5m. 

• 1 bed house- 1 parking space 
• 2 bed house- 1.5 parking spaces or 2 parking spaces within curtilage 
• 3 bed house- 2 parking spaces 
• 4+ bed house- 3 parking spaces 

Parking is a mix of rear parking courts, on-street parking, private 
driveways and detached garages. Landscaping has been included to 
break up the parking areas. 

There is a variety of rear gardens size from 36sqm for the 1 bedroom 
properties ranging to 165sqm for the family homes. 

The primary open space has been positioned to retain the existing beech 
tree and to provide a junior play area. This is located to the east of the 
site overlooked by properties on all sides. 

All trees identified as 8-category tree are retained and will form part of the 
public open space to be managed by a management company or Mid 
Suffolk District Council as required by the signed Section 106 agreement 
associated with the Outline Application. 

5. Planning Policy Guidance 

See Appendix below. 

CONSULTATIONS 

Page 23



6. Elmswell Parish Council: Elmswell Parish Council object to the 
proposal due to the low proportion of Affordable Housing, concerns 
expressed by The Enyironment Agency, SCC Floods and Environmental 
Health Officer (noise). There is also no Travel Plan submitted. 

Wetherden Parish Council: Wetherden Parish Council object to the 
proposal due to increase in traffic generated by 190 new homes and 
impact on infrastructure. 

Great Ashfield Parish Council: Great Ashfield Parish Council object to 
the proposal due to the increase in traffic congestion in the vicinity. 

Tree Officer: The tree officer has no objection as there appears to be 
little conflict between the development and any significant trees and 
hedges on site. 

Environmental Health- Land Contamination: The Environmental 
Management Officer has no objection to the application. 

Natural England: Natural England has no objection. The proposal will 
not damage or destroy the interest features for which Norton Wood has 
been notified. 

Environment Agency: The Environment Agency will not be providing 
detailed site specific advice or comments regarding land contamination 
for this site. The developer should continue to address risks to controlled 
waters from contamination at the site following the requirements of the 
National Planning Policy Framework. 

Anglian Water: Anglian Water have no comments to make on the 
application. 

Highways England: Highways England offers no objection. 

Network Rail: Network Rail provide comments and requirements for the 
safe operation and protection of Network Rail's adjoining land. Most 
notable is the need for future maintenance to be conducted solely on the 
applicant's land, drainage, construction management, fencing, lighting 
and landscaping. 

Environmental Health- Noise/Other: The Environmental Health Officer 
has no adverse comments regarding 'other' environmental health issues. 
The Environmental Health Officer supports the principle of mitigating 
adverse noise from adjacent industrial units at source and submitting a 
noise report to agree condition 10 of the Outline Planning Permission on 
this basis. There may be other alternative methods 'on site' such as a 
noise barrier at the site boundary. 

Rights of Way: The Rights of Way T earn advise that the proposed 

Page 24



5 
footpath diversion does not accurately reflect what was agreed with the 
developer and County Council. At each of the four locations where the 
proposed diversion crosses the estate roads it was agreed dropped kerbs 
and tactile paving would be provided. These do not appear indicated on 
the plan. The Hawk End level crossing is to be delivered by way of the 
Section 106 agreement pertaining to the Outline Planning Permission. 

Stowmarket Ramblers: The Stowmarket Ramblers have serious 
concerns with the footpath leading to the Hawk End Level Crossing. This 
is a potentially dangerous crossing. There is no firm alternative to this 
crossing. They will provide advice once the plans are known. 

Highways Authority: The layout is acceptable in regards to Highways. 
There are concerns in relation to the large number of street trees which 
are proposed within highway verges. The space available is very 
restricted and it is unlikely that the trees could be accommodated as 
proposed. They will no doubt conflict with services and street lighting 
columns. 

Landscape Officer: The Landscape Officer is confident that TW will 
manage some planting as specified and indicated by the detailed 
extracts. The Officer would have expected more space on the site 
boundaries to help absorb the impact on the scheme into the wider 
landscape and I think the scheme will appear fairly suburban in terms of 
design in the village context and in wider views. 

Officer note: Please note that further details are to be submitted to meet 
the Landscape Officers recommendations. A verbal update will be 
provided at Committee and specific details secured under Condition 8 of 
the Outline Planning Permission. 

MSDC Heritage: The Heritage Team has no comments to make on this 
proposal. 

SCC Archaeology: The Archaeological Officer advises that there was an 
archaeological condition on the Outline Planning Permission and an 
archaeological evaluation has been undertaken. There is no need for 
further work required or need for further archeology conditions. 

Historic England: Historic England does not consider that it is necessary 
for this application to be notified to Historic England. 

UK Power Networks: UK Power Networks objects to the application as 
made. UK Power Networks enjoy access and cable rights that cross the 
former Grampian Harris site for the benefit of their Primary Electricity 
Substation adjacent to the site. The proposal would infringe their rights 
with the proposed construction of dwellings on land subject to the 
easement. 

Waste Services: The Waste Services team raises concern regarding the 

Page 25



shared roadway on the west boundary might be too narrow for dustcart to 
access should there be cars parking in front of the properties. There are 
also soft verges in-front of most properties. We would prefer these be 
hard standing rather than grassed as these areas might have to 
driven-over should cars be parked awkwardly preventing access to collect 
bins. 

SCC Infrastructure Officer: The Outline Planning Permission has a 
S106A dated 17 March 2015 which contains a number of obligations in 
favour of the County Council. The reserved matters application will need 
to be linked with the existing S 1 06A. 

SCC Floods: SCC Floods confirm that they will continue to work with 
Taylor Wimpey on the detailed drainage design to reduce the outflows as 
much as practicable and this is secured through Condition 7 of the 
Outline Planning Permission. · 

Currently the proposed discharge rate is 2141/s this considered as a 
potential risk to downstream flooding thus at the detailed design stage 
the applicant has agreed with SCC Floods that they will aim to reduce 
these flows, where practical, to 501/s in the 1yr event , 1001/s in the 30yr 
and 150 lis in the 1 OOyr+CC. 

Strategic Housing: Strategic Housing agree the housing mix. 

Great Ashfield Parish Council: Great Ashfield Parish Council object for 
the same reason outlined above. 

LOCAL AND THIRD PARTY REPRESENTATIONS 

7. This is a summary of the representations received: 
• Increase in traffic and congestion 
• Primary School will be over-subscribed. 
• The local shops may not be able to cope with the additional 

demand. Parking queues and unavailable items already an issue. 
• Impact on Woolpit GP Surgery 
• Over-expansion of the village 
• Outgrown 'The Backbourne' (Community Centre) once. Add more 

demand on the facility and that will impact once again. 
• Further infrastructure needed 
• Increase in traffic congestion at level crossing 
• Need for relief road to provide access to A 14 without going through 

the village. 
• Concern over route of diverted footpath. Simplest route would be 

to re-instate the former path. Therefore this would run between the 
rear properties of Station Road and the proposed development. 

• Introduce sensitive development within an industrial area. This will 
prejudice and or restrict M&J Seafood's operation. 

• Lack of detail in the Noise Assessment submitted with the Outline 

Page 26



7 
Application and no details of mitigation of noise or odour impact. 

• Recommend including condition requiring steps to minimise the 
impact of odour and noise from adjoining users. 

ASSESSMENT 

8. • Background information 

Outline Planning Permission was granted under application 0846113 for 
up to 190 residential dwellings. A copy of the decision notice is included 
within the Committee Bundle. Conditions 4 and 5 (Archaeology), 
Condition 16 (Biodiversity Mitigation Measures) and Condition 18 
(Construction Management Plan) were agreed in April and May 2015. 

The Outline Planning Permission identified the sensitive viability of the 
scheme with the need to provide contributions towards road 
improvements, a footbridge to the Hawk End Lane level crossing, 
contributions towards upgrading broadband to Station Road Industrial 
Estate and fibre broadband for the residential dwellings. 11% affordable 
housing and infrastructure contributions were secured through the Section 
106 Agreement. 

This application seeks agreement for the Reserved Matters set out in 
Condition 1 of the Outline Planning Permission. Consequently the matters 
to be considered are the scale, layout, appearance and landscaping. 
Other conditions on the Outline Planning Permission will be discharged as 
described in the report. 

• Policy Background 

NPPF 

The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) was published on 27th 
March 2012. It provides that the NPPF "does not change the statutory 
status of the development plan as the starting point for decision making. 
Proposed development that accords with an up-to-date Local Plan should 
be approved, and proposed development that conflicts should be refused 
unless other material considerations indicate otherwise". 

The NPPF also provides (para 187) that "Local planning authorities 
should look for solutions rather than problems, and decision-takers at 
every level should seek to approve applications for sustainable 
development where possible. Local planning authorities should work 
proactively with applicants to secure developments that improve the 
economic, social and environmental conditions of the area." 

Section 7 of the NPPF refers to design. It provides that good design is a 
key aspect of sustainable development; it should contribute positively to 

Page 27



making places better for people. Decisions should aim to ensure that 
development will function well and add to the overall quality of the area, 
establish a strong sense of place, create attractive and comfortable 
places to live, work and visit, optimise the potential of the site to 
accommodate development, create and sustain an appropriate mix of 
uses and support local facilities and transport networks. Furthermore it 
provides that development should respond to local character and history, 
and reflect the identity of local surroundings and materials, while not 
preventing or discouraging appropriate innovation. The NPPF goes on to 
state it is "proper to seek to promote or reinforce local distinctiveness" 
(para 60) and permission should be "refused for development of poor 
design that fails to take the opportunities available for improving the 
character and quality of an area and the way it functions" (para 64). 

The Core Strategy and Core Strategy Focused Review (CSFR) 

The Core Strategy Focused Review (CSFR) was adopted by Full Council 
on 20 December 2012 and should be read as a supplement to Mid 
Suffolk's adopted Core Strategy (2008). This document updates some of 
the policies of the 2008 Core Strategy. The document does introduce 
new policy considerations, including Policy FC 1 - Presumption in favour 
of sustainable development that refers to the National Planning Policy 
Framework (NPPF) objectives and Policy FC 1.1 - Mid Suffolk approach 
to delivering Sustainable Development that provides "development 
proposals will be required to demonstrate the principles of sustainable 
development and will be assessed against the presumption in favour of 
sustainable development as interpreted and applied focally to the Mid 
Suffolk context through the policies and proposals of the Mid Suffolk new 
style Local Plan. Proposals for development must conserve and enhance 
the focal character of the different parts of the district. They should 
demonstrate how the proposal addresses the context and key issues of 
the district and contributes to meeting the objectives and the policies of 
the Mid Suffolk Core Strategy and other relevant documents." 

Policy CS5 provides that "All development will maintain and enhance the 
environment, including the historic environment, and retain the local 
distinctiveness of the area". 

•Scale 

The Outline Planning Permission granted development of up to 190 
dwellings. This equates to a density of approximately 29 dwellings per 
hectare. This is considered an appropriate level under Policy CS9 of the 
Core Strategy given the character and appearance of Elmswell. 

The proposed dwellings are of various sizes ranging from bungalows to 
three storey and a mix of detached, semi-detached and terrace 
properties. The mix is comparable with recent development in the locality. 

The scheme provides a mix of tenure with private market, social rented 

Page 28



and shared ownership. The types comply with the agreed provision under 
the Outline Planning Permission. The 169 Market Housing comprises: 

• Three 2 bed bungalows 
• Twenty-two 2 bed houses 
• Sixty 3 bed houses 
• Sixty-five 4 bedroom houses 
• Nineteen 5 bedroom houses 

The 21 affordable units comprise: 

• Eight 1 bed houses 
• One 2 bed bungalow 
• Eight 2 bed houses 
• Four 3 bed houses 

The mix of property types and size will complement and enhance the 
available housing in Elmswell and the Mid Suffolk District. As such the 
scale proposed is deemed to accord with the Core Principles of the NPPF 
(paragraph 17) that development should meet the housing need for an 
area. 

The development is also considered to accord with paragraph 50 by 
delivering a wide choice of high quality homes and a mix of housing 
based on current and future demographic trends, market trends and the 
needs of different groups in the community. The proposal also accords 
with Policy CS9 of the Core Strategy and Policy H14 of the Mid Suffolk 
Local Plan 1998 where development should provide a range of house 
types. 

• Appearance 

The proposed development follows on from the principles established by 
the outline approval. The result is a design and architectural response, 
which responds to the context of the site and the character of the 
residential developments surrounding the site. The existing housing 
nearby the site is generally of a traditional character, using traditional 
forms and materials. These positive characteristics have been taken 
forward into the proposed development so that the development 
harmonises with the wider area. 

The development has been designed to provide Character Areas to 
improve the legibility of the development (ability to way-find). It also 
strengthens the visual variety and enhances the character of the 
development. 

The Character Areas have been designed from the local vernacular 
following a Character Assessment. The Character Areas comprise 
variations in plot layouts, landscape, elevation treatments, heights and 
materials. This draws from the design, scale, and materials of dwellings 

Page 29



.:10 
in Elmswell. The Character Areas will ensure the positive local identity is 
reinforced. 

The proposal incorporates focal buildings to accentuate the overall 
character but also to create visual richness. The types of dwellings have 
been evenly distributed so differentiation between tenure is not easily 
detected and accommodation size is not grouped but dispersed across 
the site. 

Subsequently the scheme enhances and maintains the local 
distinctiveness of the area as required by Policies FC 1 and FC 1.1 of the 
Core Strategy Focused Review and CS5 of the Core Strategy. 

The scheme further will add to the quality of the area, respond to local 
character, and create a visually attractive area with inclusive design as to 
accord with paragraph 57 and 58 of the NPPF. 

• Layout 

The Design and Access Statement submitted with the application draws 
from the masterplan by having a linear lane, village green, linking 
pedestrian routes and visual links with the countryside. 

The linear lane concept is included in the primary and secondary route 
through the development to have a lane characteristic and be linear in 
form. Buildings face onto the street to create active frontages, a good 
sense of enclosure and pleasurable internal views. This responds to 
street types in the locality and creates well defined streets. This 
development provides for a primary and secondary route with linked 
shared streets. This denotes a clear street hierarchy and provides for a 
permeable (accessible) site with visual interest. 

The street hierarchy, ambling highway alignment, changes in road 
surfaces and strong building line will encourage drivers to reduce speeds. 
This encourages streets for all rather than dominated by vehicles. 

The village green is at the heart of the development. This is located along 
the primary vehicular route reflecting spatial sequence elsewhere in the 
village such as the green between School Lane and Little Green. The 
green was re-positioned in order to strengthen this Character Area and 
also give a clear focal point when entering the site. 

The development reflects the masterplan by providing a footpath 
diversion through the site. This will be through the village green and along 
the secondary route along the southern boundary. The route provides for 
dropped kerbs as required by Public Rights of Way. The route therefore 
would be street lit, over-looked by the properties (natural surveillance) 
and more direct then the existing enclosed footpath. This improves the 
perceptions of safety, conspicuousness (legible route), and convenience. 

Page 30



j__j_ 

The pedestrian activity would also add to the overall conviviality of the 
development. 

It was recommended by a resident that the scheme retain the existing 
public right of way. This is not considered a suitable arrangement. The 
footpath would be sandwiched between fences, houses and industrial 
units with no clear sight-line and no natural surveillance. It would also be 
unlit. This is not considered a safe or direct option for the footpath. 

The footpath as shown on the layout leads to the existing level crossing at 
Hawk End Lane. II is recognised that this development would increase the 
use of this crossing and impact on the safety of the crossing. The Outline 
Planning Permission seeks to resolve the risk through a 
pre-commencement condition to provide a strategy to mitigate the risk to 
pedestrians from the development from crossing the railway. A strategy 
was submitted by the previous developer but this did not provide sufficient 
information. 

A further Mitigation Risk Strategy is being prepared in order to comply 
with Condition 17 of the Outline Planning Permission. The layout allows 
for all possible options to mitigate the risk (such as a footbridge or closure 
of the crossing and diversion). The agreement of the strategy under 
Condition 17 is not deemed to compromise the layout. 

The site is further integrated with the surrounding area by providing a 
footway link to the Industrial Estate and footways along the new road 
leading to Station Road. An easement area is also provided to 
accommodate access by UK Power Networks to their substation. 

The access to the development has also been designed to accommodate 
a future link road extension to serve a bypass. The primary route through 
also allows for future link to adjacent land to the west should this site 
come forward for development in the future. The development is therefore 
connected, permeable and integrated with the surrounding area and 
potential future developments in Elmswell. 

Finally the Masterplan sought to create views over the countryside. The 
properties along the western boundary (Countryside Edge) allows for 
views out across the countryside. Additional wider views of the Copper 
Beech are secured from the north. 

The layout embraces the key elements of 'Secured by Design' such as 
well-defined spaces both public and private, natural surveillance of all 
areas of the development from dwellings especially the open areas 
(particularly the play facilities) and public right of way. The layout follows 
urban design principles, providing for a perimeter block structure with 
strong building lines ensuring that the buildings frame the street and 
create an inviting environment. 

This is emphasised with the parking spaces located mainly between 

Page 31



dwellings. One character area (core housing) provides on-street parking 
which is broken with street trees. Other areas provide parking mews 
which are over-looked by surrounding properties. 

Concern has been raised by Waste Services that the shared street 
serving plots 66-74 and 128-132 (western edge of the site) may be too 
narrow for a dustcart should cars be parked on the road. The 
development has designated parking spaces and garages to avoid 
on-street parking. This provision is to the up-to-date SCC standard which 
was intended to learn lessons from previous developments of resident's 
parking behaviour. With considerate behaviour by future residents it is 
considered the scheme is appropriate. This can be protected by removing 
conversions of garages to this plots. 

Subsequently the layout is deemed appropriate for accessibility and to 
avoid on-street parking. The grassed frontages and shared surfacing also 
act as a deterrent to on street parking. Providing hard surfacing to the 
front of properties will most likely lead to on-street parking. 

The layout also allows for suitable back-to-back distances between the 
proposed and existing properties. It is designed to avoid harmful impacts 
on privacy, overshadowing and over-bearing development to existing 
neighbours and future occupiers of the site. 

There are dwellings positioned with the rear gardens backing on to the 
industrial units. These are a minimum of 1Om from boundary edge. The 
Outline Planning Permission include an Acoustic Report that concludes 
that noise sources from trains travelling along the railway, motor vehicles 
in Station Road and equipment at premises on the nearby trading estate 
will have an impact on any dwellings in close proximity to them. It is the 
intention of the developer to mitigate against noise from the source by 
installing noise enclosures. Should at-source mitigation not be secured 
(given one M&J Seafood object to the scheme). 

The Environmental Health Officer confirms that alternative measures 
(such as a high wall) are feasible. The provision of a high wall is deemed 
to be a marginal improvement to the outlook of the rear and flank 
elevations of the Industrial Units. Acceptable measures will be secured 
under Condition 10 of the Outline Planning Permission. It is not 
considered that the agreement of this condition will compromise the 
proposed layout. 

A new objection has been received in regards to the impact of smell from 
the adjacent industrial units (M&J Seafood). M&J Seafood is positioned 
with its rear elevation facing plots 46-54. The position of the proposed 
development in relation to industrial units was considered under the 
Outline Application. The Environmental Health Officer has not raised 
concerns regarding other matters such as smell/odour under this 
application. The smell is not considered to be significant as to create a 
potential statutory nuisance. As such the scheme is not considered to 

Page 32



j_3 

give rise between conflict between the existing industrial units and the 
new development as to accord with Policies E4 and H 17 of the Mid 
Suffolk Local Plan and paragraph 123 of the NPPF. 

The layout accords with paragraph 58, 69 and 70 of the NPPF, CS5 of 
the Core Strategy and policies SB2 and GP1 of the Mid Suffolk Local 
Plan. The layout will provide a development which functions well and 
establishes a strong sense of place. The layout provides for a safe and 
accessible environment with clear and legible pedestrian routes. It 
includes high quality open space suitably located to encourage the active 
and continual use. It is well integrated with the surrounding area as not to 
create a stand-alone development un-related to its context. 

• Landscape 

The site is located on the edge of the village with countryside to the north 
and west with the built environment to the south and east. The railway line 
also runs along part of the southern boundary. 

Whilst the site has since been cleared it should be noted this is a 
brownfield site which accommodated a large food processing plant. The 
Grampian Harris Bacon Factory operated from the application site since 
1911 and closed in 2006. A number of the buildings were in a significant 
state of disrepair had been subject to vandalism. 

The re-development of the site provides the opportunity to enhance the 
rural outlook on the edge of the built environment. A Landscape Strategy 
has been submitted with the applications along with a Landscape 
Masterplan. 

The countryside boundaries (north and west) will be strengthened with 
hedgerow and tree planting. The Landscape Officer is concerned that the 
northern and western boundary with a 1m deep hedgerow is insufficient. 

Discussions are ongoing to provide additional tree planting to this 
boundary. The concept is to draw from the Suffolk Landscape with 
boundary trees present in the hedges creating views of small clusters of 
trees and houses on the horizon. As stated by Suffolk County Council 
Countryside and Environment Service the visual experience of plateau 
claylands 'is of open views that are only sometimes confined by hedges 
and trees. Slight changes in slope can have a profound effect on what 
and how much of the landscape can be seen and in the small valleys it is 
possible to find quite confined landscapes with intimate views. However 
the lasting impression is generally the wide, open views of arable land 
with small clusters of trees and houses on the horizon'. The additional 
tree planting would reinforce the visual experience of the Suffolk 
Landscape. It will also maintain and increase the stock of hedgerow trees 
and will reinforce the historic pattern of sinuous field boundaries. 

Along the southern edge the existing row of large Leyland Cypress are to 

Page 33



be removed and replaced. The Tree Officer has confirmed these trees are 
at the end oftheir useful life. To reduce them in height would likely lead to 
their deterioration. The replacement of these trees is acceptable and an 
appropriate species will be selected to provide screening for nearby 
properties but also comply with the requirements of network. 

The existing Common Beech, Sycamore, Lime and Willow along the 
southern boundary (trees 33 to 37) are to be retained. The Leyland 
Cypress will be removed between these trees which will improve their 
future condition. 

Existing properties along Station Road have reasonable planting within 
the rear gardens. The field maples and sycamore along this site boundary 
are to be retained. The majority of trees and hedgerow to be removed are 
of limited amenity quality and are affected by the buildings. Along the 
eastern boundary adjacent to the Industrial Units there will be additional 
planting with the rear gardens to soften the outlook of the industrial units. 

Within the site the scheme provides a tree lined avenue along the primary 
route and street trees to break up the street parking and parking mews. 
Concern has been raised that this may not be feasible. The applicant has 
advised that a tree-lined avenue within this space is achievable. 
Additional details will be submitted to address the Landscape Officer's 
concerns. A verbal update will be provided at Committee. 

Within the perimeter blocks additional planting will help soften the 
back-to-back views. The proposed dwellings also have small front 
gardens abutting the road. These elements form a green visual link 
through the development and aid with a spacious character suitable for a 
countryside edge. 

The Open Space ('Village Green') has been positioned to create a focal 
point when entering the site and also add to the spacious character. The 
Open Space includes the retention of the existing Copper Beech and 
additional planting to create a sense of enclosure. The area will provide 
the Junior Outdoor Play Space. 

The other open spaces to the entrance, pumping station and along the 
north boundary will include further feature tree to define the space and 
provide a focal point to the space. Furthermore these can create a 
comfortable outdoor space where the branch spread can create a ceiling 
effect. 

The applicant has agreed to additional planting to the north and west 
boundary, further feature trees and additional details regarding the tree 
lined avenue to confirm the scheme is feasible. The Landscape Officer 
and the applicant's Landscape Consultant are liaising with each other to 
secure the additional detail. The discussions will involve SCC Floods and 
Highways. The outcome of the discussions will be provided as a verbal 
update and additional details presented to Committee. 

Page 34



The landscaping scheme with these additional details will provide a 
visually attractive development that will function well as to accord with 
Policy GP1 of the Mid Suffolk Local Plan, CS5 of the Core Strategy and 
paragraph 58 of the NPPF. 

• Other Matters 

Concern has been raised from SCC Floods regarding the surface water 
drainage. Surface Water drainage is proposed to discharge via a gravity 
system to a newly constructed attenuation basin to the north of the site. 
SCC Floods and the applicant have agreed reduced flow rates and the 
details of the drainage scheme and the flow rates can be secured through 
Condition 7 of the Outline Planning Permission. 

There are a few Listed Buildings along Station Road. Due to the 
relationship between the development and these properties the proposal 
is not considered to cause harm the setting of this historical assets. 

Conclusion 

The combination of the appearance, layout, scale and landscaping create 
a development which functions well, provides a strong sense of place. It 
enhances and maintains the local character creating a safe and 
accessible environment. The development integrates well with the 
countryside edge drawing landscaping through the site and with the 
built-environment. 

The scheme will meet the housing needs of the area and provides high 
quality public space with legible layout as to encourage activity and use of 
the public footpaths and open space. It will not give rise to significant 
adverse impact on health and quality of life. The proposal is therefore of 
good design and accords with; policy SB2, GP1, HB1, H13, H14, H15, 
H16, H17, E4, and T9 of the Mid Suffolk Local Plan, policy CS5 and CS9 
of the Core Strategy, FC1 and FC1.1 of the Core Strategy Focused 
Review and paragraphs 32, 56-66 and 69, 70, 75 and 123 of the NPPF. 

RECOMMENDATION 

That authority be delegated to Professional Lead • Growth & Sustainable 
Planning Planning to approve the Reserved Matters (Appearance, Landscape, 
Scale and Layout) subject to the following conditions. 

• Accord with Arboricultural Report 

• Accord with Approved Plans and Documents (plans within the Bundle) 

• Restrict garages and parking spaces to plots 66-77 and 126-132 to be used 

Page 35



solely for parking vehicles 

Philip Isbell 
Professional Lead -Growth & Sustainable Planning 

APPENDIX A- PLANNING POLICIES 

Rebecca Biggs 
Planning Officer 

1. Mid Suffolk Core Strategy Development Plan Document and the Core Strategy 
Focused Review 

Cor5 - CSS Mid Suffolks Environment 
Cora - CS8 Provision and Distribution of Housing 
Cor9 - CS9 Density and Mix 
CSFR-FC1 -PRESUMPTION IN FAVOUR OF SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT 
CSFR-FC1.1 ·MID SUFFOLK APPROACH TO DELIVERING SUSTAINABLE 
DEVELOPMENT 
CSFR-FC2 -PROVISION AND DISTRIBUTION OF HOUSING 
CSFR-FC3 - SUPPLY OF EMPLOYMENT LAND 

2. Mid Suffolk Local Plan 

HB1 -PROTECTION OF HISTORIC BUILDINGS 
H17 -KEEPING RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT AWAY FROM POLLUTION 
GP1 - DESIGN AND LAYOUT OF DEVELOPMENT 
CLS -PROTECTING WILDLIFE HABITATS 
RT12 ·FOOTPATHS AND BRIDLEWAYS 
H14 -A RANGE OF HOUSE TYPES TO MEET DIFFERENT ACCOMMODATION 
NEEDS 
H15 - DEVELOPMENT TO REFLECT LOCAL CHARACTERISTICS 
H13 -DESIGN AND LAYOUT OF HOUSING DEVELOPMENT 
E4 -PROTECTING EXISTING INDUSTRIAL/BUSINESS AREAS 
T9 -PARKING STANDARDS 
T10 - HIGHWAY CONSIDERATIONS IN DEVELOPMENT 
RT1 -SPORTS AND RECREATION FACILITIES FOR LOCAL COMMUNITIES 
RT4 -AMENITY OPEN SPACE AND PLAY AREAS WITHIN RESIDENTIAL DEV'T 
RT11 -FACILITIES FOR INFORMAL COUNTRYSIDE RECREATION 
H16 -PROTECTING EXISTING RESIDENTIAL AMENITY 
H17 -KEEPING RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT AWAY FROM POLLUTION 
582 -DEVELOPMENT APPROPRIATE TO ITS SETTING 

3 Planning Policy Statements, Circulars & Other policy 

C0299 ·CIRCULAR 02/99: ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT ASSESSMENT 
NPPF - National Planning Policy Framework 

Page 36



il 
APPENDIX B- NEIGHBOUR REPRESENTATIONS 

Letters of representation have been received from a total of 9 interested parties. 

The following people objected to the application: 
 

 
 

 
 

 

The following people supported the application: 
 

The following people commented on the application: 
  

Page 37



This page is intentionally left blank



..1. 8 

--

Title: Committee Constraints 
Reference: 3918/15 

Site: St Edmunds Drive 
Elm swell 

MID SUFFOLK DISTRICT COUNCIL 
131 , High Street, Needham Market, IP6 SOL 
Telephone : 01449 724500 
email: customerservice@csduk.com 
www.midsuffolk.gov.uk 

Public rights of way 

Public rights of way 
'\' Footpath 
; Restricted Byway 
17 Bridleway 
~ Byway 

Listed Buildings 

Listed Buildings 

SCALE 1 :2500 
Reproduced by permission of 

Ordnance Survey on behalf of HMSO. 
@Crown copyright and database right 2016 

Ordnance Survey Licence number 100017810 

Date Printed : 13/04/2016 

Page 39



~!.!ItS 

.Qg, _ __.__H---1 

Oosat>llon 0..0. 

Station Road, Elm swell --]' Site Location -~ 
Plan _ 

1 
~======================~ ~ 

Taylor Wimpey East Anglla j 
~ Houso,l<a'npoon W.y. Buy St Ednuldo, -IP327AA } 
Toi:012&4173800Wobwww.~.co.IA i 

m ·- I I I u "l " r--~ ~~ 

~ 
_[) 

P
age 40



J 

C~-J . 
Page 41



t liJ 

AFFORDABLE HOUSING LEGEND: 

• 

CENOTES AFFORDABlE HOUSING 
DWELUNGS • CRENTEO TENURE) 

• 

CENOTES AFFORDABlE HOUSING 
- DWELLINGS • (SHARED OWNERSHIP) 

Station Road, Elmswell 

Affordable Housing 
Layout 

Toylof Wimpey East Anglia 
C....Hoi-. I(~W,..IU)'S.~ ..,._P»fAA 
TW.I)l26<1113800W..-.~oo.llll 

~ 
p 

P
age 42



Page 43



23 

Page 44



Proposed Residential Development- Station Road, Elmswell 
Character Area Detail - Station Road Frontage - CA 1 

~~ 
Site Layout Extract Artist's Impression 

Street Scene- Plots 1 -4 

Drawing No: 20819/CAD/SRF/CA1 

Door Styles 

~,.~ 
'·[·f~]~ll I ,I Iii' 
I ... ~-.11 1 

I I •I• 

~ 

--•n~~wlm 

l)t»t\ \uppotl~ otf --
-4-hnrtltt~tranct'door 

Taylor 
W1rnpey 

Window Styles 

o..-
btk'~~.td 

-~ -

Bricks Roof Tiles Door Colour 

lbstockfr¥..... AedlaM HNthlal'ld IG G~ 
OldeYII"90Stock Autumo""'"llol ---

~<1.\lf llS 

I -·-- ·- ,- ._ • 

lv 
f' 

Plann"'!i Coorro~ 
Received 

It~ 11K 

P
age 45



Proposed Residential Development - Station Road , Elmswell 
Character Area Detail - Tree Lined Avenue 

Site Layout Extract 

Drawing No: 20819/CADfTLAICA2 

FuiOoor~ 

c.._ 

6-f"MMt(M.nc. 

"""' 

Door Styles 

...... c:........ -
,._.._ 
PcwNndStoneCllt 

1 """""""" --
Hori.tontal-&at .,__ 

)<OWMdttp --CII 
...... ado 
-ht.ct 

c....., c-. -

Window Styles 

Fbt·Too>lHdtlle<t 

""'""' 
C~(f1ii'I'NftC 
Window 

Bricks 

Dormer Styles 

~ ----=--- -
' - . --=;;" 

1UJE11 
Roofnles 

... __ 
Natw1l -·-lltd f~11ndPIItl1 llti 

Taylor 
W1mpey 

P1ann•ng Control l 
Received 

1 11Molltll1l 

.. - - 1 
Render Boarding Door Colour 

Vftb@f~ ~lilrocflt -- """' ...... Mklnight...,lt 

IGGIIP 
Rble<olour IIM:k 

... _ 
l•lrnotll 

~IM6clllfd V.~t~ 
IGGRP 
Abftcolour Afd Pt.infltl 8rkkRt<l 

~ 

P
age 46



Proposed Residential Development- Station Road, Elmswell 
Character Area Detail - Community Green - CA3 

OPEN SPACE & 
PlAY MEA 

Drawing No: 20819/CAD/CG/CA3 

Door Styles 
,, 

~ I \ 

~ 'I 

......... -9,_ . ~ 
1 :Zp.anel.nn« . .... 

..... """""" 
(llf'IOP'IOttgabn -... 
.... ,...«'Cna -· 

Window Styles 
........,__ -~;;,-L 1fT 

·~··.JJ.l.i~ 'r--=·-~'1- ·, 
Am&Ctalb , I R <>-·-- Ef3~! 

~c..-

I !!1 ).1 I I~ i 
ll±=-~-=U -==1 

"""""'"""'"" .,.....,_ 
""'-

Bricks 

1:1Aoctlfkt1M 
MUlti(~ 

Dormer Styles 

Roof Tiles 

---1 0 Slit• Gtf')' lll•s 

Taylor 
Willlpey 

Render Door Colour 

"'"-' Monocouctw IG Glf1 
( ream f:lbrec.oblt lbtk 

Rtclbnd Sl.n C.l't)' Web« Monoc;ou(:M 
~TIIt1 Chait 

J0 
G\ 

P
age 47



Proposed Residential Development- Station Road, Elmswell 
Character Area Detail - Countryside Edge - CA4 

Window Styles 

----•• , CMM\otrlt -

Street Scene

Drawing No: 20819/CAD/CSEJCA4 

Dormer Styles Bricks Roof Tiles Render 

~~ Jllodllftd~ ....,~ 

Nftnl Rtd F.,..l.tnd Pant•t.l Cotni~ 

""""" "'"""'' 

__ .. 
"""""" 

Retitw flusdt l'fd w.b« Monotoudtt 

-- '-'9ftt llluo 

Wfbtr MoftOCioutht -

Taylor 
W1mpey 

Boarding Door Colour 

.............. 
Hardl~lll\k Sol.,.,. 

IGfi/P 
Rbl.cobur 8lldt 

IGGIIP 
r~rlbt 

IGGP.P 
f1~rGr9tf\ 

Plann1ng Control 
Received 

f8 N1R 1111 

~ 

P
age 48



Proposed Residential Development- Station Road, Elmswell 
Character Area Detail - Core Housing - CA5 

Door Styles Window Styles Dormer Styles 

=~~~~,mr::~m =JH!wl 
IJ~~' '-~ 

Drawing No: 20819/CAD/CH/CAS 

Bricks 

-c--

-s.d'.c.dO.\ 
!Oou<llnc>l 

RoofTiles 

-.....--..~ 
lO~fniT~ 

__ ....., 
--
-_,......., ........ 

~,,, ,,~ 

Taylor 
Wrmpey 

Render Door Colour 

~lotOtiOCI:Iudw 

c-. 

--o. .. -

....... --
IGGM - ...... 

I Planning Control 
R1t~ivt'!ij 

.-.:.·_~~ I - --.. 

~ 

P
age 49



Station Road Frontage 
Artist's Impression - Plots 1 - 4 

n 

Hawk End Lane 
Black Fascias & Bargeboards I 
Black 4 Panel Entrance Door I 
Chimney 

Station Road 
Black Fascias & Bargeboards 

Drawing No: 20819/ART/SRF/01 

Artist's Impression 

Station Road 
Black Fascias & Bargeboards I All 
Bar Windows I Chimney I Plain Tiles 

-----------------,~==--. -

New Road 
All Bar Windows I Chimney 

Taylor 
W1n1pey 

......... .. -
Church Road 
Red Brick I Chimney I Plain Tiles 

Home Field 
Black Window Cills I Pentice 
Boards I Chimney I Plain Tiles 

~ 
__() 

P
age 50



Tht-·-~-· a focal pol1t tor 1M 
Ktl4ltl"\t " " pt'opoted thM 
......... be.~M'Mbr 
____ ... 
... ~ ......... 
O(,...,fi<:WitrMidlnQIIndi._S 

~·UIII9"' canopy 

Trf'es c.n l"A~ef!Ct lfvough the 
key 6netl to ICW"J'' • green _...._ .. _,..,.. 
.. tcf'temt. Men • .,.,. 

·~- ...... tpew\ted l'louwlg ..... duek).ttloaf!:iM 
lllU!ttlg ...... ~ 

• 
r..,. • .,.~tolllit1lltl 
Y"l.a$ towerds t.-y #t.l,.ltet 1 .• 
the copper bHcfl. ~.k,h lil'llilll 
MMI..,...,IOf'et'llpeot.A ___ ...... 
... ...... algwhWMIO 

bec:or'ntaJifOf"'~t~..-.tf~Murt'ln 
tll• v,._, 

~·a'\~11!'1 
~l:illtl'lfrd.swel'llt 

---~tiQf'ltl 01 ¥-lit IMind ~ IdOl ot 
1M aile Will bt ~ 'flle 
~~I'WOd\elr'llr'k. 

wa.aCU"f'eMt)'ahellil.-.d ............... .._. 
~----20V.na..t"Dii 
... ANet_..a~ll\\irnO 
4!1_,t~Q JUt'1'01Jt\41'1Q ~t~fpltN 

..nl!IP 

Thtlfct ill 1ft opportUI'IfY to ereate a pot•IJW tfans~n 

be~~ "!ten an11 rur11 edQ& 10 EniPNII. lr\ tM pest 

--·-...... lalfOrt~"'""'-' " •nowpi'OpO!Iiedtobea~...,. 'Whic:AilmcAirt 

- .. ., ... "rilo9t adgo --

The e>roc»~ed oe~Jopmen1 J8 sm.at~r .n aoete Md 1•1lkl to 
iicnoountht'lg ,esidenlllll .. nd use t"'W:t fUt1hfot ACrM"'I'!g ef'WJ 
~·"Q..v.prOVI!i!. ~edgp 

PlAY AREA 

OPEN SPACE WTH W!L.Ilfl.OII>'£R DRIFT 
....,l.:...;:..,___..j 

lllllllll\1\ TREELINE 

* EXISTING FEATURE TREE 

lllllllJI Ft:HCE AHO HEOG£ (NORTH) 

(Jv 
lllll!lllll HEOGE (NORTH) 

0 
11111111 1 HEOGE (Y.£ST) 

ODU~lilll CONIFERS TO BE REPlACED !SOUTM) 

111111\111 TREES IN GARDENS 

IIDIIUI~III (NtiANCE EXISTING PlANTING 

REALIGNED FOOTPATH 

1•trJ"""" 
N 

rr~u ~=-=:o:;::.;',£6 ({) 

P
age 51



~,...,._~~ul~ 
!!ill 

~lt,y, ' 
' 0<-lf>:ls 

I 

Page 52



Exemplar Front Garden for Property on Main Spine Road (plot 14) Exemplar Front Garden for Terraced Property (plot 24) 

P14 0 

9No. Vib tin @ 3/m 
3m HEDGE TYPE 01 

II o 
P13 

Former Grampian Foods Site, Elmswell 

c1J >26 

~ 

P
age 53



Exemplar Front Garden for Property off Public Open Spa~e (plot 155) Location Plan 

3No. ChoAzt 

~ 

Former Grampian Foods Site, Elmswell 

I 

STA'OOH I\OAO INDliST'R.W. EST.\Tl 

~t<Jt., ••. ~$1'~-. 
""Ds>o' 

EUmff I!USINfSS I'AAK 

II 
! 

~ 

P
age 54



Exemplar Front Garden for Boundary Property (plot 72) Exemplar Front Garden for Property on Main Avenue (with verge) (plot 143) 

1212No. PLANTS @ 6/m 
202m NATIVE HEDGE MIX 01 

4No. Heb Met 

Former Grampian Foods Site, Elmswell 

cA; I 
' 

P
age 55



DETAIL 01. ROAD VERGE 
SCALE 1:20 

'3Cl!?lt5 

NOTES:· 
G) ~LAYER. 5m OO'Tii, Of GRADtOWA.*D S!mf (2QnmGAOOE). 

@@ GUYING SYSTEMS: STANDARD AND HEAVY STANDARD TREES I;'ClOO£ FCR2 N0.100141 IJI.WElER, 2MHOHG, TREESTJJ<ES 
PER TREE (HEIGHT ACCOOIJNl TO TREE SIZE AND HEIGHT 1H:NE GROOfiD TO BE ONE TliiRD THE HEIGHT OF THE TREE~ 
CROSS-SAACE, SACI<Ct.OTH TIE AND SPACER. INCLUDE FOR FlEXJBlf HOSE WATERING TUBE FITTED AROUND TOP Of THE 
ROOT BALL, WITH 2NO. END CAPS AT BOTH ENDS. EXTRA HEAVY AND SEMI MATURE TREES ROOTBALL TO BE SECURED WITH 
TIMBER FRAME OF 4No. 75 x 25 x 600nm PRESSURE TREATED BOARDS A TI ACHED TO THE DEAD MEN WITH MilO STEEL WIRE 
(8-101Ml DIAMffiR). TO BE TIGHTENED WITH TURNBUCKLES AT TOP. 

Q) PIT TO BE FllED Willi EXISTlNG OR II.IPORTED TOPSOIL TO B.S. 3882:2015 ~NECESSARY AND SPECifiED. ENSURE FINISHED 
lfVEI.S OF TOP SOft. AAE 6m BELOW THE TOP OF PIT. ENSURE BASE AND SIDES OF PIT AAE FORl<Eil OVER TO ENSURE 
AWJUATE DRAINAGE. AMELKJRATE SCI. WITH ll UTRES Of tmi'EAT BASED COI.fOST PER LINEAR UETRE ANO 1500 Of 
'tiEUTROCOTE' StOW RELEASE FERlliZER ~TED MD TOP 100rml Of TOPSCt..1200 x1200 x!ISlm. TREE PIT 
~ STAIIJARD 00 lllll.n STEll Tm PITS lemA~ X lmll X &SaiM. HEAVY STO 1m PITS lmlll X lmllol X 90010.1, 
EXru HEAVY STAHDSRD AliD SOIIIATURE TREE PITS tmll X I mill X 95CYI 

CD PROPOSED TREE~ !Wis'Frans For:aile'. 

Q) PERFORATED PVC WATE~G PIPE (6)rm DIAMETER) INCLUDi«l END CAP. TO BE WRAPPED IN '1ff·TEX" AGROTEXTILE 1Y0VEH 
PLASTIC FABRIC AVAIABI.E FROM HY·TEX l TO. TEL (01233) 120097 OR EOUAI. ANO APPROVED. TO BE COLED AROUND TOP OF 
ROOTBAI..l, WITH OPEN END foS CLOSE AS POSSIBLE TO TRUNK. 

(9 EDWARDS OF BRANDON BAPJ< MULCH (TEL 01842 813555) TO A DEPTH OF SOmm. USE 75MM OF BARK MUlCH IF A W«l$CAPE 
MEMBRANE IS NOT INCI.OOED (SEE ITEM 7~ 

CD 'HY·TEX COVERTEX' LANDSWE MEMBRANE AVAU.BLE FROI.I HY·TEX UK l TO (TB.. 01422-72009~ 22m SOUAAE CUT AROIJND 
TREESTEM.OOWATERPIPE. TO BEPEGGEDL'4AT300nmCEHTRESWITH HYTEXMETAL tro'S,:mm LONG. OR WITH 
I'IOODEH PEGS OEP9DNG lfON GRIXHl COODmONS OR SII.GAR NIJ APPfOt'ED. 

Q) ROOT PROTECTOISAA!mt REROOT61XV1000: TOO<IlESS 2srm. AVW&f FROM GREEIW.F, HAYWWJWAY, HASTJ«>S, 
EAST SUSSEX, TEL: 01424 717197 OR OT!t:R AlllAPPRMD BYlPA. TO BE INSTAlLED BY~ CONTRACTOR ON 
~Of KERBS AND ROAnRJOTPATH. 

LENGTH Of VERGEIPLANTlNG BED TO BE NO LESS THAN Sm. 

GENEAA. NOTES:· 

· Jil VEGETATIVE MATERIAL, UTIER 00 OTHER 
DEBRIS IS TO BE REM<MD AND THE BOTTOII NI'D 
SI>ES Of THE TREE PITS !.lUST BE FalKED OVER 
TO ENSURE ADEOUA TE DRAINAGE 
• 8ACXf1U. TOPSOLIN 151M! lAYERS WITH SOL 
COMPACTED TO 1.>2.0 MEGA PASCEI.S. 
·WATER IN WIT1i 50 UTRES Of WATER PER TREE 
V~TH!N FOUR HOURS OF PLANTING. 
• DECOIJPACT SURROUN~NG SUBSOil TO BREAK 
UP HARD PANS AND ENSURE FREE DRAINAGE.. 
• 00 NOT SCALE FROM THIS DRAWING. 
• lillliMENSIONS ARE IN MW.IETERS. 
· lil DIMENSIONS ARE TO BE CIECKED ON SITE. 
·(C~ BLAKE~TESLTD2016 

(/) 
Q) 

E 
ro 
' 

OIV 

Blake 
HEADomce 

,._ ..... HII __ ._~0010talt 

T .. 101111) mi16FIC4MI1}2'nl4 
F , • .._CIIIWW~ 

lANDSCAPE ARCHITECTURE o ARBORICUlTURE o ECOLOGY 

(;v 
lJ) 

P
age 56



DETAIL 02. TREE PIT TO PLOTS 44/45 
SCALE 1:20 

~ 
SdJII<x:lllo>d .... 

-Pibl-~ -

-PMfarpmg-pjl 

StllirH"' IOCQN 

~-- - -. 
--~ ------~5c--11· • %f1s 

NOTES:· 
CD DRAINAGE lAYER. 50IIm DEPTH, OF GRADED WASHED SHINGlE (2CM GAUGE~ 

@@ GUYING SYSTEMS: STANDARD AND HEAVY STANDARD TREES INClUDE FOR 2 NO. 100MM DIAMETER, 2M+ LONG, TREE STAKES 
PER TREE (HEIGHT ACCOROING TO TREE SIZE AND HEIGHT ABOVE GROUND TO BE ONE THIRD THE HEIGHT OF THE TREE), 
CROSS-BRACE, SACKCLOTH TIE AND SPACER. INCtliOE FOR FLEXIBLE t()Sf WATERING TUBE FITTED AROUND TOP OF THE 
ROOT BAll, WITH 2NO. END CAPS AT BOTH ENDS. EXTRA HEAVY AND SEMI MATURE TREES ROOTBALL TO BE SECURED WITH 
TIMBER FRAME OF 4No. 75 x 25 x 6IXm PRESSURE TREATED BOARDS A TIACHED TO THE DEAD MEN WITH MilD STEEL WIRE 
(S.10mm DIAMETER~ TO BE TIGHTENED WITH TURNBUCKlES ATTOP. 

CD PIT TO BE FlU.ED WITH EXISTING OR IMPORTED TOPSOIL TO B.S. 3S82:2015 AS NECESSARY AND SPECIFIED. ENSURE FINISHED 
LEVELS OF TOP SOrt. ARE 65nm BELOW THE TOP OF PIT. ENSURE BASE AND SIDES OF PIT ARE FORKED OVER TO ENSURE 
ADEQUATE DRAINAGE. AMELIORATE SOil WITH 30 LITRES OF NON-PEAT BASED COMPOST PER LINEAR LtETRE AND 1500 OF 
'NEUTROCOTE' SLOW RELEASE FERTILIZER INCORPORATED INTO TOP 100mm OF TOPSOil.1200 x 1200 x 95CM. TREE PIT 
DIMENSIONS: STANDARD AND IIULTI STEll TREE PITS 1000MM X 100).11,1 X SOOMM, HEAVY STO TREE PITS 1®.1M X 1000MM X OOOMM, 
EXTRA HEAVY STANDSRD AND SEIIIIIATURE TREE PITS 1200MM X 1200WJ X95(J.11.4 

CD PROPOSED TREE l')rus ca/leryana 'Chanticleer'. 

Q) PERFORATED PVC WATERING PIPE (601Ml DIAMETER) INCLUDtNG END CAP. TO BE WRAPPED IN 'HY-TEX" AGROTEXnl E WOVEN 
PCASTIC FABRIC AVAilABlE FROM HY-TEX L TO. TEL (01233) 'T'lfm7 OR EQUAL AND APPROVED. TO BE COILED AROOND TOP OF 
ROOTBAU.. WITH OPEN END AS CLOSE AS POSSIBLE TO TRUNK. 

Q) EDWARDS OF BRANDON BARK MULCH (TEL 01842 813555) TO A DEPTH OF 50mm. USE 75MM OF BARK MULCH If A LANDSCAPE 
MEMBRANE IS NOT INClUDED (SEE ITEM 7). 

CD 'HY·TEX COVERTEX" LANDSCAPE MEMBRANE AVAILABLE FROM HY·TEX UK L TO (TEL 01422-72009~ 22m SQUARE CUT AROUND 
TREE STEM AND \'lATER PIPE. TO BE PEGGED IN AT 300mm CENTRES WITH HYTEX METAL HOOPS, 3ffum LONG, OR WITH 
WOODEN PEGS DEPENDING UPON GROOND CONDITIONS OR SlMLAR AND APPROVED. 

Q) ROOT PROTECTIOO BARRIER. REROOT 600: THICKNESS 2mm, AVAILABLE FROM GREENLEAF, HAYWOOD WAY, HASTINGS, EAST 
SUSSEX, TEL: 01424 717797 OR OTHER AND APPROVED BYlPA. TO BE INSTALLED 8Y MAIN CONTRACTOR ON CONSTRUCTION 
OF KERBS AND ROADIFOOTPATH. 

c ... 

LENGTH OF VERGEJPLANTING BED TO BE NO LESS THAN 5m. 
12 APR 21:16 

GENERAL NOTES:-

· ALL VEGETATIVE MATERIAL, UTIER AND OTHER 
DEBRIS IS TO BE REMOVED ANO THE BOTTOM AND 
SlOES OF THE TREE PITS MUST BE FORKED OVER 
TO ENSURE ADEQUATE DRAINAGE 
-BACKFU TOPSOil. IN 150MM lAYERS WITH SOL 
COMPACTED TO 1.5-2.0 MEGA PASCELS. 
-WATER IN WITH 50 UTRES OF WATER PER TREE 
WITHIN FOUR HOURS OF PLANTING. 
-OECOMPACT SURROUNDtNG SUBSOil TO BREAK 
UP HARD PANS AND ENSURE FREE DRAINAGE.. 
·DO NOT SCALE FROM THIS DRAWING. 
-All DIMENSIONS ARE IN MILLIMETERS. 
·All DIMENSIONS ARE TO BE CHECKED ON SITE. 
• (C~ES BLAKE ASSOCIATES LTD 2016 

ACJ<NO'ME!JGED •• ·-··· ···-······ 
OA:E ................... . 

1~- I:~·JN F? I~M~CDAOliNC~LA~~G)~.... I 
we., cwc.mu 
tA't\.M\IMCFffJSf»QM ntEEPITCEfA&.IHlO:so:TlNCIISCN'tiG·OTM 

(/) 
Q) 

E co Blake 
' HEAD OfF1CE 

noe-e.on. .... -.~-.oo•o9QJ< 
Tot(Q17J7) :ml1Gf11C(Q17J7)2<ne4 

~.....---...-
LANDSCAPE ARCH ITECTURE o ARBORICULTURE o ECOLOGY 

(JJ 
()\ 

P
age 57



I 

~ft/ • ~
., 

..... ~ ~ 
G9. FELL TREES DUE TO g/ . ._...,. 
FORESEEABLE PRESSURES TO G . 
PRUNE OR REMOVE. SEE 
ARBORICULTURAL IMP~CT 
ASSESSMENT FOR FURTHER 
INFORMATION. 

AREA WITHIN CEZ REQUIRING 
REMOVAL OF EXISTING ROAD 
SURFACE AND SUBSEQUENT 
LANDSCAPING: SEE DRAWING 
JBA 15-174 TP02 FOR POSITION 
OF PROTECTIVE FENCING 
DURING REMOVAL OF HARD 

RFACING. 

~\ 

!'--~., 
~I· 
,:?'~ .~:r~ 
-.--:/ ,·~ · · ) 
~ 

'31J'i/IS 

~ I l .._---~--- KEY 
~· ,'-... ~0111'1 .......... -..... .. --. 

""" ... LSL~ ... _....,.__ , 

' 

~ 

I 

~ ................... _,. 
~-·----·-
f""'7\'"1 .. ~·-·-..... t..:::.J--
o::.:~c-· .......... 
,;---, .... ~,.._........, ..... 
~ .... --
GdJ =';.:;:;-"' 
~~ ....................... .. 
~-
rr- ..... t.IO'-•IJIII.-w.,.._ 
~---
~ ... •C.C ............. ... 
l!.......!..J....-.......... .... 

0 =::a--::.":!"'.::;,_. --~ =~==-..=.·.-.. -=-......................... 
Ei·-

1 

P
age 58



AREA WITHIN CEZ REQUIRING 
REMOVAL OF EXISTING ROAD 
SURFACE AND SUBSEQUENT 
LANDSCAPING: SEE DRAWING 
JBA 15-17 4 TP02 FOR POSITION 
OF PROTECTIVE FENCING 
DURING REMOVAL OF HARD 
SURFACING. 

... , ............ ' ._,_, .. ______ .....,. ....... ,_ 

...................... ~ ............ .. . '"" .. ..... ,..,.. ..... _ .. .,.... ___ ...... , . . ................ ...... 

~-.. 

0J~. 
'"JTl -1.~~~. m1, '-!.. _./ ' . ~~ 

~!d:-- ·"-\) 

KEY 
~•v "~ I 

r7:'\"il IJilllleT••GIGio~C~:t:w ...... ll.....,_., 
~-!1)7Jtt2 .... .... 

r?';""1 1M·C.O,....,I"'d-u:LJ.,.-. 

[[] =:-:,;:-· 
0:::---...., ....... 
~ AltltiCIZ ...... AICII~fttd'a,._.• 
t.!.:..:.!.1WIIIIli1 .................... .... 

~ =.=-~=::::-:::= 
~ IJiftlo&!lonltldODfi!MICb11101b. 

~ . 
a--

P
age 59



Page 60



NB- LEVELS ARE INDICATIVE 
ONLY 

Notes & Key 

A I UPtlf*d~~..-.._~.,._. 

~. 1 ~ ... _ 
~T-

Station Road, Elmswell 

Indicative Street Scenes 
(Sheet 2 of 3) 

Taylor Wompoy East Angtia 

t; 

co I ot.03.1t 

c ... ..,._, K.....,.onW"'f, 8urfSI ~$Aok, IP$2 JAA 
Tt«01201 '1"*»Wftl-.~..co..-

I -~··-vn• ~- ~~;""' I ~ 20819/SS/02 

P
age 61



Page 62



I 
I F 

-. ........_ 

( ........ ~, 

Page 63



I • 

J' . 
• a ' • • t 

~ I • I 
a I ' • 
I pi f 

' II I 

II" . ~ :ttH!, 
¥ tj: li 11 

~I ! 1hHI 

4--3 

Page 64



4-LJ- -
1

1

: , : 
§ 

t ~ =I ... 
Q) :s ~ c • I A ~ 
Ill 0 <( 

I 
E :o:: n. 

~ 
I ~ I ~ :5 

Oi 

01 -g <( ~ ffi i :a 
0 Cl nJ ~ I i I II I ~ ~ _J ~ , ~ 2 

II II ~ ~ ~ g ' . ~ I I 

~ I I I I 
I Ill I 

z 
l< 

I ~· I a 

II - +-
j , 

f 
' I I I "' • I 

I I 

I 
I I 

/ 

Page 65



REFUSE STRATEGY LEGEND: 

• • 81H CXJI.UCTJON POINT 

~-·- . ==~~<>'='~!~ 
P04NT 

• 
, 8IN T AJ<fN TO KERBSIOE COllfCllON POINT 

FORCQU..icnoN 

-+:
()} 

_l _l _l 
" _____ .......,._ 

~ ~-- - ~ --- Station Road, Elmswett 

-- Refuse Strategy 
l Layout 
I [ . l Ta ,.,~£.-Mcllf i '1'I!Yior ---............. - ... ~ WlmJ>e;y' t•o•*n-- -.......-..- • 

6 -~-·.. ,_ 1'''' ~1 ' 1- )l .... M 1-~ ., 20819/RSUOt A . 

P
age 66



t STOREY HEIGHTS LEGEND: 

• • O{H()T(S 1 STOREY 8...-.DINO 

• • OEWOTES 2 STOREY BlADING 

• · otMOTfS 2.6 $TOA!Y 8lLOING 

D . IXHOTES 3 STOREY BlADING 

..:.,_ .. ___ ...,._ 

Station Road, Elmswell 

+
()' 

Storey Heights 
Layout 

.======== I 
(~ ,...,.........,."._ l 
~ ~-- ........... '-..... -' .. . -·~ .. ~------- . i 

l -~ ·-·~ r-1~"1 ' 1- )' ( ..... .,. Go\ 1-.... k.C 20819/SHU01 A i 

P
age 67



CONSTRUCTION MEnlOD STATEMENT 
Pt"""'"""flar1dna; 
h ~-Sh()pcf'al¥n wllbeloealed._...h •c.,..._.;.,.....,.l ... bethe~otlbe .. 
.,..,.... .. ....., .. cepodyOI'ldMRNihal....,......,.... .... ,ocon • lile!IK:MW,_,_.,.-..,. ..... --......,,......., 
fM tocldn9 and~ ol plod Oftd mate.WI ... - VfiiiiMOit.,. .... wiHnh !WOPOM"d ... ~ .... 
...... ,..,.,...., ollhl> Sle Manaoerto ~ ... 
OC*....,.oncl ... welhale:dslngr ...... cn ftDflfle~ed. 

t:::; oncl plont. be Jtof.ct 01'1 ....... 0 tll(\lfed OtM. 

~Nr~qtoc-.r. 
A monuol J.t•wath a tood tweeper wtl be CI'IOioble on th. 

p~o~tl l dlt! IYPP'f!!lon; 
Air ,olulol'l (d~,;st control) wm btl odch>u.-d at~ I'- sh vto fhe l.iM of d~o~tt thuh, domplng down oM sldp caYen. Sh 
OJ*Otv.t wtl be ll'lltt~ote:ted to keep to ptepca't'd surtoc: .. 
t!KI'I 01 roods Clrlcl foolpoh.. 

I!IS)'!Nalcllpo!al of wolfe re-s!Aiq from d!fl'!oC!IIIon. !h cttora!!St •ft"'CC•~ 
,.,wcnte~O! portal the projed.~IW'OV9I'ItMe~aiJoundalont. ond~_.IM 

rWMd • lor 0! r-.osO!'IObflr poclca'tH ........_. .. MOte "-' ....._ Oftd • Nett~. ecc:eu malertall genetCIIed ONIIt 
..... . ~~~om .. ., ... ~.Oftdtat"'••locoto.fl~ ............... ~ .... 

t \ 

f!!l!:c!t! ~ toa.....&.s-q=C!tOf 
........ r.ndl'll ..... ~,-illdlcCIIIIdOft ... ~ 
........ .... bollndclryto..-.ct.,Y .............. ~ .................... ~ ..... 

• ..,..,.......,_.,~~l!al\j 
1CI¥fOr,.....,~OWOSM~polcyc~W,IKOftOffftW.0.. 
~~afolleottet ...... IK....., 
~ .. comphoShWoste~f'bt 
lrftchdng~woskcontenoncfhoa:ordofn._.........._ 

fM Sh WotM Manasr-manll'loft.,.... bit~ ......-y' lfiOMtlt "*"'a Mf sc:~ to cmeu the PfOCJMS CMd o •• 
Pfoor•u report wll M proclvud Ng.,_.NI"QQ wan~ Cottl Olld r.cyclng Jat.s.. 

WOfkii'IA !\Ow (fl!Nerles wottt colectloft: 
Worldl'lg hovrs ore 1:1)()..4:30 unleu Oft'lefwtle aar-Hd with tn. 
L~COI rlon!Mg AtAhorly. 0.1¥erles and wotle eolecloft 
wiiiOke ~· WINI'IIMM 1lrnes. 

Nfl!t mtthod ,..,Moments reonUNtiiOn no1a.e Wv ... ) 
s;h ociMIIft ftlcJt a.me .. ceul'te nokt arellel pwmtt.d 

to ptOCHd uMII odtquot. ~ "'*""'" or.~ 
by lh MOnO~Menl a communleoted to~ woA:-. --2lJo!lbli 
tO&t..,..wiiM~toc~ ... .;tta~ty..,.._.M~•......., 

CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT&. 
PHASING LEGEND: 

~-_I __ OfNOTIS rtOtOSfD 1U1LD IOIJtl (DWIWNGS 
»tAU TYPICAllY If OEUVflfD AT A tAft Of 
HPIIY!.\1) 

.t~----- DfNOTIS P'IOIOS!D PIOOUCTtON 11AiftC 
10\ITt TO $1ft COMM)VNO AND DlOtCATfO .. $11'1 OPEIATTV! CAl PAU:ING AltA 

~----
DINOTU PIOPOUO U.lU TlA,IC IOUTI 
TO SALES CfNTRf. SHOW HOME AND 
DIDICAUD VlSITOI CAl PAll 

DfNOTlS 6lt I'IGH Hflt.t.S SfCUmY ffNOHG 
TO SIT! COMPOUND l'ftw.m:l 

m DlNOm oooo 01 PfOf'ORD 1m 
COMIOUN'O AtlA 

D O£NOfU fXTBff Of~ SAliS CDnft 
.umSHOWIOOMf 

II 
DDIOl!S txmn Of fOIMAl Alf.4 01 C»IN 
SI'ACl 10 U: CONSTIUCTfD ALONGSI'Df n1l 
SUttOUNCMNG IW.J rotM (nMIHG TO II 
AGIWtwmt l1A) 

m OOfOru OOftriT 0' ltiCIC STOU.Gl & 
COH.SfiUCT10H CAl PAiriNG 

II OfNOflS PIOfOU:D SHOW HOUSI 

II OfNOTES PIOPOSlD wtS CfNTif 

A ~fiO IH~WITHI.ATEST~INGI.AYQIJT, co ·- - .... ... _ 
Station Road, Elmswell 

~, ... Construction Management & 
Phasing Layout 

-t
._J 

01.01.1. ... 
I 
l 
I 
! 
I 
I 

[~ Tll)b--Eas1~ } - c:.~~~ .................. .., .. e..v.. ....... ,..... t 
r« cn*meoo ... ~......, J 

6 -,.-... ,_,OCT>Ot$ I' ,- )' h_.., .,. _..,laK 20819/CMPU01 A ! 

P
age 68



UJ 
l9 
<( 
t
z 
0 
0::: 
LJ_ 

0 
<( 
0 
0::: 

z 
0 
t
<( 
t
V) 

• • 

<( 
u.J 
a: 
<( 

a: 
u.J 
1-u 
<( 
a: 
<( 
:c 
u 

4 2 

Page 69



FRONT ELEVATION SIDE ELEVATION 

BW2 

&03 

GROUND FLOOR PLAN FIRST FLOOR PLAN 

House Type PA34 (Gosford)- Plots 2 & 3 

REAR ELEVATION 

SIDE ELEVATION 

t 
i 
l 
a 
f 
~ 
~ 

! 
j 
f ( I ""fTa 1 Sca1r. l 1:1oocA3 1Delo: l 3o.o9.1s t 

1---1-------------t--t- ---1 Slte Nome: Station Road, Elmswell I ~or o-.~>y: l ca I CI1doc~by: 1 sPL i 
w M IRev: f 

House Type PA34 Jl Tllj'lorWimpoyEMIAIV!o E PA34/SRF/01 - i 
Station Road Frontage Character Area !:~.:?'::'.:._,_...,,..,. o~or-0~ o-.! Ori!Wing llllo: 

Int. I 0..0 Deoa1pllon R ... 

P
age 70



WCHfN 

~A5T 

fAMILY 

LOUNGE 

fifO 3 

FLAN FIRST FLOOR FLAN 

House Type PT 43 (Langdale) - Plots 1 & 4 

·- Station Road, Elmswell 

Dr-.glllo: 
House Type PT43 

Rov o.atplaft IN. I o. Station Road Frontage Character Area 

SIDE ELEVATION 

~ 
T ... Wlmpoy Eaollv'flla 
c.--....~ .... ...,. .............. 11»,... 
, ..... 17llll.-.:et..-77llle ---

~ 

t 
i 
I • f 
I 
I 

I 

I 
~ -1""'0" 1- 1 »""jl I I 'L i 

I Rew: I 
- ·' 

-- Ji p ~o T-o c--.;, o-- ! 

P
age 71



UJ 
::::> 
z 
UJ 

> 
<( 

0 
UJ 
z 
.....J 

UJ 
UJ 
0::: 
~ 
• • 

<( 
UJ 
0::: 
<( 

0::: 
UJ r-u 
<( 
0::: 
<( 
:c 
u 

51.. 

Page 72



FRONT ELEVATION S IDE ELEVATION REAR ELEVATION 

DINING LOUNGe 

GROUND FLOOR PLAN FIRST FLOOR PLAN S IDE ELEVATION 

House Type PA22 (Belford) - Plots 178, 179, 180 & 181 

~ 

i 
I 
l 
a 
! 
~ 
~ 

! 
I 
f 

( I 'r 1 Scale: I 1:100@A3 , Dew. , 06.10.15 ! 
1-+------------t--r----1 stt•Nomo: Station Road, Elmswell 1 T~y1or Dr8'Mlby'l cG J a-edby: 1 sPL ~ 

House Type PA22 II~~ ~ PA22/TLA/01 r~- l 
Tree Lined Avenue Character Area E"o.:ESE?=._.,,_,..,,..,. a=-·<yOTO<Ider Qeoo.trucdon o-ulll ! 

lnt I Dole Desctlp4lon Rev. 

Drowlng 1lde: 

P
age 73



FRONT ELEVATION SIDE ELEVATION 

!lED 2 

6W3 

GROUND FLOOR. PLAN FIRST FLOOR. PLAN 

House Type PA34 (Gosford) - Plots 173, 177 & 182 

Site Name: Station Road, Elmswell 

Int. I Dote ON<r1plion Rev. 

House Type PA34 
Tree Lined Avenue Character Area 

Onrwing Title: 

R.EAR. ELEVATION 

SIDE ELEVATION 

~ 
Taylat Wlmpoy EAst lvql.a 
c .... ......,~w.r . ..,.,ttr._....,...._IPl27AR 
Ttk0128477li!IOO~Ot2 .. 71l810 

---.~ ...... 

P
age 74



FRONT ELEVATION SIDE ELEVATION 

BED 2 

BED 3 

GROUND FLOOR PLAN FIRST FLOOR PLAN 

House Type PA34 (Gosford) - Plot 175 

Silo Nome: Station Road, Elmswell 

Drawing Tldr. 
House Type PA34 

Rev. 0Mcrlp4ion lnt I Date 
Tree Lined Avenue Character Area 

REAR ELEVATION 

SIDE ELEVATION 

~ 
TO)'Ior Wlmpoy E8St lv'fifla 
c .... ...._~w,., a..,.s.e~~M~~N• . ....... P»: 7AR 
ltil:01al17.)10tF41n012toi7J)IID 

---~.oo.lilll 

(}\ 

ij I - jl 
o-::._o Tender 0 ConsM~ 0 AsBu; ! 

P
age 75



FRONT ELEVATION A SIDE/REAR ELEVATION A FRONT ELEVATION B 

GROUND FLOOR PLAN FIRST FLOOR PLAN SIDE/REAR ELEVATION B 

House Type PT35 (Rosedale) - Plots 172, 17 4 & 176 

I 
; 
I 
J 
p 
! • I 

i 
l r 

1 
'r 1 Scale: I1 :100@A3 l ee~<~: I 06.10.15 ~ 

~-+------------t---t-----1 1 SltoNome: Station Road, Elmswell I Ta~r o.. .... ~>r. l cG J ched<edby: I sPL i 
w ~ IRcv. i 

House Type PT35 II ~:!".:.=.;::=.---..,,... =-~-T35/TLA/01 - f Drawing l1d« 

Rev. o-1plon Int. I 0e1t Tree Lined Avenue Character Area ::.:..:=::;·:.::.on- oPrei"'""'YOT..-oc-- o .... ault ~ 

P
age 76



FRONT ELEVATION SIDE ELEVATION 

DINING lOUNGf 

GROUND FLOOR PLAN 

REAR ELEVATION SIDE ELEVATION 

6f02 

lANDING 

BED I 

I 
i 
I 
! 
2 
l 
~ 

FIRST FLOOR. PLAN SECOND FLOOR PLAN ! 
House Type PB33G (Crofton- G)- Plots 145, 146, 147, 148, 183, 184, 185 & 186 I 

f 
~---~---------+---+-----l r 

1 
"r~ 1 Scale: , 1:100@A3 I Dale: I 06.10.15 ~ 

Sit• Nemo: Station Road, El mswell I .L ~YIOr Drown by: 1 cG Lcheckedby: 1 sPL i 
House Type PB33G II W1D1pey i PB33G/TLN01 IRov:_ ! 

Teylor Y/lmpey East AfVIa ~ 

T L. d A Ch t A C....Hew., .........,.W.(.IulySI~IIA*,IP»fAA ...... s-...: ! ree me venue arac er rea :==::-,.. 0 Pre.....,.rvOT-oConstnldlon 0 A$8l.ilt ! 
0 

Oesct1pllon lnl 

Onrwlng 1ltle: 

Rev. Dale 

P
age 77



Rev. 

FRONT ELEVATION 

DINING 
~I 

KITCHEN 

GROUND FLOOR PLAN 

SIDE ELEVATION 

BED 3 

ElfD 2 

BED 4 

FIRST FLOOR PLAN 

REAR ELEVATION 

SIDE ELEVATION 

I 
i 
l 
! 
! 
~ 
: 
~ 

I House Type PA44 (Midford) - Plots 76, 79, 122, 123, 125 & 142 

Site Name: Station Road, Elmswell 

Drawing Tille: 
House Type PA44 

~ llll I Dote 
Tree Lined Avenue Character Area 

~ 
Taylor Wlmpoy EMt lw,lla ea.._.., ~w,. . ._,,.E..,. . ......._ PU 7Nt 
r.-ot2&lrnii»~Ot2 .. nliiD 

---~,..,. 

-"""T-"--~-r----11 
06.10.15 t 
SPL ;; 

~--~------~--~~-,~~-~-. ~~ 

f. I -f; 
lD~no<yO r-.r 0 cons-b 0 AsauJ! 

P
age 78



R ... 

•• 
~-

FRONT ELEVATION 

GROUND FLOOR PLAN 

SIDE ELEVATION 

6~03 

eeo 2 

&0 <4 

FIRST FLOOR PLAN 

REAR ELEVATION 

~ 

SIDE ELEVATION 

House Type PA44 (Midford)- Plot 188 

Int. I o. 

Dr-.olllo: 

~ 

House Type PA44 II r ... --~,... - 1.! • ',,.,., · ..... VV'- • 

c.. ...... .-.-..,...,..~....._ .. ,.. ......-..- [ 

Tree Lined Avenue Character Area !:.':.!''::':.:::':!',.,.. 0 "'""'*'-YO r..- o~ o -. ~ 

P
age 79



FRONT ELEVATION SIDE ELEVATION 

GROUND FLOOR PLAN FIRST FLOOR PLAN 

House Type PA48 (Shelford)- Plots 187 & 189 
51 DE ELEVATION 

~ 

t 
i 
I 
I 
! 
I 
t 

! 
I 
I 

( Ta 1 s..•: l1:1oo@A3 1 o.o.: 1 oe.1o.1s l ._., -+-1 ------ - --rl-----r-1-·1 sn.N-: Station Road, Elmswell w £YIOr ;-byl CG l Checlce<lby I s:., i 
House Type PA48 T.,~ g PA48/TLA/01 J - ! 

-=-""'- ....... __ ...,.. '---...... .,,. .....~ [ 
Tree Lined Avenue Character Area :::o:-:"'7=,... o--,o,-o~ o-.! 

~I 0. 

Dr-.o'Tllo: 

R ... ~ 

P
age 80



FRONT ELEVATION SIDE ELEVATION 

!leD I 

GROUND FLOOR. PLAN FIRST FLOOR. PLAN 

REAR. ELEVATION 

6ED2 

SIDE ELEVATION 

0 

t 
I • ! 
I 
t 
! 
I House Type PA49 (Thornford) - Plots 77, 78, 124, 143 & 144 

r------------ --~----~~--~~ ( I "r,., I 1, _ , 1:100@ A3 LDI4r. , 06.10.15 • 

1---t-----------+--t----t Sial - : Station Road, Elmswell I ~~ . ~ ;-:_lly"~ l c_G _ I Chockod w. l s;~ ~ 

House 1 ype t-'A4~ II r.,.__;;~ · ·l iT :--:. :::~ :...·.·:: i j: 
c.. ...... ~ .... ..., .. r....... ...... r»?M .._a....: I 

Tree Lined Avenue Character Area ::.:':":::=,_ o _._or-oeo-.don o -A ~ 
Or-.gllle: 

~ I Dolo ROY. ~ 

P
age 81



REAR ELEVATION 

I(JTCI1fN 

eeo 1 

8f?.fAAI'~T 

~ 
rAMILY 

LOUNGE 

DINING 
&02 

6f03 SIDE ELEVATION 

GROUND FLOOR PLAN- ~ FIRST FLOOR PLAN 

House Type PT 43 (Langdale) - Plots 81 , 119 & 139 

Station Road, Elmswell ~ 
House Type PT 43 r..,....,._ea.A191> 

T L. d A Ch t A ----.. ....... --. ....... ree me venue arac er rea ::-:.::::.:::.=,_ 
~--~-----------------------------r---r----~1 ~nk 

P
age 82



FRONT ELEVATION SIDE ELEVATION REAR ELEVATION SIDE ELEVATION 

GROUND FLOOR PLAN FIRST FLOOR PLAN SECOND FLOOR PLAN 

House Type PB52 (Wilton)- Plots 75, 80, 120, 121 , 140 & 141 

Site Name: Station Road, Elmswell 

O<ewlng T1!le: 
House Type PB52 

Tree Lined Avenue Character Area 

T~ylor 
Wlmpey 
Toytor Wlmpey Eost 1W,1Aa 
C.... ...... K~W*'J,8ufykE...,...,tufii*.PU1M 
Tilt 0121M 17ll00 '-: 0\2 .. 71)(M!IO 
w.tt-~.co.di 

0 
~ 

P
age 83



z 
UJ 
UJ 
0::: 
(!) 

>r--z 
::::) 

~ 
~ 
0 
u 
• • 

<( 
UJ 
a:: 
<( 
a:: 
UJ 
r-u 
<( 
a:: 
<( 
:c 
u 

Page 84



Rev. 

FRONT ELEVATION SIDE ELEVATION 

f3l 
BED 2 

DINING 6ED3 

GROUND FLOOR PLAN FIRST FLOOR PLAN 

REAR ELEVATION 

SIDE ELEVATION 

()' 

l 
f 
I 
J 
! 
l 
; 

I 
I 

House Type PT41 (Eskdale)- Plots 149, 150, 152, 158 & 160 

Site Name: 

Drawing Tille: 

Daocr1plon lnt I Date 

Station Road, Elmswell 

House Type PT41 
Community Green Character Area 

f l Scale: j1:1oo @A3 1 oaw. 1 oe.1o.1s ! 
~ ~ .. 1 oo I ~•l '":,. j w ey k PT41 /CG/01 I - ! 
Taylor Wlmpey Easl Anglo f 
CM .. HDIIM.IC_,_.,W..,, e-,.,S1r---.SUit*, P327M ...... SIIIW: lj 

:!'.!!'!:'::.:=nJNO 0 PrelmineryO Tenclef Qeon.trudbn 0 AsSullt ~ 

P
age 85



FRONT ELEVATION 

GROUND FLOOR PLAN 

DINING 

r ... , / ... , 
; v : 

LOUNGE 

SIDE ELEVATION 

FIRST FLOOR PLAN 

House Type PA48 (Shelford) - Plots 18 & 19 

REAR ELEVATION 

SIDE ELEVATION 

0 

I 
i 
! 
a 
l 
I 
~ 

I 

i 
I 

( I 
'a ~ 1 scale: l1:1oo @A3 1 o..w. 1 oo.1a.1s ~ 

~-+-----------+--+----1 sltoName: Station Road, Elmswell I .L~YIOr Ontwnby:1 co [ Ciled<edby: 1 sPL ! 
Wfmpey ~ IRev: f 

House Type PA48 . Jl TO)bWimcleyEasiAnglla E PA48/CG/01 - f 
Community Green Character Area E:'o.:E..~.=~·-·-"'""" (j';:,.. ... ryo T-o eon.1Nccm o AsBult! lnt I DIIM R..,. Oescrlp41on 

Drawing Till<!: 

P
age 86



FRONT ELEVATION SIDE ELEVATION 

GROUND FLOOR PLAN FIRST FLOOR PLAN 

House Type PA48 (Shelford)- Plots 5, 6, 8 & 9 

RE.AR ELEVATION 

SIDE ELEVATION 

t 
j 

I 
J 
2 
! 
~ 

! 
I 

--~--------------------~ ----------- --~~~~~~~ 
( I JrTa I lt 5celt: I 1:100@A3 I Oelr. j 06.10.15 l I I I I I ~- Station Road, Elmswell ~ i;-"1 oo ~ ~1--" 1 ';'- j 

-r-J ~ - PA48/CG/02 - ! • ,...., .... v,_, . ~ ,.., ...... , ,----r...., T~WimpeyeasaAr(le g r 

In<. I o.eo 

Dnlwlno 11k 

R ... Doecrlplon 

c.-.....,......,..._. . ...., .. ........,..._r.u7M .._.._ f 
Community Green Character Area Jl :::.:::...::=,_ o PNirrlnotyo r-0~ o .-. ~ 

P
age 87



FRONT ELEVATION SIDE ELEVATION REAR ELEVATION 

OtD2 
!leD I 

GROUND FLOOR f'LAN FIRST FLOOR f'LAN 
SIDE ELEVATION 

House Type PA49 (Thornford)- Plots 10, 11 , 15, 16 & 157 

6' 
-J 

I 
i 
I • f 
I 
I 

! 
I 
f 

r I Scolt: j 1:100 @A3 I oooo: J 06.10.15 t 
SltoNomo: Station Road, Elmswell Tagpeyr o..wn~>r. l co 1Chocl< ... by: I sPL i 

~-------+--t------1 1 w i J Rov: ~ 
House Type PA49 g PA49/CG/01 - ; 

Taylor ~y Eaol "'91o r o.Mnglltle: 
C....__,IC..,_.~ . ....,It~ ...... ~~Nt ---- ~ 

Community Green Character Area :.:.:.:::::::=,.. o~or-oc-- o.-.. ~ Int. I o..o R ... lleKrlplon 

P
age 88



!B!J 
FRONT ELEVATION 

I>JTCt1fN 

61:0 I 

6ReAIII'AST 

~AMilY 

lOUNGE 

DINING 
61:0 2 

&03 SIDE ELEVATION 

GROUND FLOOR PLAN FIRST FLOOR PLAN 

House Type PT 43 (Langdale) - Plot 151 , 153 & 190 

Station Road, Elmswell ~ 
House Type PT43 Tey!or Wimpey Easl..,. 

Community Green Character Area :r-===.==-.._...,, ... ~-4~---------------------------t---t-----1 • ~nw. 

P
age 89



KITCMeN 

!lREMfAST 

fAMILY 

LOUNGE 

!lED 2 
DINING 

FIRST FLOOR PLAN 

House Type PT 43 (Langdale) - Plots 20 & 156 
Site Nerne; 

Drawing Tllllr. 

Station Road, Elmswell 

House Type PT 43 
Community Green Character Area 

SIDE ELEVATI ON 

~ 
Taylor Wlmpoy Easi !WJI.a 
c .... ..._.,~w.t. IUyStt...,..,~u~~aa.,Pn7M 
Ttll0121&4n'*O,_e 012&1173MO ... -.~.-.... 

()\ 

P
age 90



FRONT ELEVATION SIDE ELEVATION REAR ELEVATION 

GROUND FLOOR PLAN FIRST FLOOR PLAN 

..... -... ,, '• 
~~~ 

&02 

SIDE ELEVATION 

~-, ,, ,, 
•X• 
t!-~ 

SECOND FLOOR PLAN 

House Type PB52 (Wilton)- Plots 12, 13, 14, 17, 154 & 155 

j 
0 

t 
I 
I 
I 

' I 
~ 

! 
I 
f ( I "\(;Ta 1 - 11:1oo@AJ 1 o.w. l oe.1o.1s ! 

._+------------r----t-~ •N- Station Road, Elmswell 11 . ~y1or o.-byl cG 1Chocl<edby. l sPL i 
House Type PB52 Jl WJDJPeY I PB52/CG/01 ~ -~ ! T.,...,-- Eoll NJj/lta f: c---..,.......,...,..., ........................ ,... ..__ : 

Community Green Character Area :::.==-- o ...........,o r..-o CGnolndon o .-.. ~ Int. I Dolt 

~,. 

R ... ~ 

P
age 91



FRONT ELEVATION SIDE ELEVATION REAR ELEVATION 

GROUND FLOOR PLAN FIRST FLOOR PLAN 

House Type PB52 (Wilton)- Plot 7 

ROY. Descr1plon Int. I ON 

Site Nome: 

D<awlng lltle: 

Station Road, Elmswell 

House Type PB52 
Community Green Character Area 

SIDE ELEVATION 

~-;j 

•X• 
~-~ 

BED 2 

SECOND FLOOR PLAN 

~ 
Taylor Wlrnpey EHI Ar(fla 
C:.........._.IC ...... W#If.SIII')'SIE---. ......... ~1.,_ 
l*t121oa77:JIOO'• rO,*t7aO ... -~-'* 

1\ , , 

~~~ 

Rev: 

-J 
~ 

i 

-- Jf 0 P"'iminory 0 Tendo< 0 Cono1NCIIon 0 MI!Uil ! 
• 0 

P
age 92



UJ 
(.9 
0 
UJ 

UJ 
0 
U') 

>a: 
1-
z 
:::> 
0 u 
• • 

<( 
UJ 
0::: 
<( 

0::: 
UJ 
1-u 
<( 
0::: 
<( 
I 
u 

Page 93



Rev. 

HHJtmm 
ABHHI 

FRONT ELEVATION 

GROUND FLOOR PLAN 

SIDE ELEVATION 

&D3 
eeo 2 

&D "' 

FIRST FLOOR PLAN 

REAR ELEVATION 

SIDE ELEVATION 

J w 

t 
I 
a 
r 
: : 
l 

House Type PA44 (Midford)- Plots 72, 129, 131 & 136 I 
I I I ( I , rTa l l-Sco-.,~ 11:1-00 @- A3----.-, Dolo:- • .--, 06-.10.1-5

1 ~ 

Deocl1pllon Int. OMo 

··- N-~=-- 1'"'\---' r- •--···- 11 
I wr:r•or ;-by: ' CG IChocicedby: I s lp~ i 

DDpey eo PA44/CE/01 - ~ 
Station Road, t:.lmswell Site N.,. ... 

House Type PA44 
Countryside Edge Character Area 

Drowlrlg Tlk T~ Wlml>ey Ent lvttJit> 
C.........._K...,..W..,.. a-,81.,._..,..,._, 1"»1M 
'*et•n,..,IWI'"*77lel0 --- f. • ;r 

Co=..-or.-o~ o-..J! 

P
age 94



FR.ONT ELEVATION SIDE ELEVATION 

BeD 3 

eeo 2 

!lED 4 

GROUND FLOOR. PLAN FIRST FLOOR. PLAN 

House Type PA44 (Midford) - Plots 69, 70, 112 & 113 

REAR. ELEVATION 

SIDE ELEVATION 

~ 
~ 

t 
~ 

l 
! 
l 
l 
~ 

! 
i 
f 

( I "f I Scaleo i 1:100@A3 _LDete: J 06.10.15 ! 
1----+---- -------- -t---t----t SltoNome: Station Road, Elmswell I Ta~r o.-awnby.l cG _L Checkedby. l sPL i w ~ IR-. ~ 

House Type PA44 Jl g PA44/CE/02 - ; T oy1o< .,.,.,_y East Anglo l 
C....HDuH,~Wq, ..,.II(;~ ...... IP327M .._a-u.: b 

Countryside Edge Character Area ::.:~;:oo...:;.=n- 0 ProlmtnOIYOr..- O c-truciiOn o .... s ... ~ 
Drawing Tllle: 

Int. I Dale Oescriplon Rill. 

P
age 95



FRONT ELEVATION SIDE ELEVATION 

GROUND FLOOR PLAN FIRST FLOOR PLAN 

House Type PA48 (Shelford) - Plots 67, 68, 115 & 118 

REAR ELEVATION 

SIDE ELEVATION 

_J 
01 

t 
4 
I 
! 
2 
f 
~ 

I 

i 
f ( I '\r ~ Sca ... J1:1oo@A3 1 o.w. l os.1o.1s ! 

1---1--------- - --r----t--1 ·- Station Road, Elmswell I ~ Or ;-"' I oo I ~., I ' ":.., i 
House Type PA48 Jl Tayb-Wimpeyeast Anglla E PA48/CE/01 I - ;. 

Countryside Edge Character Area E"~!?";;l:.'---·.. o':'~or..-O ecn.tru-. o AoBuitl ! 
lnt I Dale 

D<owlng Title: 

Rev. O..Crtplon 

P
age 96



FRONT ELEVATION SIDE ELEVATION REAR ELEVATION 

6f02 
flfD I 

GROUND FLOOR PLAN FIRST FLOOR PLAN 
SIDE ELEVATION 

House Type PA49 (Thornford)- Plots 71, 73, 130, 135 & 137 

t 
I 
I a 
! 
I c 
! 
I 
f 

( I "( I Scelo:T1:100@A3 I Ootr. I 06.10.15 l 
1---+------------+--t----t S"-N .... : Station Road, Elmswell 1 Ta~r o......t>r:l ca l "*'odbr: 1 sPL ~ 

VV: I 1-. [ 
House Type PA49 Jl ~..=::..e::.=--... ,... ~~A49/CE/01 - f Onowlt1g Tlllo: 

R..,. lleoa\*>n Int. I 0... Countryside Edge Character Area ::.=..=.=n>lll o~oT-o~ o.-.. ~ 

J 
6" 

P
age 97



I>ITCNtN 

eRtA~A5T 

rAMILY 

l.OU'IGE 

DINING 
!lEO 2 

&DI 

SIDE ELEVATION 

J 
_J 

l 
I Ill If 

a 
f 
I 
I 

GROUND FLOOR PLAN FIRST FLOOR PLAN £ 

House Type PT43 (Langdale) - Plot 66, 7 4, 111 , 114, 126, 128, 132 & 134 I 
I I I I I( Ta I Scolo: I 1:100@A3 I Do4t: I 06.10.15 l 

Slte N•mo: Station Road, Elmswell gpeyor llrowftby: 1 ca 1 C*kodby. l sPt i w i IRov: f 
House Type PT43 g PT43/CE/01 - ! 

Toylor Wlo,.,.y ENI N(/111 f 
o c...--.. ......... WIJ'"-rlt~ .... P»?M ~ Countrys1de Edge Character Area ....... ,_._ ..... .._ -- • --- . o~or..-Q ConAuciion o .-. ~ lnl. Dolt 

~---~-----------------------------------t----t-------1• ~nk 

~ R..,. 

P
age 98



FRONT ELEVATION SIDE ELEVATION REAR ELEVATION SIDE ELEVATION 

R..,. 

~-~ ,, ,, ,v, 
te~ 

ecoz 

GROUND FLOOR PLAN FIRST FLOOR PLAN SECOND FLOOR PLAN 

House Type PB52 (Wilton)- Plots 116, 117, 127, 133 & 138 

~-~ 

•' '• !C~ 
J 
00 

t 
i 
I 
J 
! 
I 
~ 

f 

I 
----r-----------------... ---------...... ----r----r--""T""" __ ,, 

• 

~ 
~N-: 

Or..tngTIIo: 

~ Int. I Olio 

Station Road, Elmswell 

House Type PB52 
Countryside Edge Character Area 

Toylar Wlmpoy Eoot M;/le 
C.........._~WIIf, ...,IIIE-.tuliDir.PD7M r•et_.1?'liDI...,.,..n .. ----

r~---~~. ~-C-G--~r~~--~~·-~-~~
1 S_P_L __ ~,i 

.. .._ ( 

: 
r. I i f 
Co"::-vo r..-o~ o--)! 

P
age 99



<.9 
z 
Vl 
:::> 
0 
I 
UJ 
a:: 
0 u 
• • 

<( 
UJ 
a:: 
<( 

a:: 
UJ 
1-u 
<( 
a:: 
<( 
I 
u 

Page 100



FRONT ELEVATION SIDE ELEVATION REAR ELEVATION 

DINING LOUNGE 

D 

GROUND FLOOR PLAN FIRST FLOOR PLAN SIDE ELEVATION 

Ooscrtpeon Rev. lnl Dale 

Ofowtng Tille; 
House Type PA22 TaylorWimpeyE.;-Aillla - ~-- c. · · ·--· -· ·· - · 

CMIIII HeuM.K~W-.Iul'tSI E,...,._Iub.~7M u.-= 
Core Housing Character Area Jl :::.•.:.:..:;:.:.::;·.:::-,.. 0 Pre•"*IOIY 0 T..-oc-1rudlon o .... aull 

P
age 101



ROY. 

FRONT ELEVATION SIDE ELEVATION 

eeo 2 

6ED 3 

GROUND FLOOR PLAN FIRST FLOOR PLAN 

REAR ELEVATION 

SIDE ELEVATION 

C\) 
p 

I 
I 
i 
! 
~ 
l 
~ 

l 
I 

House Type PA34 (Gosford) - Plots 27, 28, 29, 61, 62, 63 & 64 
J . ~ J 

Scale: I 1:100@ A3 I Dole: I 06.10.15 l 
( sneNamo: I Station Road, Elmswell l (Ta~or o..awnby: l cG l choc:kedby: l sPL i 

w ~ ' Rev: f House Type PA34 Jl TaytorWimpeyeutAngla . g PA34/CH/01 - ~ 
c• ... H~~uM,~w_. . ...,. .. ~.~~?Aflt ..._,a..: f 

Core Housing Character Area =.: .. :::::::;:on- o-.yo Toncler Q eon.- 0Ase<Ait ~ 
Drawing Tldr. 

1111. I Dat.o Dat<:rtplon 

P
age 102



FRONT ELEVATION SIDE ELEVATION REAR ELEVATION 

&D2 

&D3 

GROUND FLOOR PLAN 
SIDE ELEVATION 

FIRST FLOOR PLAN 

House Type PA34 (Gosford)- Plots 21, 25, 26, 30, 31, 35, 60, 65, 83, 91, 95 
162 & 167 

C0 
[\) 

t 
~ 

I 
a 
f 
I 
~ 

! 
I 
l 

I I I I I Sfto Nomo: Station Road, Elmswell ~ or ;-1>1'' CG l Chockod by: I SP~ i ( 

,..., ~ Seale=l1:1oo@A3 1 o.w. 1 os.1o.1s l 

House Type PA34 E PA34/CH/02 1 - : 
Taylor Wlmpey Eosl Anglo f 

• C... ..... I(......-W.,,Iulylt~.tunalk.P327Nt ...... --..: ~ 

Core Hous1ng Character Area ::.::-::::.·.="- 0 Pre•..-y0 r-Oc-lrUCIIon oAsS<.Q• ~ 
Drawing Tille: 

lnl Dolo Rev. Ooscrtp41on 

P
age 103



m m 
88 I 88 

FRONT ELEVATION A S IDE/REAR ELEVATION A FRONT ELEVATION B 

GROUND FLOOR PLAN FIRST FLOOR PLAN S IDE/REAR ELEVATION B 

House Type PT35 (Rosedale) - Plots 36, 82, 84, 102, 161 , 163 & 166 

E8 

DO w 

t 
I 
! 
! 
~ 
I 
~ 

~ 

I 
( I Jf wlor l' - ~ ""'@" ~ - ~ """ I I I I I I ~- Station Road, Elmswell~ :~..,!~ "' ~ 1 ~"' 1 't:.. 1 

-.r-J Jl8 P t 35/CH/01 j - ! 
I '"""""...,""" I J f""'"" I I ""'"" TaylorWimpeyEastAr(/Aa r 

C....MiuM.K_......Wfli.~ll ~lull:lll,P»7M .._.a-..: a 

Core Housing Character Area Jl :".:!'..:;:o:.::;·.::-"""' I o Preln'inery o TOI>der o eonstru<:don o AJBIAII ~ J--+---- - --------- ---r--r---; I Onlwtf'IJlllle: 

Rev. o.w1p4lon illl Dole 

P
age 104



Rov. 

FRONT ELEVATION SIDE ELEVATION 

BED 3 

BED 2 

REAR ELEVATION 

(X) 

I 
i 
I 
! 
9 

GROUND FLOOR PLAN FIRST FLOOR PLAN SIDE ELEVATION I 
i 

~ 

i House Type PT36 (E.asdale) - Plots 88, 90, 101 & 103 

Int. I Date 

Site Name: 

Dnlwlng TIUe: 

O.sctlplon 

I 
r J Scalej 1:100@A3 1 o.w. 1 06.1o.1s ! 
~y~~r o-n~>y. 1 CG 1 Chockedt>r.J SPL i 
Wunpey ~ PT36/CH/01 I Rev.- ! 
Taylor Wlmpoy East Angb J 
c-~~t._,_K,..._,.W., . ..,.,ICE~Iulbc.IPll1AA ..._-.. o 
Ttt! Otat77:.00 1f..-r0118477.. 0 0 0 1 
---~.-.~~~~ \0 Prelmlnary Tender Conttrudbn AsBuill 0 

Station Road, Elmswell 

House Type PT36 
Core Housing Character Area 

P
age 105



DINING LOUNGE tlfD 2 

13ED I 

LANDING 

GROUND FLOOR PLAN FIRST FLOOR PLAN SECOND FLOOR PLAN 

House Type PB33G (Crofton - G) - Plots 107, 108, 109, 110, 168, 169, 170 & 171 

0\) 
lJ) 

I 
f 
I 
~ 
2 
z 
r 
I 
I 
f ( I I Sealt: l 1:1oo@A3 1 0a1r. 1 oe.1o.1s t 

1----1-- - - --------+-t---1 .. _ Station Road , Elmswell ~ _.,1 oo 1~ .. 1 "' i . w ey 0 ) Rev: f 
House Type PB33G g PB33G/CH/01 - ~ 

Taylor Wlmpoy Eost Anglll f 
c..-..._. .. ___..wllf.III"YSI~..._.Ii'l21'Nit ._.--.: I 

Core Housing Character Area ::..:;.:-::::·::.:-,_ o""'-•ry0Tonde<0eons""c;llon o ... s.-. ~ Int. Clascrip4lon ROY. 

Onlwlng Tille: 

on 

P
age 106



LOUNGE 

DINING 

LANDING 6fD 2 

GROUND FLOOR PLAN FIRST FLOOR PLAN SECOND FLOOR PLAN 

House Type PC32 (Bel bury) - Plots 37, 38, 164 & 165 
----- --+--+------1 ( I ·,,,.., ___ .. __ _ . '"'~-~= -- ..... ___ . ·--·· ·- .. .. w~ ~tat1on r<oad , Elmswell SlteNml111. 

Drawing lltlr. 
House Type PC32 

Core Housing Character Area 
Taylor Wlmpoy East ""V'a 
C.. HouM.tr.,.._. w-,.,lury II~""'*- W"lZ 7AR 
Tetl 01,..71ll00 f'W. 0121477.-e 

---.-~ ....... 

()() 

6\ 

P
age 107



SIDE ELEVATION 

SIDE ELEVATION 

GROUND FLOOR PLAN 

House Type 8727 - Plots 104, 105 & 106 

REAR ELEVATION 

()0 
-J 

t 
~ 

l 
a 
! 
I 
I 

f 

I 
f 

( I l(l I Sc:alo: I 1:100@A3 lo.t.: l 06.10.15 ! 
J----1--- ---------r--r---; Slle Nome: Station Road, Elmswell 11 Ta~r o..-byJ cG 1~odby. l sPL i 

w l 1-- ' 
House Type 8727 Jl ~-==-e:~---·.. ~~727/CH/01 - f 

R ... Deoatplan 1nt. I Dolo 

o-1ng'Tlk 

Core Housing Character Area :.:..::.::.::.="- QP.-...,Qr..-o~ o - ~ 

P
age 108



SIDE ELEVATION 

~ 

S IDE ELEVATION 

GROUND FLOOR PLAN 

House Type 8727 - Plot 59 

S~Nomo: Station Road, Elmswell 

'"'-I 0... 

Or....-.g Tllo: 

R ... ~ 

House Type 8727 
Core Housing Character Area 

REAR ELEVATION 

~ 

l 
i 
l 
I 
! 
: 
~ 

! 

(, l 
Ta~or ! w . 

Ro>< i 
Tll\'40r Wlrnpey Enl N'f1l!a I ij I j I ---·-··...,·--'"''"' --! , .. ., .. ,_ ._, .... ,_ 0 0 0 0 • - - - _....., r..- ~ .....,....~ 

P
age 109



Rev. 

FRONT ELEVATION S IDE ELEVATION 

STUDY 

GROUND FLOOR f'LAN FIRST FLOOR f'LAN 

REAR ELEVATION 

SIDE ELEVATION 

J) 

t 
i 
l 
J 
! 
~ 
~ 

~ 

i 
House Type AA 11 - Plots 40, 41 , 52 & 53 

------------- -~~----~~~~ (·-I station Road, Elmsweu 1r~ I 
-.r-J Jlk AA11/GH/U1 I - ~ 

I IVU~\,r I J tJV TV' I 1 T~WimrwfE.NtAnlftJie f 
C... ............... W., . ..., .. .,...,., ..,.._PU ,.._ ..... -.: 

Core Housing Character Area Jl =.: .. ';::.::.:="- l o ._.._o r..-o~ o-! 
Onow1nv 1llo: 

1M. I Dolo Oeocrlpllon 

P
age 110



-· 

FRONT ELEVATION SIDE ELEVATION 

STUD\' 

GROUND FLOOR PLAN FIRST FLOOR PLAN 

REAR ELEVATION 

SIDE ELEVATION 

l 
~ 

I 
a 
f 
I 
~ 

I 
1 House Type AA 11 - Plots 39, 42, 51 & 54 

------------- -~~----~~~~ 
( ~- I station Road , Elmswell 1r~ j 

-.r-J JI K AA11 /CH/UL I - ; I IV\..1~\..or I J tJ'-' rv-~ I I TI!VkJrWirrloeYEMtAtlflla f 
Core Housing Character Area Jl !!"=:.==--....... lo::..._or..-oeon.- o.-. ~ Dnlw1ng Tllo: 

Ire. I DMt Oesatplon 

P
age 111



FRONT ELEVATION SIDE ELEVATION 

LOUNGr BED 2 

eco 1 

GROUND FLOOR PLAN FIRST FLOOR PLAN 

REAR ELEVATION 

SIDE ELEVATION 

I 
i 
I 
J 
! 
I 
~ 

~ 

I 
House Type AA23 - Plots 43, 44, 45, 48, 49, 50, 56 & 57 

r-----------~ ---r----~~--~~ ( I "rTa I t' _ , 1:100@A3 l ouj 06.10.15 f 
1--+-----------t---t---; SlleNeme: Station Road, Elmswell I W~ ~~;-:t>r~ l _c_a ___ I~Odt>rl s;~ f 

-r-J J - AA23/CH/01 - ~ 
• '""'""'~"" • J t--''"" , v '~"" Tey4orWimpeyEast~ g r 

1nt. I Dolt ~ R ... 

c....-....~._ . ...,. .. ~ ..... PJI7M .... ...._ 

Core Housing Character Area J l ::::==="- o ..--yQ r-. o ~ o .-.. ! 
0<-.gl11e: 

P
age 112



R ... 

FRONT ELEVATION SIDE ELEVATION 

eeo 3 1 aeo 2 

l.OUNG~ 

GROUND FLOOR PLAN FIRST FLOOR PLAN 

REAR ELEVATION 

SIDE ELEVATION 

I 
( 

I 
J 
~ 

! 
I 

House Type M31 - Plots 55 & 58 I 
,-~------~-r--~f ( I "\r J 1 Sallo: j 1:100@A3 J Ootr. J 06.10.15 ~ 

SltoN"""'' Station Road , Elmswell 1 ~y1or o..wnby: l co ,Chook..,""' 1 sp~ ~ 
Wnnpey ! .6..6.':l1 / f'l-l /n1 I _ ~ 

lleoa1plon 

OnMing Tile: 

Int. I 0.00 

House Type AA31 roy~or....,.,_~~ - J .!5 ' " , ...... ' ' ""' , ...... • • 
c......-....~w.r.-..ya........,...,..,P»tM -.-.: f 

Core Housing Character Area Jl :.:.:..=::-- Q--...yQr-0~ o - ~ 

P
age 113



I , 

I 

DINING 

LOUNGE 
BED 2 

GROUND FLOOR F'LAN FIRST FLOOR F'LAN 

House Type AB31 - Plots 46 & 4 7 

Sloe Name: Station Road, Elmswell 

House Type AB31 
Core Housing Character Area 

OrawlngTICio: 

Int. I On Rev. Descr1peon 

5 1DE ELEVATION 

5ECOND FLOOR F'LAN 

l 
t 
I 
a 
f 
: 
~ 

I 
I 
f 

--~------~,---~, .. ~--=~·-~, ~~ -~,, 00.~~~: ·~- ,~ Taylor 
Wnnpey 
Taylor Wlmpoy East Arf;fJa 
C....HouM,tr......,.,w,..-• ...,.lt~...._IP32,.AA 
Tll: ot28117731100F• :012&1n.G 

--··~~ 
~ I j~ 

Q"::.nnary 0 Tender 0 Conotructbn 0 -~;! 

P
age 114



z 
0 
r-
~ 
V) 
C!l 
::J 
V) 

~ 
V) 
UJ -
0::: 
0 
...... 
<! 
> 
0::: 
UJ 
V) 

z 
0 u 

• • 

Page 115



Garage I 

FRONT ELEVATION SIDE ELEVATION 

-
PLAN (S1ngle) 

Garage I 

FRONT ELEVATION SIDE ELEVATION 

. 
PLAN (Smg le) 

SlloNamo: 1 Station Road, Elmswell 

Drawing lid« 
Sing1e Gabled & Eaves Fronted 

Rev. o.scrlp4lon lnL Dolo 
Garages 

REAR ELEVATION 

I 
f REAR ELEVATION 

~ 
Taylor Wlmpey East Jv9Aa 
c..e."'*" .c.......,..w_.,ltflllyltE~.Ikllloat.IPl27M 
Tt*012&'77.0Ftlr! ctt214713110 

---~.oo.urt 

I 
! 
~ 

! 
~ 

~ 

I 
,---~-------r--~--~~ os.1o.1s t 

IL ~ 
114, I 

z 

-- Ji p Preliminary 0 Tendef 0 Construction 0 "•Buil ~ 

P
age 116



Garage II Garage 

FRONT ELEVATION 
L. 

PLAN (Double) 

Garage 

FRONT ELEVATION 
L. .& J 

PLAN (Double) 

stt. Nomo: I 

Rev. I O.set1ptlon I Int. I 0 010 J\ 

Drawing Tille: I 

S IDE ELEVATION 

SIDE ELEVATION 

Station Road, Elmswell 

Double Gabled 
Garages 

REAR ELEVATION 

_() 

~ 

t 
REAR ELEVATION II 

a 
! 

li 
I 
I 
J 
~ 

II~ l - I"'"@" 1- 1 .... ,... ! 
Drown by. I CG I Chocl:od by. I SPL ~ 

~ GAR/02 I R..-~ ! Jl T~~~EMI~ 
~ ...... ~W.., . ...,S.(__,.,..._P327AA 

-- ! Ttlt! Ot*T7.:0,_! 0121o1773110 
---·~MWI 0 Ptelmlnory 0 Ten<ler 0 Conltruetlon 0 AsBull ~ 

P
age 117



Gange I ~rage I Garage 

L ..II ..1 

FLAN 

Site Name: 

D<awlng 11o!e: 

Rev. Oescr1pllon Int. I Oala 

FRONT ELEVATION 

REAR ELEVATION 

Station Road, Elmswell 

Triple Eaves Fronted 
Garage 

SIDE ELEVATION 

SIDE ELEVATION 

_Q 

~ 

t 
i 
I 
8 
2 
! 
~ 

I 
i 

------- ----r----r-r---lf 

~ 
Tayto< Wlmpey Eaot Angla 
e......._.,..,~w-.. ~Wy&e'OifiUf'Cit........_ Pl27AR 
Tllllt .,_.TT:.:Of"~GU~ ... TT~ 

---··~·---

I I - I I ~ ~ 
Drawn by: CG I Checlced t>v: I SPL ~ 
.. • ~ I 

z 
t: . i r 
lO~na~ 0 T-0 CoMwdbn 0 AsB~! 

P
age 118



--- , 
Gatage 

I 

Garage I 

. 

PLAN ('L' Shaped) 

Rev. Oescttp1lon lnL I Dele 

FRONT ELEVATION 

REAR ELEVATION 

SfteName: 

Drawing Tille: 

Station Road, Elmswell 

'L' Shaped 
Garage 

SIDE ELEVATION 

S IDE ELEVATION 

r~ t 
Taylo<Wimpey EMI Anl;ila lij ·· ~ · ' Jr c......_........,....w_ . ..,."~...._IP» .,AoA --.s.-.: t 
Tllt.Ot*t1li00~:012&1T7lll80 • --··-- o Prelrrinary o Tend .. o C<>no1Nctlon o ,_; ~ 

~ 
(X) 

P
age 119



FRONT ELEVATION 

~ 
... r===l r==2 -

PLAN 

~Nome: 

Drawing Tile: 

Rev. 0.~ lilt I Dote 

51DE ELEVATION REAR ELEVATION 

Station Road, Elmswell 

Sub Station 

5 1DE ELEVATION 

~ 
_D 

t 
I 
i 
! 
2 
f 
~ 

l 
J 

Ta I Scolo: 11:1oo @A3 1 o.w. 1 oo.1o.1s i 
~r Drawn by: 1 CG 1 Clledred by: 1 SPL i 

w pey ~ SUB/01 I Re>-~ ! 
Toylof Wlmj)ey Easl AtVIo f 
c.. .. HouM..___..w~.ButyS1~~. 11P321Ait .._a..n.: 

0 ::.:;.-::::'!:'meet 0 Prelmnety 0 Tender 0 Construction 0 As8ull ! 

P
age 120



100 
PARISH COUNCIL 

Comments from the Elmswell Parish Clerk 

Planning Officer: 

Application number: 

Proposal: · 

Rebecca Biggs 

3918/1 

Application for approval of reserved matters pursuant 
to outline planning permission 0846/13 relating to 
Appearance, Landscaping, Layout & Scale for the 
development which includes the erection of 190 
residential dwellings ' 

Location: Former Grampian Harris site, St Edmunds Drive, Elmswell IP30 9HF 

Councillors object to this appl ication for the following reasons: 

1 The disappointing proportion of Affordable Houses reinforces the 
need, as identified by the emerging Elmswell Neighbourhood Plan and by 
community feedback, for 'starter home' housing stock. Accordingly, the 
imbalance in favour of larger dwellings - 33% being 3 bed dwellings, 33% 
being 4 bed dwellings & 10% being 5 bed dwellings- does not adequately 
reflect the community's needs. It is felt that 9 No 1 bed dwellings or flats 
should be included in the housing mix by reducing each of these larger 
dwelling allocations by 3 dwellings each. 
This is seen as better serving the NPPF stricture whereby opportunities 
should be sought to meet the development needs of the area with regard to 
objectively assessed need and where developments should be planned with 
a mix of housing to meet the needs of different groups in the community, 
reflecting local demand. 
Further, it relies upon the Core Strategy Objectives 6 & ?. which seek to 
enable communities to be balanced and inclusive, respecting diversity in 
function and character. 
Local Plan Policy H14 reinforces the need for a range of dwellings catering 
for different accommodation needs. 

2 The concerns expressed by the Environment Agency with reference to 
the lack of land contamination information, taken together with the issues 
raised by SCC Res~>Urce Management with regard to the lack of SuDS 
compliance and the fact that the proposed surface water drainage system 
does ·not appear to reach local or national standards, all come together to 
raise serious reservations with regard to this element of the proposal in light 
of the protection which must be afforded to the River Blackbourne. 
Local Plan Policy CL4 encourages the conservation of the ecological 
qualities of our rivers and must be properly addressed. 

Page 121



3 The need for attenuation of nuisance sound, in particular from the 
railway adjacent to plots 55 - 65 inclusive, must be detailed, as per Condition 
1 0 of the OPP, and must be to the satisfaction of Officers. A scheme has not 
yet been submitted and this is an essential requirement before p~rmission is 
granted 

4 There is no Travel Plan submitted . The site will impose fl!rther strain 
· on the travel infrastructure of Elmswell and Condition 14 of the OPP reflects 
the importance of this element of the development proposal. As at 3 above, 
this must be detailed to the satisfaction of Officers prior to Approval. 

·OBJECT X.. 

Peter Dow 
Clerk to Elmswell Parish Council · 
12.02.16 

Page 122



:102 
PARISH COUNCIL 

Comments from: Wetherden Parish Clerk 

Planning Officer: Rebecca Biggs 

Application Number: 3918 I 15 

Proposal: Application for approval of reserved matters pursuant to outline planning permission 

0846/13 relating to Appearance, Landscaping, Layout & Scale for the development which includes 

the erection of190 residential dwellings 

Locat i on: Former Grampian Harris site, St Edmunds Drive, ElmsweiiiP30 9HF 

PLEASE SET OUT ANY COMMENTS AND OBSERVATIONS OF YOUR COUNCIL WITH 

REGARD TO THE ABOVE, BEARING IN MIND THE POLICIES MENTIONED IN THE 

ACCOMPANYING LETTER. 

Wetherden Parish Council objects to this application based on the following grounds: The 
increase in the volume of traffic generated by 190 new homes will impact significantly on 
the village of Wetherden. Stretches of the link road between Elmswell and Wetherden are 
notorious accident spots with excess speeding a current local concern that with the 
inevitable increase in traffic flow will be exasperated. With no provision in this outline 
application for a relief road taking traffic north and away from the vi llages to the main 
artery A14 the Grove Lane rat run and Elmswell Road will become a target route towards 
Stowmarket which will have serious increase in traffic consequences for Wetherden 
residents. Services and Infrastructure policies within the Mid Suffolk Core Strategy indicate 
that further consideration needs to be given to the provision of a relief road together with 
additional speed restrictions on the Elmswell road and the provision of a safe pedestrian 
and cycle route to link the two villages. Concern is expressed at the ability of the local 
health clinic at Woolpit to absorb the additional need that will be presented by 190 homes. 
It is challenging at present to get an appointment within 2 weeks and the current site 
restrictions provide difficult parking conditions. Of considerable concern is the position 
regarding local primary schools with the move to two-tier education. Elmswell Primary 
School will already be at its capacity with an additional two years intake and this proposal 
will only reduce further Wetherden children's choice of primary education. It is also felt 
that the current safety concerns regarding the entrance to the Cooperative retail site will 
be amplified. This is a major resource for Wetherden residents and one it wi ll prove more 
and more difficult to access. It is felt that this proposal is not currently sustainable and 
failure to address these problems is contrary to Mid Suffolk Local Plan policies T2, T4, T10 
and T11 and Core Strategy CS6. 

Jen Larner (Clerk) 

..... ................. ... ... ... ..... ... ....... .................... ...... (Print Name) 

Page 123



_1_03 

Wetherden 

on behalf of ............................. ... ................... ./parish council 

Dated .......... 20 January 2016 

Page 124



_10 4-
Michelle Windsor 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Subject: 

sandra brown <sandra_brown60@[ otmall.com> . C · t I 
31 January 201619:33 Plann1ng on ro 
Planning Admin . Received · 
Application 3918/15 FAO Rebecca iggs 

Categories: Green Category 3 1 JAN 2016 
Acknowledged ... . fD. W. ........................ . 
Ou!e ...... 9!: .. 0.1..:.1.0 ....... . : ....... , ............ . 

,· p.,ss To ..... .P.J!> ................. .. .............. . Dear Rebecca, 

Re: Application No: 3918/15 Former Grampian Harris site, St Edmunds Drive, Elmswell - Application fo~ 

approval of reserved matters pursuant to outline planning permission 0846/13 relating to Appearance, 

Landscaping, Layout & Scale for the development which· includes the erection of 190 residential dwellings

Great Ashfield Parish Council Object to this planning application due to the scale ofthe proposal which will 
increase traffic congestion in the vic;inity. It is already difficult to travel from Great Ashfield to the A14 through 
Elmswell due to the existing traffic congestion issues. This will be further exacerbated with the single access from 

( ~his site together with the increase in t rain traffic. 

Kind Regards, 
Sandra 
Clerk to Great Ashfield Parish Council 

1 Page 125



_ios 

AMENDED PLANS CONSULTATION 

PARISH COUNCIL 

COMMENTS FROM GREAT ASHFIELD PARISH COUNCIL 

Planning Officer: Rebecca Biggs 

Application No: 3918/15 

Proposal: Application for approval of reserved matters pursuant to outline planning permission 

0846/13 relating to Appearance, Landscaping, Layout and Scale for the development which includes 

the erection of 190 residential dwellings 

location: Former Grampian Harris site, St Edmunds Drive, Elmsweii1P30 9HF 

Great Ashfield Parish Council object to this application with the following comments: 

Due to the scale of the proposal this will increase the traffic congestion in the vicinity. It is already 

difficult to travel from Great Ashfield to the A14 through Elmswell due to the existing traffic 

congestion; this will be further exacerbated with the single access from this site together with the 

increase in train traffic. Safety concerns at the ent rance to the co-op retail store will be intensified 

with the increase in use. The Council also felt the local health clinic at Woolpit will have difficulty 

coping with the large increase in population. 

Page 126



Consultation Response Pro forma 

1 Application Number 3918/15 
former Grampian Harris site, Elmswell 

2 Date of Response 1.3.16 

3 Responding Officer Name: Paul Harrison 
Job Title: Heritage Enabling Officer 
Responding on behalf of.. . Heritage 

4 Summary and 1. The Heritage Team has no comments to make on this 
Recommendation proposal. 
(please delete those N/A) 

Note: This section must be 
completed before the 
response is sent. The 
recommendation should be 
based on the information 
submitted with the 
application. 

5 Discussion 
Please outline the 
reasons/rationale behind 
how you have formed the 
recommendation. 
Please refer to any 
guidance, policy or material 
considerations that have 
informed your 
recommendation. 

6 Amendments, 
Clarification or Additional 
Information Required 
(if holding objection) 

If concerns are raised, can 
they be overcome with 
changes? Please ensure 
any requests are 
proportionate 

7 Recommended conditions 

Please note that this form can be submitted electronically on the Councils website. Comments submitted on the website will not 
be acknowledged but you can check whether they have been received by reviewing comments on the website under the 
application reference number. Please note that the completed form will be posted on the Councils website and available to view 
by the public. 

Page 127



From: David Pizzey 
Sent: 12 January 2016 10:50 
To: Rebecca Biggs 
Cc: Planning Admin 
Subject: 3918/15 Former Grampian Harris site, Elmswell. 

Rebecca 

I have no objection to this application as there appears to be little conflict between the 
development and any significant trees/hedges on site. The arboricultural report provides an 
accurate assessment of the condition and constraints presented by the trees and 
appropriate measures for their protection. Although a small number of trees are proposed for 
removal these are of limited amenity value and/or poor condition and all important trees are 
scheduled for retention. 

Regards 

David 

David Pizzey 
Arboricultural Officer 
Hadleigh office: 01473 826662 
Needham Market office: 01449 724555 
david. pizzey@baberghmidsuffolk. gov. uk 
www.babergh.gov.uk and www.midsuffolk.gov.uk 
Babergh and Mid Suffolk District Councils - Working Together 

Page 128



Rebecca Biggs 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Cc: 
Subject: 

Anne Westover 
11 May 2016 16:23 
Rebecca Biggs 
Simon Curl; Martin Egan; Sue Hooton; Philip Isbell 
RE: 3918/15 - Former Grampian Harris Site, St Edmunds Drive, Elmswell - Reserved 
Matters for 190 Residential Dwellings 

Dear Rebecca, further to our conversation, I have been through the plans submitted by JBA following our meeting 
last week and have also discussed these with JBA James Blake in more detail. 
Broadly speaking whilst the site is very tight in terms of layout and space for landscape I am confident that TW will 
manage some planting as specified and indicated by the detailed extracts. 
I would have expected more space o·n the sitt; boundaries to help absorb the impact on the scheme into the wider 
landscape and I think the scheme will appear fairly suburban in terms of design in the village context and in wider 
views. 

James and I discussed the need to take into account the Naturally Wild report submitted and approved under 
Condition 16 of the outline consent. 
There are some aspects ofthis wl'lich need to be taken into account at detailed planting design stage such as: 
Inclusion of suitable tree and hedge species; lack of space will preclude the use of some listed such as blackthorn 
and other thorny suckering species. 
James will endeavour to incorporate fruiting t rees (item 4.3) into rear gardens as part of a planting strategy for 
those. 
Hence my cc to Sue. 

Replacement planting for t rees which may be felled in rear of plots 10 - 14 will also be detailed. Nest boxes have 
been placed in some of these trees already I believe. 
We have discussed the need for fences to be hedgehog friend ly especially where the habitat areas continue beyond 
the site. 

North boundary: the path now appears to be at 1.5 m wide. Measures will be undertaken to incorporate and small 
t ree/hedge plants that still grow on this boundary. 
I think there will be gaps in the hedge where the garages and parking area to Plots 145- 148 are up against the 
boundary. 

West boundary: I have suggested that all trees are kept away from parking bays and planted where there is verge 
space. 

Trees next railway line: These will need to be carefully plotted on detailed landscape plans, (not shown at present) 
and new planting underneath of yew and holly to be used along the edge of the space to give a barrier to railway 
line. 
Rear gardens backing onto industrial estate: smal ler trees are shown in these gardens and more detail wi ll be 
provided to ensure attractive fences/trellis with climbers to ensure that the outlook is softened as much as possible 
in the confined space available. 
The various open green areas and central space: a more positive attempt at accommodating bigger trees within 
the spaces has been made and can be subject to final detail. 
Street trees: some have been removed from the plan as it is clear that street lighting could be compromised. James 
and 1 agreed that all details will need to be fina lised including what/where the services are laid to tie in with the t ree 
pits. 

I hope this helps, let me know if you have any queries. 
Best wishes · 
Anne 

1 
Page 129



Anne Westover 
Landscape Architect 
Landscape Planning Officer P/T 

Natural Environment Team 
Resource Management 
Suffolk County Council 
Tel 01473 264766 
Mob 07586 266553 · 

ic;·'· .1\Nl'. EV1m S1\ll Y 
·WINNERS .... 

2 
Page 130



From: Nathan Pittam 
Sent: 13 January 2016 13 :16 
To: Planning Admin 
Subject: 3918/15/RES. EH - Land Contamination. 

M3: 173740 
3918/15/RES. EH - Land Contamination. 
Land, St Edmunds Drive, Elmswell, BURY ST EDMUNDS, Suffolk. 
Application for approval of reserved matters pursuant to outline planning 
permission 0846/13 relating to Appearance, Landscaping, Erection of 190 
dwellings. 

Many thanks for your request for comments in relation to the reserved matters at the 
above development. I do not believe that the reserved matters include land 
contamination issues so I have no comments to make in relation to the application. 

Regards 

Nathan 

Nathan Pittam BSc. (Hons.) PhD 
Senior Environmental Management Officer 
Babergh and Mid Suffolk District Counci ls - Working Together 
t: 01449 724715 or 01473 826637 
w: www.babergh.gov.uk www.midsuffolk.gov.uk 

Page 131



From: David Harrold 
Sent: 24 March 2016 13:27 
To: Planning Admin 
Cc: Rebecca Biggs 

Subject: Plan Ref 3918/15/AMENDED PLANS Former Grampian Harris Site, St Edmunds Drive, 
Elmswell 

Thank you for consulting me on the revised plans and approval of reserved matters. 

In respect of 'other' environmental health issues and plans submitted for the Character Area Detail 
in respect of the Community green, Core Housing CAS and Countryside Edge I can confirm that I do 
not have any adverse comments. 

I also take this opportunity to reiterate that In respect of my previous email to you dated 23 
December 2015 relating to condition 10 of the approval, I await further information in respect of 
noise mitigation measures. 

I trust this advice is of assistance, if you have any further queries, please do not hesitate to contact 
me. 

David Harrold MCIEH 

Senior Environmental Health Officer 
Babergh and Mid Suffolk Council 

01449 724718 

Page 132



Rebecca Biggs 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Cc: 
Subject: 
Attachments: 

Hi Alex, 

David Harrold 
22 March 2016 11:36 
AlexYoung@cassella.co.uk 
Rebecca Biggs 
FW: Former Grampian Food Site/ Elmswell - Noise 
20819 - Planning Layout (A) - 16.03.16.pdf 

I can confirm I am happy in principle with the strategy of mitigation at source and submitting a 
noise report to discharge condition 10 on this basis. 

I have copied in Rebecca Biggs (Planning Officer) dealing with this, for her agreement in case 
there are any difficu lties from a planners point of view. 

David Harrold 

From: Alex Young [mailto:AiexYounq@cassallen.co.uk] 
Sent: 18 March 2016 16:45 
To: David Harrold 
Cc: Stephen Lee - TW East Anglia; Chris McNeillie . 
Subject: Former Grampian Food Site, Elmswell - Noise 

Hi David, 

To summarise our conversation: 

In respect to noise generated by plant associated with M&J Seafood impacting on the site, the intention is to 
mitigate at source i.e. install noise enclosures or similar around the plant on the M&J Seafood site. 

- The intention is to submit our noise report on th is basis to discharge Condition 10 (specifying the level of noise 
attenuation required) on the basis that all mitigation measures wil l be installed prior to the occupation of the 
dwellings. 

- This will allow our client to commence construction on a limited number of plots (e.g. plots 1 to 20, see 
attached plan) whilst the noise mitigation measures are being organised and installed. 

Could you please confirm that you are in principle, happy with this approach? Also, if possible could you please 
confirm you have no objections to the relevant planning officer (apologies, I do not have their name to hand). 

Kind Regards, 

Alex Young BA(hons) DipiOAAMIOA 

Acoustics Consultant 

Cass Allen Associates 
Bedford i-lab 
Priory Business Park 
Bedford MK44 3RZ 

Direct dial: 01234 834871 
Mobile: 07947 478633 
Email : alexyoung@cassallen.co.uk 
Web: www.cassallen.co.uk 

1 
Page 133



Rebecca Biggs 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Cc: 
Subject: 

Hi Rebecca, 

David Harrold 
13 April 2016 16:47 

Rebecca Biggs 

Stephen Lee - TW East Anglia; AlexYoung@cassella.co.uk; James Buckingham 
RE: Former Grampian Food Site, Elmswell - Noise 

There may be other alternative methods 'on site' that would be capable of mitigati'ng adverse 
noise from MJ Seafood such as a very tall noise barrier at the site boundary. It would be for the 
applicant to determine if this was the way forward and submit an acoustic report. The height of the 
barrier may not be acceptable in planning terms or the best way of mitigating the noise in 
combination with other measures such as site design and acoustic treatment of building facades. 

I have supported the alternative enclosure approach, proposed by Alex Young, because isolation 
of noise at source is the most effective means of mitigation and control. 

I understand in this case it can cause issues in planning terms hence my email dated 22 March 
copied to you. 

Alex has suggested that the applicant is restricted to building plots 1 to 20 and these plots are not 
occupied until the enclosure is in place. Again I supported this approach subject to your 
agreement. 

If the enclosure is removed at a later date or deteriorates, and this causes adverse noise impacts, 
it would fall to the Council to investigate any noise complaints from residents. The Council does 
have powers under nuisance legislation to remedy such a situation. This would offer some degree 
of protection but not necessarily to the same high standard of noise mitigation as this procedure is 
different. By way of example, the company if served with a noise abatement notice would only be 
required to carry out work to abate a nuisance using best practicable means. I would anticipate 
this would equate to replacing the noise enclosures but cannot guarantee this as it would 
ultimately be a matter for the judiciary to decide if it went that far. 

Previously in memos dated 3 May 2013 at outline stage and 23 December 2015 I have asked for 
the noise condition to be discharged before detailed plans can be approved. 

It is difficult for me to advise any further, please contact me if you need to talk further about a 
solution and I will copy my manager in for any input (or ideas) he may want to make. 

David 

1 
Page 134



Your Ref: MS/3918/15 
Our Ref: 570\CON\0990\ 16 
Date: 1ih April 2016 

j_j_ 4-

Highways Enquiries to: martin.egan@suffolk.gov.uk 

All planning enquiries should be sent to the Local Planning Authority. 
Email: 

The Planning Officer 
Mid Suffolk District Council 
131 High Street 
Needham Market 
Ipswich 
Suffolk 
IP6 8DL 

For the Attention of: Rebecca Biggs 

Dear Sir, 

TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING ACT 1990 

CONSULTATION RETURN MS/3918/15 

PROPOSAL: Application for approval of reserved matters pursuant to outline planning 

permission 0846/13 relating to Appearance, Landscaping, Layout & Scale 

for the development which includes the erection of 190 residential dwellings. 

LOCATION: Former Grampian Food Site, St Edmunds Drive, Elmswell, Bury St Edmunds, 

Notice is hereby given that the County Council as Highway Authority make the following 
comments: 

DRAWING NUMBER 20819/PL/01/A, PLANNING LAYOUT. 

In highway terms the submitted planning layout is acceptable. 

There are concerns in relation to the large number of street trees which are proposed within highway 
verges next to roads and footways. The space available is very restricted and it is unlikely that the trees 
could be accommodated as proposed. They will no doubt conflict with services and street lighting columns 
and many trees will not be able to be planted as proposed. If a certain style of landscaping is required 
then the trees should be located within private gardens; the proposed highway areas should not be relied 
upon to achieve landscaping. 

The applicant will also need to submit a Travel Plan in order to comply with the relevant conditions. 

Yours faithfully 

Mr Martin Egan 
Highways Development Management Engineer 
Strategic Development- Resource Management 

Endeavour House, 8 Russell Road, Ipswich, Suffolk IP1 2BX 
www.suffolk.gov.uk 

Page 135



( 

Jane Cole 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 

Steve Kerr 
06 April 2016 10:58 
Planning Admin 

Cc: Francesca Clarke; Sharon Berry (MSDC); Andrew Woodin; Andrew Pearce; Emma 
Bethell; Neil McManus; Jackie Gillis 

Subject: Application for reserved matters pursuant to planning permission 0846/13. Former 
Grampian Harris site, Elmswell IP30 9HF 

FAO: Rebecca Briggs 

Dear Sirs, 

Thank you for your letter dated 23/3/16 (ref 3918/15), regarding the above. 

Further to previous correspondence in respect of the outline planning applicqtion and subsequent . 
discussions with the developer, I can advise that the proposed footpath ·diversions plan (Ref 
20819/PFD/01, dated 08.03/16) does not accurately reflect what was agreed between the 
developer and the county council, in its capacity as the highway authority. At each of the four 
locations where the proposed footpath diversion crosses the estate roads, it was agreed dropped 
kerbs and tactile paving would be provided- these do not appear to be indicated on the plan. 

Any diversion order will need· to be made under the provisions of s257 TCPA 1990 and 
administered by Mid Suffolk District Councii/Babergh (MSDC), in its capacity as the local planning 
authority. 

Although the Planning Statement dated October 2015 confirms the Hawk End level crossing 
footpath mitigation scheme is to be delivered by way of a s1 06 agreement pertaining to the outline 
permission, there has been no further detail on how the scheme will be implemented and Planning 
Condition 17 discharged, follow.ing MSDC's rejection of the previous risk mitigation proposal last 
year. I would be grateful for an update on this please. . 

I look forward to hearing from you. 

Yours sincerely 

Stephen Kerr 
Definitive Map Manager 
Rights of Way and Access 
Resource Management 
Suffolk County Council 
Endeavour House, 8 Russell Road, Ipswich IP1 2BX 
Tel: 01473 264745 
Email: steve.kerr@suffolk.gov.uk 

1 

! ... :;,D su"FFFLK DISTRICT COUNCIL 
: PLANNING CONTROL 
1 RJ:Cr::lVED 
I 

j ~ 6 APR 2016 
; ACKNOVVLc.OGE? .. ~······ 
i ')ATE ......... J ... ~J,{OrJ ....... .. 
~ !."~SSTO ........... V.~ .... : ....... . ·--

Page 136



From: Abby Antrobus 
Sent: 30 March 2016 11:23 
To: Planning Admin 
Subject: 3918_15 Grampian Harris, Elmswell 

FAO Rebecca Biggs 

Dear Rebecca, 
Thank you for consulting on this application. There was an archaeological condition on the outline 
applicat ion, 0846/13, and archaeological evaluation was undertaken. On the basis of t his, my 
colleague Jude Plouviez advised t hat there would be no need for further work and that the condition 
could be discharged on the basis of the evaluation results. I would therefore not advise that there 
needs to be a condition relating to archaeological work on the current application. 
With best wishes, 
Abby 

Dr Abby Antrobus 
Senior Archaeological Officer 
Suffolk County Council Archaeological Service 
6 The Churchyard, Bury St Edmunds, Suffolk, IP33 1RX 
Tel: 01284 741231 
Mob: 07785950022 

Page 137



j_.:l_{ 
UNCLASSIFIED 

1.&\ Environment 
.... Agency 

R Biggs Our ref: AE/2016/120030/01-L01 
3918/15 Mid Suffolk District Council 

Planning Department 
131 , Council Offices High Street 
Needham Market 
Ipswich 
IP6 8DL 

Dear Ms Biggs 

Your ref: 

Date: 01 February 2016 

APPLICATION FOR APPROVAL OF RESERVED MATTERS PURSUANT 
TO OUTLINE PLANNING PERMISSION 0846/13 RELATING TO 
APPEARANCE, LANDSCAPING, LAYOUT & SCALE FOR THE 
DEVELOPMENT WHICH INCLUDES THE ERECTION OF 190 
RESIDENTIAL DWELLINGS 

FORMER GRAMPIAN HARRIS, ST EDMUNDS DRIVE, ELMSWELL. 

Thank you fo r consulting us on th is application which we received on 8 
January 2016. 

We submitted a holding objection as insufficient land contamination 
information was submitted at the outline application stage. We do not appear 
to have been consulted subsequently and our objection was not withdrawn 
and we did not have an opportunity to recommend conditions. 

The reserved matters appl ication does not appear to address land 
contamination issues. 

Since the time of the outline application we have seen an increased volume of 
work leading to reprioritisation of our workload. We no longer consider this 
proposal to be of high priority. Therefore we wi ll not be providing detailed site
specific advice or comments regarding land contamination for this site at this 
time. 

The developer should continue to address risks to controlled waters from 
contamination at the site, following the requirements of the National Planning 
Policy Framework and our Guiding Principles for Land Contamination. 

Please refer to our standing advice included in Appendix 1. 

UNCLASSIFIED Page 138



J_:l_g 
UNCLASSIFIED 

Piled foundations 

It is understood that piled foundations are proposed for the development. 
Piling or other penetrative ground improvement methods can increase the risk 
to the water environment by introducing preferential pathways for the 
movement of contamination into the underlying aquifer and/or impacting 
surface water quality. 

For development involving piling or other penetrative ground improvement 
methods on a site potentially affected by contamination or where groundwater 
is present at a shallow depth , a suitable Foundation Works Risk Assessment 
based on the results of the site investigation and any remediation should be 
undertaken. This assessment should underpin the choice of founding 
technique and any mitigation measures employed , to ensure the process does 
not cause, or create preferential pathways for, the movement of contamination 
into the underlying aquifer, or impacting surface water quality. Please refer to 
our "Piling and Penetrative Ground Improvement Methods on Land Affected 
by Contamination" National Groundwater & Contaminated Land Centre 
Project NC/99/73 for further information . 

Environment Agency Position 

We consider that planning permission could be granted to the proposed 
development as submitted if this planning condition is included as set out 
below. Without this condition the proposed development on this site poses an 
unacceptable risk to the environment and we would wish to object to the 
application. 

Condition 

Piling or any other foundation designs and investigation boreholes using 
penetrative methods shall not be permitted other than with the express written 
consent of the Local Planning Authority, which may be given for those parts of 
the site where it has been demonstrated that there is no resu ltant 
unacceptable risk to groundwater. The development shall be carried out in 
accordance with the approved details. 

Reason 

To protect and prevent the pollution of controlled waters from potential 
pollutants associated with current and previous land uses in line with National 
Planning Policy Framework (NPPF), paragraphs 109, 120, 121 and 
Environment Agency Groundwater Protection: Principles and Practice (GP3) . 

Advice to LPA I Applicant 

Piling or any other foundation designs using penetrative methods can result in 
risks to controlled waters. It should be demonstrated that any proposed piling 
will not result in contamination of groundwater. 

UNCLASSIFIED Page 139



j_j_9 
UNCLASSIFIED 

We ask to be consulted on the details submitted for approval to your Authority 
to discharge this condition and on any subsequent amendments or 
alterations. 

Yours faithfully 

Mr GRAHAM STEEL 
Sustainable Places - Planning Advisor 

Direct dial 02 03 02 58389 
Direct fax 
Direct e-mail planning.ipswich@environment-agency.gov.uk 

cc Taylor Winipey East Anglia 

UNCLASSIFIED Page 140



_1_20 
UNCLASSIFIED 

APPENDIX 

We consider any infiltration Sustainable Drainage System (SuDS) greater 
than 2.0 m below ground level to be a deep system and are generally not 
acceptable. All infiltration SuDS require a minimum of 1.2 m clearance 
between the base of infiltration SuDS and peak seasonal groundwater levels. 

Soakaways must not be constructed in contaminated ground where they could 
re-mobilise any pre-existing contamination and result in pollution of 
groundwater. Soakaways and other infiltration SuDS need to meet the criteria 
in our Groundwater Protection: Principles and Practice (GP3) position 
statements G1 and G9 to G13. 

Only clean water from roofs can be directly discharged to any soakaway or 
watercourse. Systems for the discharge of surface water from associated 
hard-standing, roads and impermeable vehicle parking areas shall incorporate 
appropriate pollution prevention measures and a suitable number of SuDS 
treatment train components. 

We recommend that developers should: 

1) Refer to our "Groundwater Protection : Principles and Practice (GP3)" 
document: 
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment data/file/ 
297347/LIT 7660 9a3742 .pdf 
2) Follow the risk management framework provided in CLR11, "Model 
Procedures for the Management of Land Contamination", when dealing with 
land affected by contamination: 
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/managing-land-contamination 
3) Refer to our "Guiding Principles for Land Contamination" for the type of 
information that we require in order to assess risks to controlled waters from 
the site. (The Local Authority can advise on risk to other receptors, for 
example human health): 
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/managing-and-reducing-land
contamination 
4) Refer to our "Verification of Remediation of Land Contamination" report: 
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment data/file/ 
29767 4/scho021 Obrxf-e-e .pdf 
5) Refer to the CLAIRE "Definition of Waste: Development Industry Code of 
Practice" (version 2) and our re lated 'Position Statement on the Definition of 
Waste: Development Industry Code of Practice': 
http://www .cia ire .co. u k/index.ph p?option=com content&view=article&id=21 0& 
ltemid=82 and https :/ /www .gov. uk/tu rn-you r -waste-into-a-new-non-waste
product-or-material 
6) Refer to British Standards BS 5930:1999-2010 and BS1 0175 and our 
'Technical Aspects of Site Investigations" Technical Report P5-065/TR 
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/technical-aspects-of-site
investigation-in-relation-to-land-contamination 

UNCLASSIFIED Page 141



UNCLASSIFIED 

7) Refer to our "Piling and Penetrative Ground Improvement Methods on Land 
Affected by Contamination" National Groundwater & Contaminated Land 
Centre Project NC/99n3 (available at 
http:/lwebarchive.nationalarchives.gov.uk/201 40328084622/http:/cdn.environ 
ment-agency.gov.uk/scho0501 bitt-e-e.pdf); 

, 8) Refer to our "Good Practice for Decommissioning Boreholes and Wells" 
(http://stuartgroup.ltd .uk/downloads/wellservices/groundwater/boreholedecom 
missioning/EAGuidelines.pdf); 
9) Refer to our website 
https://www.gov.uk/government/organisations/environment-agency for more 
information. 

UNCLASSIFIED Page 142



From: Planning Liaison [mailto:planningliaison@anglianwater.co.uk] 
Sent: 15 January 2016 09: 15 
To: Planning Admin 
Subject: RE: Consultation on Planning Applicat ion 3918/15 

Dear Sirs, 

Anglian Water would have no comments to make on this application . 

Carl Lee 
Growth Planning Advisor 

Anglian Water Services Limited 
Tel Office: 01733 414690 
Thorpe Wood House, Thorpe Wood, Peterborough, PE3 6WT 
www.anqlianwater.co.uk 

Page 143



From: RM Floods Planning 
Sent: 09 February 2016 16:12 
To: Planning Admin 
Subject: RE: Consultation on Planning Application 3918/15 

FAO Rebecca Biggs 

Application for approval of reserved matters pursuant to outline planning permission 0846/13 

relating to Appearance, Landscaping, Layout & Scale for the development which includes the 
erection of 190 residential dwellings. Former Grampian Harris site, St Edmunds Drive, Elmswell 
IP309HF 

Please see sec comments on the above application regarding dispose of surface water and all other 
surface water drainage implications. 

sec did not formally respond on the original outline application regarding the outline drainage and 
SuDS design, as that application was submitted before April 2015. sec assume that this application 
has been submitted to address condition 1 of the decision notice for 0846/13, however we would 
like to take this opportunity to make comments in general regarding this application. 

The site is located in the headwaters for an ordinary watercourse that ultimately drains into the 
River Blackbourn. The River Blackbourn is a listed river under the Water Framework Directive and 
has a protection status under EU legislation for water quality. Furthermore the Blackbourn also 
regu larly floods during winter months affecting local highways including the A1088. 

Having reviewed the FRA submitted at outline by BWB Consulting (ref: BMW/2061/FRA) sec would 
advise the LPA that the proposed surface water drainage system does not comply with our local 
SuDS standard and national best practice such as BS 8582:2013 "Code· of practice for surface water 
management for development sites" and Ciria SuDS Manual C753. Because there are known flood 
issues downstream (e.g. River Blackbourn) any development proposing to discharge runoff to a 
watercourse must have appropriate mitigation measures in place that comply with best practice and 
the NPPF to reduce the impact. 

Specific Comments - areas of concern 

1. Firstly in respect to this application for appearance and layout, sec cannot see any SuDS 
features on the illustrative masterplan. The applicant needs to be clear where they are 
providing open space for SuDS and to make sure they are scaled correctly within the 
curtilage of the site. SCC will need to see a illustrative masterplan that incorporates the 
drainage strategy including the green spaces for SuDS and the SuDS features themselves. 
Indicative flow paths would also be useful. 

Currently the drainage system for Phase 1 consists of swale system linked to a detention 
basin outside this boundary. We would advise that further source control measures are also 
looked at to provide a management train. The space required for the open swale in Phase 1 
will not only depend on catchment area being drained but also to some extent on adoption 
and maintenance proposals which may affect allowable depths of open water within swales. 
Shallower depths will mean bigger basins. 

2. The wider drainage system i.e. detention basin must be designed for the full site (Phases 1 
and 2) and sized to the 1 in 100yr+CC event for the two phases. 

Page 144



Swales should also ideally be sized to contain the 1 in100+CC storm event. Check dams will 
be required were the longitudinal slope of swales is steep, this is to allow for settlement of 
pollutants/silts. They will also to be designed with 1:4 side slopes and a maximum depth of 
water of 600mm as per national best practice. Therefore adequate space will be required to 
fit these in at this size and this why we are concerned they are not shown on the 
masterplan. 

3. Because the site is previously developed, the proposed runoff rates should be restricted as 
close to the greenfield rates, or at the very minimum a betterment of at least 30% should be 
considered over the Brownfield runoff rates- as per section 3.2.2 in Ciria SuDS Manual 
C753. Currently the proposed discharge rate is Qbar for all storm events upto the 100yr+CC 
event, this is given as 218 1/s. sec consider this is to be too high and should be reduced 
accordingly to meet national best pract ice. With attenuation storage and swale sizes revised 
accordingly as well. 

SCC require further calculations to outline what the theoretical greenfield rates are for this 
site in the 1, Qbar, 30 and 100yr storms. This is for the existing area of the site. 

We are assuming that the Rational Method has been used to calculate the existing 
brownfield runoff rates, however we would like further clarification as to the rainfall 
intensities used and where they are referenced from. 

SCC would like to be consu lted when information for condition 7 has been formally submitted. 

Kind Regards 

Steven Halls 
Flood and Water Engineer 
Flood and Water Management 
Resource Management 
Suffolk County Council 
Endeavour House, 8 Russell Road, Ipswich, Suffolk. IPl 2BX 

Tel: 01473 264430 
Mobile: 07713093642 
Email: steven.halls@suffolk.gov.uk 

From: planningadmin@midsuffolk.gov.uk fmailto:planningadmin@midsuffolk.gov.uk] 
Sent: 08 January 2016 14:20 
To: RM Floods Planning 
Subject: Consultation on Planning Application 3918/15 

Correspondence from MSDC Planning Services. 

Location: Former Grampian Harris site, St Edmunds Drive, Elmsweii iP30 9HF 

Page 145



J_25 

Proposal: Application for approval of reserved matters pursuant to outline planning 
permission 0846/13 relating to Appearance, Landscaping, Layout & Scale for the 
development which includes the erection of 190 residential dwellings 

We have received an application on which we would like you to comment. A consultation 
letter is attached. To view details of the planning application online please click here 

We request your comments regarding this application and these should reach us 

within 21 days. Please make these online when viewing the application. 

The planning policies that appear to be relevant to this case are HB1 , C0299, H17, NPPF, 
GP1 , CL8, RT12, Cor1 , Cor2, Cor3, Cor4, CarS, Cor6, Cor?, Cor8, Cor9, Cor11 , HB14, H7, 
H14, H15, H13, E4, E6, E7, T2, T4, T9, H3, T10, T11 , T12, T13, CSFR-FC1 , CSFR-FC1 .1, 
CSFR-FC2, CSFR-FC3, RT1 , RT4, RTS, RT6, RT11 , SC4, C0505, C1195, which can 

be found in detail in the Mid Suffolk Local Plan. 

We look forward to receiving your comments. 

Emails sent to and from this organisation will be monitored in accordance 
with the law to ensure compliance with policies and to minimize any security risks. 
The information contained in this email or any of its attachments may be 
privileged or confidential and is intended for the exclusive use of the addressee. 
Any unauthorised use may be unlawful. If you receive this email by mistake, 
please advise the sender immediately by using the reply facility in your email software. 
Opinions, conclusions and other information in this email that do not retate 
to the official business of Mid Suffolk District Council shall be 
understood as neither given nor endorsed by Mid Suffolk District Council. 

Page 146



Rebecca Biggs 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 

Steven Halls 
15 April 2016 15:03 
Rebecca Biggs 

Subject: RE: Development at Station Road, Elmswell - Planning Application 3918/15 

Follow Up Flag: 
Flag Status: 

Sorry Rebecca 

Follow up 
Flagged 

Yes I can confirm that the below dialogue is ·correct and that the consultant will be doing some further work for us. I 

would suggest using a condition though, if possible, to allow for this to commence. 

Regards 

Steven Halls 
Flood and Water Engineer 
Flood and Water Management 
Resource Management 
Suffolk County Counci l 
Endeavour House, 8 Russell Road, Ipswich, Suffolk. IPl 2BX 

Tel : 01473 264430 
Mobile: 07713093642 
Email : steven.halls@suffolk.gov.uk 

From: Rebecca Biggs 
Sent: 15 April 2016 14 :27 
To: Steven Halls 
Subject: FW: Development at Station Road, Elmswell - Planning Application 3918/15 

Dear Steven, 

I am under pressure to resolve this application. I would be gratefu l if you could respond to t he below email . I am 
concerned any detailed drainage pla.n may conf lict with the proposed landscaping. 

Many thanks 

Rebecca Biggs 
Development Management Planning Officer 
Babergh and Mid-Suffolk District Councils- WorkingTogether 
www. baberg h .gov. uk W'WW. midsuffolk.gov. uk 

Mid Suffolk District Council l 131 High Street I Needham Market I 
T. Ext 01449 724543 Int. 4543 
E. rebecca.biggs@ baberghmidsuffolk.gov.uk 

Please be advised that any comments expressed in this email are offered at an officer level as a professional opinion 
and are given without prejudice to any decision or action the Council may take in the future. Please check with the 
emails author if you are in any doubt about the status of the advice given. 

1 
Page 147



j_2_7 
*** C/L charging is coming to Mid Suffolk and Babergh soon. See our websites for the latest information here *** 

From: Mark Chapman - TW East Anglia [mailto:Mark.Chapman@taylorwimpey.com] 
Sent : 07 April 2016 17:42 
To: Rebecca Biggs; Steven Halls 
Cc: Philip Isbell; Stephen Lee - TW East Anglia 
Subject: FW: Development at Station Road, Elmswell - Planning Application 3918/15 

Good afternoon Rebecca, 

Please see below the correspondence between our Engineer, James Vine & Steven Halls. I have just spoken to 
Steven and he is now happy t hat t he Reserved Matters application is acceptable. 

As you can see from Steven's emai l below, we are going to continue to work with him on the detailed drainage 
design to reduce t he outflows as much as practicable and t his is secured t hrough Condition 7 of t he Out line Planning 
Permission. 

Steven - as discussed, please can you confirm t hat t his is a fair and true reflection of our conversation . 

Regards, 

Mark 

Mark Chapman I Design & Planning Manager I Taylor Wimpey East Anglia 
Castle House, Kempson Way, Bury St Edmunds, Suffolk, IP32 7AR 
t: 01284 7738001 m: 07469 022081 I e: mark.chapman@taylorwimpey.com 
Taylor Wimpey East Anglia is a division of Taylor Wimpey UK Limited 
Think before you print! 

From: Steven Halls [mailto:Steven.Halls@suffolk.gov.uk] 
Sent: 07 April 2016 14:40 
To: James Vine - TW East Anglia 
Subject: RE: Development at Station Road, Elmswell- Planning Application 3918/15 

Hi James 

The information that's been sent through has been rea lly he lpfu l and does confirm w hat I origina lly t hought. I would 
still like to know w here BWB got t here position of the 30m in storm duration from though- I'm not disputing it I'm 
just curious to know if it is written in any guidance. 

Anyway because of the constraints with land availability and the fact that the permitted discharge rate has already 
been approved, I wou ld like to recommend to the LPA t hat you guys can do some further work to improve the final 
f lows during reserved matters/detailed design by whichever way possible. Thus improving on the 65, 168, 2141/s 
outflows. Specifically if you recall my first email, I asked to see what extra storage features you can include on the 
site to bring down the actual discharge rate for all t he storm events. I see you have cellular storage at manhole 35 
and if this sort of component can be replicated around the site, you may be able to lower the outflow settings on 
the hydrobrake. Maybe even have small controls at the ends of each ofthe pipe branches with a storage area 
upstream of it? 

I don't want to be too specific but aiming to get the 1yr down to say 501/s, 30yr down to 1001/s and the 100yr+CC 
to 150 1/s would be an improvement and maybe wont causing any flooding out of t he system? 

Also would it be possible for us to have a copy of t he microdrainage fi le (.mdx) for this site? 

2 
Page 148



Kind Regards 

Steven Halls 
Flood and Water Engineer 
Flood and Water Management 
Resource Management 
Suffolk County Council 
Endeavour House, 8 Russell Road, Ipswich, Suffolk. IPl 2BX 

Tel: 01473 264430 
Mobile: 07713093642 
Email: steven.halls@suffolk.gov.uk 

From: James Vine - TW East Anglia [mailto:James.Vine@taylorwimpey.com] 
Sent: 07 April 2016 10:31 
To: Steven Halls 
Subject: FW: Developme.nt at Station Road, Elmswell - Planning Application 3918/15 

Hi Steven, 

I tried to call but no one seems to be picking the phone up. I just wondered if you have had the opportunity to 
consider my email below? 

Kind Regards 

James Vine 

From: James Vine - TW East Anglia 
Sent: 05 April 2016 17:21 
To: 'Steven.Halls@suffolk.gov.uk' 
Cc: Gary Lee - TW East Anglia; Stephen Lee - TW East Anglia; Mark Chapman - TW East Anglia 
Subject: FW: Development at Station Road, Elmswell - Planning Application 3918/15 

Hi Steven, 

Many thanks for your response yesterday in relation to the development at Elmswell. 

As requested in your email please find attached a response from BWB in relation to have they have established the 
relevant brown field run-off rates for the development which I trust is of assistance. I have also included a set of 

preliminary calculations for the proposed onsite designs. As you will see the discharge rates for the 1yr event is 
65.01/s, 30yr event 168.71/s and the 100yr event+ Climate change 2141/s. As previously advised this is in line with 
the approved FRAas part of the outline planning permission for the development. BWB also detail this as being a 
betterment of 20% from the actual brownfield discharge rates. Based upon the FRA QBAR is 2181/s which is what we 
are limiting the worst case storm to. The actual discharge rates for the 30yr storm is 5281/s and the lOOyr being 

7881/s. We are therefore providing a large improvement in run-off rates for the worst case storms. 

As you may be aware we purchased the parcel of land from Harrow Estates and as part of the land sale we are only 
allocated a certain area to position the pond. As you will appreciate this area was set based upon the FRA. This 
means that we are unable to extend the pond in width due to these limitations with the land take. The land in which 
the pond is going to be positioned is land outside of our ownership and is not land we control. 

We obviously want to work with you to overcome these problems and there may be the possibility to introduce a 
more complex flow control device which could reduce down the flows for the smaller storm events but we would of 
course still need to increase flow rates for the 100yr storm events to avoid the pond from flooding. This may 
therefore generate a greater flow rate in a worst case event. The final detailed design may also be able to reduce 

the flow rates slightly but I don't expect this to be much of a reduction. 

3 
Page 149



We have done a quick run of the calculations based upon limiting f lows down to 521/s as detailed but this generated 
a large flood and would mean increasing the pond by quite a significant amount which we don't have the land 
availability for. 

I would be grateful for your earliest response to this on the basis that we need to submit our application imminently. 

Kind Regards 
James Vine 

From: Gary Lee- TW East Anglia 
Sent: 04 April 2016 17:01 
To: James Vine - TW East Anglia 
Subject: FW: Development at Station Road, Elmswell - Planning Application 3918/15 

James, 

Could you look at this first thing and answer any concerns Steven has please? 

Thanks 

Gary lee I Technical Manager I Taylor Wimpey East Anglia 
castle House, Kempson Way, Suffolk Business Park, Bury St Edmunds, Suffolk, IP32 7AR 
t: 01284 773800 I m: 07826 874463 I e: gary.lee@taylorwimpey.com 
Taylor Wimpey East Anglia is a division of Taylor Wimpey UK limited 
Think before you print! 

From: Steven Halls [mailto:Steven.Halls@suffolk.gov.uk] 
Sent: 04 April 2016 16:40 
To: Gary Lee - TW East Anglia 
Cc: Rebecca Biggs 
Subject: RE: Development at Stat ion Road, Elmswell- Planning Application 3918/15 

Gary 

I'm terribly sorry I haven't got back to you sooner, things are manic here atm. I have read your comments and have 
the following proposals:-

Basica lly I'm still very concerned about the final discharge rate of 2181/s -I acknowledge that this rate was accepted 
at outline but I'm surprised the EA approved it given that there are known f lood incidents recorded just downstream 
of the site and from their main river (R. Blackbourn). The Non-technical Standards for SuDS outline that for 
previously developed sites, SW should be limited to, where reasonably practical to greenfield rates. We work to this 
on all brownfield sites. It's confusing that this wasn't asked for at outline and annoying there is no evidence in the 
FRA its even been looked into. 

I'm also concerned that no reference is mentioned in the FRA to which method BWB used to work out the origina l 
peak runoff rates. I assume they used the modified rationa l method but to which rainfall parameters- FSR/REFH or 
gauged data. This equation is used for the design of pipe networks and when used for this purpose relies heavily on 
representing the existing drainage layout of the brownfield site. I haven't seen any maps or plans of the existing 
drainage network of the site, their capacity, layout or the position of the outfal l. With no information of this sort 
available, im worried that these numbers are based on guesses which is not good enough. I'm especia lly interested 
to know why they used a 30m in storm duration? 

4 
Page 150



I refer to section 24.5 of the new SuDS manual which highlights that volume and peak runoff rates should be 
calculated for previously developed sites using accurately represented simulations of the existing pipe network. 
Currently I have seen no evidence of this and furthermore no assessment has been undertaken on volumes at all. 

In light of the above, I don't want to be too unreasonable and I understand that you guys have just picked this up 
from BWB, thus I'm willing to work with you guys on this to come to some sort of compromise. Basically I need to 
know how much extra storage can be implemented at the site and what improvements can be made to the 
discharge rate without causing to many alterations to the building layout. I think a good place to start is too firstly 
see what your simulations are showing for the proposed site (3.575ha of imp area) and see what the resultant peak 
flows are for the 1, Qbar, 30 and 100yr +CC storms with and without attenuation. I will be interested to see if they 
are close to the 2181/s. 

Secondly, you mention that the proposed basin could be deepened. It needs to widened rather than deepened 
unless the watercourse level is lower than the lowest invert in the pond. But implementing more source control 
features is a must. This is the biggest downfall on the site, there is no site wide management train to capture 
stormwater at source- you could use ske letanks, storage underneath permeable paving or even oversized pipes. 
There are many options, all of which would help to reduce the outflow from the site. Ideally I would like to see more 
soft options like detention basins in POS but given your latest layout I doubt this is possible. 

To put some perspective on this I have calculated a discharge rate based on method 2 in section 24.5 of the Suds 
manual - so in MicroDrainage using ICPSUDS you can increase SOIL to 0.5 and use a Partly Urbanised Catchment 
factor (set it to 0.75) to representative a brownfield site. Using this method, bearing in mind it's completely different 
to rational method, it gave me 521/s for Qbar. Whether this is more representative or not is debatable but it is an 
improvement on 218 1/s. 

In summary if you could find:-

• BWBs notes and evidence on how they came up with the 2181/s- what method they used and the numbers 
inputted and why 30min duration was selected 

• What raw peak flows the proposed site will produce using the latest simulations. 
• Areas where further storage could be implemented so that the discharge rate can be reduced to help flood 

risk downstream. 

Please let me know your thoughts 

Kind Regards 

Steven Halls 
Flood and Water Engineer 
Flood and Water Management 
Resource Management 
Suffolk County Council 
Endeavour House, 8 Russell Road, Ipswich, Suffolk. IP12BX 

Tel: 01473 264430 
Mobile: 07713093642 
Email: steven.halls@suffolk.gov.uk 

From: Gary Lee - TW East Anglia 
Sent: 12 February 2016 07:53 
To: 'steven.halls@suffolk.gov.uk' 
Cc: Lee, Stephen - TW East Anglia (stephen.lee@taylorwimpey.com); Vine, James - TW East Anglia 
(james.vine@taylorwimpey.com) 
Subject: Development at Station Road, Elmswell - Planning Application 3918/ 15 

Good morning Steven, 

5 
Page 151



I have been passed a copy of your comments regarding the above application, in relation to the items raised I can 
comment as follows:-

1. During the investigations for this development, it was identified that infiltration techniques would not be of 
use with results ranging between 2.16x 10-6 and 4.77 x 10-7 and therefore a positive discharge point would 
be required . We also had water strikes as shallow depths. Noted The FRA undertaken by BWB was an 
document submitted as part of the Outline Planning Permission 0846/13 and proposed the use of an 
attenuation pond within land to the north-west of the site, together with two linear swales along the 
northern and western boundaries. Upon further detailed design whilst undertaking the planning layout, it 
became clear that the two boundary swales would be of limited use as the topography didn't allow for 
conveyance to these swales. However, we have introduced within the layout for highway verges to run 
parallel to the main spine road, within these verges at detailed design stage, we will look to utilise shallow 
swales and/or vegetated filter strips in order to take storm run-off from the highways instead of the 
conventional road gully. The swales/filter strips will then drain back into the conventional sewer system 
which will ultimately drain into the attenuation basin as infiltration cannot be fully relied upon noted. 
Where roads don't have highway verges, we are proposing to introduce a further filter strip on or before it 
enters into the attenuation pond. The swales will not act as storage facilities due to the width of the verge 
proposed. 

2. At this stage, there is no planning permission for Phase 2. We also do not control the land should a Phase 2 
come forward. Therefore at this stage we cannot size the detention basin for the additional area. As 
mentioned above, the swales will not be sized to accommodate any storage and therefore the attenuation 
pond and sewers beneath the roads will be sized to accommodate all the flows for the 1in100 year event 
plus climate change. The road side swales will likely only be 200mm deep. As the OPP is for 190 residential 
units (secured before we purchased the site), there is insufficient space to accommodate deep carrier 
swales/ditches to convey the water to the attenuation basin whe~e topography would allow. Flood 
exceedance paths will also be designed in to convey water to the attenuation basin where possible, if not to 
public open space areas. 

3. The discharge rate of 218 litres/second as proposed within the BWB report already includes a betterment of 
20% over the brownfield rates. We would propose the use of a complex control at the outfall of the 
attenuation basin in order to utilise a reduced discharge rate for all storms upto and including the 1in30 year 
storm event, thus holding back volume as much as possible and utilising the storage in the attenuation pond 
more regularly. A second flow control will be placed at the 1in30 year water level but combined discharge 
rates would not exceed 218 litres/second. It may be possible to make a further betterment to this rate if the 
attenuation pond was deepened. The proposed drained area will be less than the former Brownfield drained 
area therefore I'm not sure why the Greenfield Rates would be applied here. 

I also attach an email of the record of conversation I had in a meeting with Jeff Horner whilst we were designing up 
the layout. He was happy with the approach we had taken once I had explained the poor infiltration rates, 
topography, conveyance and maintenance issues etc. 

Should you feel a meeting would be beneficial to discuss further, please let me know some convenient times that 
would suit you. 

Kind regards 

Gary Lee I Technical Manager I Taylor Wimpey East Anglia 
Castle House, Kempson Way, Suffolk Business Park, Bury St Edmunds, Suffolk, IP32 7AR 
t: 01284 773800 I m: 07826 874463 I e: garv.lee@taylorwimpey.com 
Taylor Wimpey East Anglia is a division of Taylor Wimpey UK Limited 

Think before you print! 

6 
Page 152



This e:-mail and its attachments are confidential and intended solely for the attention and use of the named 
addressee(s). If you are not the intended recipient, you may not disclose, copy, distribute or retain this 
message or any part of it without the prior permission of the sender. If you have received this in error please 
inform the sender and immediately delete the message. 

Taylor Wimpey plc (Registered No. 296805) and Taylor Wimpey UK Limited (Registered No. 1392762) 
are each registered in England and Wales with their registered office at Gate House, Turnpike Road, High 
Wycombe, Buckinghamshire, HP12 3NR. 

Emails sent to and from this organisation will be monitored in accordance 
with the law to ensure compliance with policies and to minimise any 
security risks. 
The information contained in this email or any of its attachments may 
be privileged or confidential and is intended for the exclusive use of 
the addressee. Any unauthorised use may be unlawful. If you receive 
this email by mistake, please advise the sender immediately by using 
the reply facility in your email software. 

Emails sent to and from this organisation will be monitored in accordance 
with the law to ensure compliance with policies and to minimise any 
security risks. 
The information contained in this email or any of its attachments may 
be privileged or confidential and is intended for the exclusive use of 
the addressee. Any unauthorised use may be unlawful. If you receive 
this email by mistake, please advise the sender immediately by using 
the reply facility in your email software. 

7 
Page 153



This page is intentionally left blank



highways 
england 

133 

Developments Affecting Trunk Roads and Special Roads 

Highways England Planning Response (HEPR 16-01) 
Formal Recommendation to an Application for Planning Permission 

From: Catherine Brookes 
Network Delivery and Development 

East Region 
Highways England . 
planningee@highwaysengland.co.uk 

To: Mid Suffolk District Council 

CC: transportplanning@dft.gsi.gov.uk 
growthandplanning@highwaysengland .co.uk 

Council's Reference: 3918/15 

Referring to the planning application referenced above, dated [date of PA received] , 
application for approval of reserved matters persuant to outline planning permission 
0846/13 relating to Appearance, Landscaping, Layout & Scale fpr the development 
which includes _the erection of 190 dwellings, Former Grampian Foods Site St 

Edmunds Drive Station Road Elmswell, Suffolk IP30 9HF, notice is hereby given that 
Hi.ghways England's formal recommendation is that we : 

a) offer no objection; 

b) recommend that conditions should be attached to any planning 
permission that may be granted (see Annex A High'.v~ys England 
recommended Planning Conditions); 

c) recommend that planning permission not be granted for a specified 
period (see Annex A further assessment required); 

d) recommend that the application be refused (see Annex A Reasons 
for recommending Refusal) . 

Highways England Planning Response (HEPR 16-01) January 2016 

Page 155



Highways Act Section 1758 ffi I is not relevant to this application .1 

This represents Highways England formal recommendation and is copied to the 
Department for Transport as per the terms of our Licence. 

Should you disagree with this recommendation you should consult the Secretary of 
State for Transport, as per the Town and Country Planning (Development Affecting 
Trunk Roads) Direction 2015, via transportplanning@dft.gsi.gov.uk. 

Signature:~ P(J~ Date: 1 February2015 

Name: David Abbott Position: Asset Manager 

Highways England: 
Woodlands; Manton Lane 
Bedford MK41 7LW 

david.abbott@highwaysengland.co.uk 

1 Where relevant, further information will be provided within Annex A. 

Highways England Planning Response (HEPR 16-01) January 2016 

Page 156



sese . . f!t Historic England 
w_ 1 :ss 
EAST OF ENGLAND OFFICE 

Ms Rebecca Biggs Direct Dial: 01223 582721 
Mid Suffolk District Council 
131 High Street Our ref: P00506260 
Needham Market · 
Ipswich 
Suffolk 
IP6 8DL 5 April 2016 

Dear Ms Biggs 

Arrangements for Handling Heritage Applications Direction 201 5 & . 
T&CP (Development Management Procedure) (England) Order 2015 

FORMER GRAMPIAN HARRIS SITE, ST EDMUNDS DRIVE, ELMSWELL, IP30 9HF 
Application No 391 8/15 

Thank you for your letter of 23 March 2016 notifying Historic England of the application 
for listed building consent/planning permission relating to the above site. On the basis 
of the information provided, we do not consider that it is necessary for this 
applicati'on to be notified to Historic England under the relevant statutory 
provisions, detai ls of which are enclosed. 

If you consider that this application does fall within one of the relevant categories, or if 
there are other reasons for seeking the advice of Historic England, we would be 
grateful if you could explain your request. Please do not hesitate to telephone me if. 
you would like to discuss this application or the notification procedures in general. 

We wi ll retain the application for four weeks from the date of this letter. Thereafter we 
will dispose of the papers if we do not hear from you. 

Y~ours sincerely 
. 

. 
. 

David Eve 
Inspector of Historic Buildings and Areas 
E-mail: david .eve@HistoricEngland.org. uk 

Enclosure: List of applications requiring consultation with and notification to Historic 
England 

24 BROOKLANDS AVENUE, CAMBRIDGE, CB2 8BU 

Telephone 01223 582749 
HistoricEngland.'org. uk 

Historic England is subject to the Freedom of Information Act. 2000 (FOIA) and Environmental Information Regulations 2004 (EIR). All 
information held by the organisation will be accessible in response to an information request, unless one of the exemptions in the FOIA 

or EIR applies. Page 157



Historic England 
_:j_36 

EAST OF ENGLAND OFFICE 

Historic England must be notified of the following applications for listed building consent by virtue of the 
following provisions: · 

Notification: 

L 1 For works in respect of any Grade I or II* listed building; and 

L2 For relevant works in respect of any grade II (unstarred) listed building 

(relevant works means: 

i) works for the demolition of any principal building (see note 3); 

ii) works for the alteration of any principal building which comprise or include the 
demolition of a principal external wall of the principal building; or 

iii) works for the alteration .of any principal building which comprises or includes the 
demolition of all or a substantial part of the interior of the principal building. 

For the purposes of sub paragraphs ii) and iii) above: 

a) a proposal to retain less than 50% of the surface area of that part of a principal building 
represented on any elevation (ascertained by external measurement on a verticai plan, 
including the vertical plane of any roof) is treated as a proposal for the demolition of a principal 
external wall; 

b) a proposal to demolish any principal internal element of the structure including .any staircase, 
load bearing wall, floor structure or roof structure is treated as a proposal for the demolition of a 
substantial part of the interior.) 

L3 Decisions taken by the local pla~ning authorities on these applications 

Basis for this - Arrangements for handling heritage applications -Notification to Historic 
England and National Amenity Societies and the Secretary of State (England) Direction 2015-
made under section 12, 15 (1) and (5) ofthe Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) 
Act 1990 

Historic England 
15 April 2015 

Note 2: Relevant demolition is defined in section 196D of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 as 
"demolition of a building that is situated in a conservation area in England and is not a building to which 
section 74 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 does not apply by virtue 
of s75 of that Act (listed buildings, certain ecclesiastical buildings, scheduled monuments and buildings 
described in a direction of the Secretary of State under that section.) 

Note 3: "principal building" means a building shown on the list compiled under Section 1 of the Planning 
(Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 and includes (unless the list entry indicates 
otherwise) any object or structure fixed to that building, but does not include any curtilage building. 

24 BROOKLAND$ AVENUE, CAMBRIDGE, CB2 8BU 

Telephone 01223 582749 
HistoricEngland. org. uk 

lt"stonewall 
DMRSITY CHAMPION 

Historic England is subject to the Freedom of Information Act. 2000 (FOIA) and Environmental Information Regulations 2004 (EIR). All 
information held by the organisation will be accessible in response to an information request, unless one of the exemptions in the FOIA 

or EIR applies. Page 158



Historic England 
~31 

EAST OF ENGLAND· OFFICE 

Planning and Listed Building Consent applications requiring consultation with . 
and notification to Historic England (the Historic Buildings and Monuments 
Commission for England) April 2015 

Applications for planning permission 

Historic England must be consulted or notified (see note 1) of the following planning applications by virtue 
of the following provisions: 

Consultation: 

·Development which in the opinion of the local planning authority falls within these categodes: 

P1 Development of land involving the demolition, in whole or in part, or the material alteration of a 
listed building which is classified as Grade I or II* 

P2 Deve_lopment likely to affect the site of a scheduled monument 

P3 Development likely to affect any battlefield or a Grade I or II* park or garden of special historic 
interest which is registered in accordance with section 8C of the Historic Buildings and Ancient 
Monuments Act 1953 · 

Basis for this - Town and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) (England) 
Order 2015- article 18 and Schedule 4. · 

P4 Development likely to affect certain strategically important views in London 

Basis for this - Secretary of State for Communities and Local Government Directions relating to 
Protected Vistas 2012 

Notification: 

Development which the local authority (or Secretary of State) think would affect: 

PS The setting of a Grade I or II* listed building; or 

P6 The character or appearance of a conservation area where 

i) the development involves the erection of a new building or the extension of an 
existing building; and 

ii) the area of land in respect 9f which the applic_ation' is made is more than 1,000 
square metres 

Basis for this - Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Regulations 1990-
regulation 5A (as amended by The Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) 
(Amendment) (England) Regulations 2015 

P7 Local authority/ies own applications for planning permission for relevant demolition in 
conservation areas. (see note 2) · 

Basis for this - Town and Country Planning General Regulations 1992 (as amended by the Town 
and Country Planning General (Amendment) (England) Regulations 2015 

Note 1: There is a difference between Consultation and Notification. When LPAs consult on · 
applications, there is a duty to provide a substantive response to the LPA within 21 days. A notification 
from the LPA is to enable representations to be made if we so wish, and to respond within 21 days. 
Historic England does not make a distinction in its handling of advice work. 

Applications for listed building con~ent 

24 BROOKLANDS AVENUE, CAMBRIDGE, CB2 8BU 

Telephone 01223 582749 . 
HistoricEngland. org. uk 

~tonewall 
DIYIBSITY CHAMPION 

Historic England is subject to the Freedom of Information Act. 2000 (FOIA) end Environmental Information Regulations 2004 (EiR). All 
infbrmation held by the organisation will be accessible in response to an information request, unless one of the exemptions in the FOIA 

· or EIR applies. · Page 159



Your ref: 3918/15 
Our ref: 00032790 
Date: 06 April 2016 
Enquiries to: Peter Freer 
Tel: 01473 264801 
Email: peter.freer@suffolk.gov.uk 

Rebecca Biggs 
Planning Officer 
Mid Suffolk District Council 
Council Offices 
131 High Street 
Needham Market 
Ipswich 
IP6 8DL 

Dear Rebecca, 

Elmswell, Former Grampian Harris site, St Edmunds Drive 

msuffolk 
~ County Council 

I refer to the reserved matters application - submission of details under outline planning 
permission 0846/13 - Outline planning application for demolition of all buildings on site 
(comprising redundant factory buildings in Use Class 82, settlement tanks and 6 derelict 
residential properties) and erection of up to 190 residential dwellings and pumping station. 
Construction of a new access road to Station Road. 

This planning permission has a S106A dated 17 March 2015 which contains a number of 
obligations in favour of the County Council. The reserved matters application will need to be 
linked with the existing S1 06A. I have no comments to make on the reserved matters 
application but I have copied this letter to colleagues who respectively deal with highways, 
rights of way, drainage, archaeology and fire protection matters who may wish to comment. 

Yours sincerely, 

'P 9 '1'1«1£ 

Peter Freer 
Senior Planning and Infrastructure Officer 
Planning Section, Strategic Development, Resource Management 

cc Andrew Woodin SCC; Steve Kerr SCC; Andrew Pearce SCC; Simon Curl SCC; Floods 
Planning SCC; Angela Kempen SCC; Abby Antrobus SCC; Paul Armstrong SCC; and 
Neil McManus SCC 

Endeavour House, 8 Russell Road, Ipswich, Suffolk IP1 2BX 
· www.suffolk.gov.uk 

Page 160



Date: 14 January 2016 
Our ref: 176003 
Your ref: 3918/15 

Rebecca Biggs 
Planning Services 
Mid Suffolk District Council 
131 High Street 
Needham Market 
Suffolk 
IP6 SOL 

BY EMAIL ONLY 

Dear Ms Biggs 

Hornbeam House 

Crewe Business Park 

Electra Way 

Crewe 

Cheshire 

CW1 6GJ 

T 0300 060 3900 

Planning consultation: Application for approval of reserved matters pursuant to outline planning 
permission 0846/13 relating to Appearance, Landscaping, Layout & Scale for the development 
which includes the erection of 190 residential dwellings. 
Location: Former Grampian Harris site, St Edmunds Drive, Elmswell IP30 9HF. 

Thank you for your consultation on the above dated 08 January 2016 which was received by 
Natural England on 08 January 2016. 

Natural England is a non-departmental public body. Our statutory purpose is to ensure that the 
natural environment is conserved, enhanced, and managed for the benefit of present and future 
generations, thereby contributing to sustainable development. 

The Wildlife and Countrys ide Act 1981 (as amended) 
The Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2010 (as amended) 

Natural England's comments in relation to this application are provided in the following sections. 

Statutory nature conservation s ites- no o bjection 
Natural England has assessed this application using the Impact Risk Zones data (IRZs) and is 
satisfied that the proposed development being carried out in strict accordance with the details of the 
application, as submitted, will not damage or destroy the interest features for which Norton Wood 
has been notified. We therefore advise your authority that this SSSI does not represent a constraint 
in determining this application. Should the details of this application change, Natural England draws 
your attention to Section 28(1) of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 (as amended), requiring 
your authority to re-consult Natural England. 

Protected s pecies 
We have not assessed this application and associated documents for impacts on protected species. 
Natural England has published Standing Advice on protected species. · 

You should apply our Standing Advice to this application as it is a material consideration in the 
determination of applications in the same way as any individual response received from Natural 
England following consultation. 

Page 1 of 3 

Natural England is accredited t o the Cabinet Office Service Excellence Standard 

Page 161



~4-0 

The Standing Advice should not be treated as giving any indication or providing any assurance in 
respect of European Protected Species (EPS) that the proposed development is unlikely to affect 
the EPS present on the site; nor should it be interpreted as meaning that Natural England has 
reached any views as to whether a licence is needed (which is the developer's responsibility) or 
may be granted. 

If you have any specific questions on aspects that are not covered by our Standing Advice for 
European Protected Species or have difficulty in applying it to this application please contact us with 
details at consultations@naturalengland.orq.uk. 

Local sites 
If the proposal site is on or adjacent to a local site, e.g. Local Wildlife Site, Regionally Important 
Geological/Geomorphological Site (RIGS) or Local Nature Reserve (LNR) the authority should 
ensure it has sufficient information to fully understand the impact of the proposal on the local site 
before it determines the application. · 

Biodiversity enhancements 
This application may provide opportunities to incorporate features into the design which are 
beneficial to wildlife, such as the incorporation of roosting opportunities for bats or the installation of 
bird nest boxes. The authority should consider securing measures to enhance the biodiversity of the 
site from the applicant, if it is minded to grant permission for this application. This is in accordance 
with Paragraph 118 of the National Planning Policy Framework. Additionally, we would draw your 
attention to Section 40 of the Natural Environment and Rural Communities Act (2006) which states 
that' Every public authority must, in exercising its functions, have regard, so far as is consistent with 
the proper exercise of those functions, to the purpose of conserving biodiversity'. Section 40(3) of 
the same Act also states that ' conserving biodiversity includes, in relation to a living organism or 
type of habitat, restoring or enhancing a population or habitat. 

Landscape enhancements 
This application may provide opportunities to enhance the character and local distinctiveness of the 
surrounding natural and built environment; use natural resources more sustainably; and bring 
benefits for the local community, for example through green space provision and access to and 
contact with nature. Landscape characterisation and townscape assessments, and associated 
sensitivity and capacity assessments provide tools for planners and developers to consider new 
development and ensure that it makes a positive contribution in terms of design, form and location, 
to the character and functions of the landscape and avoids any unacceptable impacts. 

Sites of Special Scientific Interest Impact Risk Zones 
The Town and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) (England) Order 2015, 
which came into force on 15 April 2015, has removed the requirement to consult Natural England on 
notified consultation zones within 2 km of a Site of Special Scientific Interest (Schedule 5, v (ii) of 
the 2010 DMPO). The requirement to consult Natural England on "Development in or likely to affect 
a Site of Special Scientific Interest' remains in place (Schedule 4, w). Natural England's SSSI 
Impact Risk Zones are a GIS dataset designed to be used during the planning application 
validation process to help local planning authorities decide when to consult Natural England on 
developments likely to affect a SSSI. The dataset and user guidance can be accessed from the 
data.qov.uk website. · 

Should the proposal be amended in a way which significantly affects its impact on the natural 
environment then, in accordance with Section 4 of the Natural Environment and Rural Communities 
Act 2006, Natural England should be consulted again. Before sending us the amended 
consultation, please assess whether the changes proposed will materially affect any of the advice 
we have previously offered. If they are unlikely to do so, please do not re-consult us. 

Yours sincerely 

wB 
a: u. w z 
l:..,w 
~!:,? :j 
III> W * ::l ffi ~ 
U v a&.t e 

Page 2 of 3 

Natural England is accredited to the Cabinet Office Service Excellence Standard 

Page 162



Alice Watson 
Consultations Team 

Page 3 of 3 

Natural England is accredited to the Cabinet Office Service Excellence Standard 

Page 163



:1- 4-2 

From: Toolan Adrian [mailto:Adrian.Toolan@networkrail.co.uk] On Behalf Of Town Planning SE 
Sent: 26 January 2016 11:21 
To: Planning Admin 
Subject: Network Rail consultation- 3918/15 

Dear Sir/Madam, 

Thank you very much for consulting with Network Rail in regards to application 3918/15. Please see 
related comments below; 

The developer/applicant must ensure that their proposal, both during construction and after 
completion of works on site, does not: 

• encroach onto Network Rail land 
• affect the safety, operation or integrity of the company's railway and its 

infrastructure 
• undermine its support zone 
• damage the company's infrastructu re 
• place additional load on cuttings 
• adversely affect any railway land or structure 
• over-sail or encroach upon the air-space of any Network Rail land 
• cause to obstruct or interfere with any works or proposed works or Network Rail 

development both now and in the future 

I give below my comments and requirements for the safe operation of the railway and the 
protection of Network Rail's adjoining land. 

Future maintenance 
The development must ensure that any future maintenance can be conducted solely on the 
applicant's land. The applicant must ensure that any construction and any subsequent maintenance 
can be carried out to any proposed buildings or structures without adversely affecting the safety of, 
or encroaching upon Network Ra il's adjacent land and air-space, and therefore all/any building 
should be situated at least 2 metres {3m for overhead lines and third rail) from Network Rail's 
boundary. The reason for the 2m {3m for overhead lines and third rail) stand off requirement is to 
allow for construction and future maintenance of a building and without requirement for access to 
the operational railway environment which may not necessarily be granted or if granted subject to 
railway site safety requirements and special provisions with all associated railway costs charged to 
the applicant. Any less than 2m {3m for overhead lines and third rail) and there is a strong possibility 
that the applicant (and any future resident) will need to utilise Network Rail land and air-space to 
facilitate works. The applicant I resident would need to receive approval for such works from the 

' Network Rail Asset Protection Engineer, the applicant I resident would need to submit the request 
at least 20 weeks before any works were due to commence on site and they wou ld be liable for all 
costs (e.g. all possession costs, all site safety costs, all asset protection presence costs). However, 
Network Rail is not required to grant permission for any third party access to its land. No 
structure/building should be built hard-against Network Rail's boundary as in this case there is an 
even higher probability of access to Network Rail land being required to undertake any construction 
I maintenance works. Equally any structure/building erected hard against the boundary with 
Network Rail will impact adversely upon our maintenance teams' ability to maintain our boundary 
fencing and boundary treatments. 

Drainage 

Page 164



No Storm/surface water or effluent should be discharged from the site or operations on the site into 
Network Rail's property or into Network Rail's culverts or drains except by agreement with Network 
Rail. Suitable drainage or other works must be provided and maintained by the Developer to prevent 
surface water flows or run-off onto Network Rail 's property. Proper provision must be made to 
accept and continue drainage discharging from Network Rail's property; full details to be submitted 
for approval to the Network Rail Asset Protection Engineer. Suitable foul drainage must be provided 
separate fr<:>m Network Rail's existing drainage. Soakaways, as a means of storm/surface water 
disposal must not be constructed near/within 10 - 20 metres of Network Rail's boundary or at any 
point which could adversely affect the stability of Network Rail's property. After the completion and 
occupation of the development, any new or exacerbated problems attributable to the new 
development shall be investigated and remedied at the applicants' expense. 

Plant & Materials 

All operations, including the use of cranes or other mechanical plant working adjacent to Network 
Rail's property, must at all times be carried out in a "fail safe" manner such that in the event of 
mishandling, collapse or failure, no plant or materials are capable of falling within 3.0m of the 
boundary with Network Rail. 

Scaffolding 

Any scaffold which is to be constructed within 10 metres of the railway boundary fence must be 
erected in such a manner that at no time will any poles over-sail the railway and protective netting 
around such scaffold must be installed. The applicant/applicant's contractor must consider if they 
can undertake the works and associated scaffold/access for working at height within the footprint of 
their property boundary. 

Piling 

Where vibro-compaction/displacement piling plant is to be used in development, details of the use 
of such machinery and a method statement should be submitted for the approval of the Network 
Rail's Asset Protection Engineer prior to the commencement of works and the works shall only be 
carried out in accordance with the approved method statement. 

Fencing 
In view of the nature of the development, it is essential that the developer provide (at their own 
expense) and thereafter maintain a substantial, trespass proof fence along the development side of 
the existing boundary fence, to a minimum height of 1.8 metres. The 1.8m fencing should be 
adjacent to the railway boundary and the developer/applicant should make provision for its future 
maintenance and renewal without encroachment upon Network Rail land. Network Rail's existing 
fencing I wall must not be removed or damaged and at no point either during construction or after 
works are completed on site should the foundations of the fencing or wall or any embankment · 
therein, be damaged, undermined or compromised in any way. Any vegetation on Network Rail land 
and within Network Rail's boundary must also not be disturbed. Any fencing installed by the 
applicant must not prevent Network Rail from maintaining its own fencing/boundary treatment. 

lighting 
Any lighting associated with the development (including vehicle lights) must not interfere with the 
sighting of signalling apparatus and/or train drivers vision on approaching trains. The location and 
colour of lights must not give rise to the potential for confusion with the signalling arrangements on 
the railway. The developers should obtain Network Rail's Asset Protection Engineer's approval of 
their detailed proposals regarding lighting. 

Noise and Vibration 

Page 165



The potential for any noise/ vibration impacts caused by the proximity between the proposed 
development and any exist ing railway must be assessed in the context of the National Planning 
Policy Framework which holds relevant national guidance information. The current level of usage 
may be subject to change at any t ime without notification including incre·ased frequency of trains, 
night time train running and heavy freight trains. 

Landscaping 
Where trees/shrubs are to be planted adjacent to the railway boundary these shrubs should be 
positioned at a minimum distance greater than their predicted mature height from the 
boundary. Certa in broad leaf deciduous species should not be planted adjacent to the railway 
boundary as the species will contribute to leaf fall which will have a detrimental effect on the safety 
and operation of the railway. We would wish to be involved in the approval of any landscaping 
scheme adjacent to the railway. Where landscaping is proposed as part of an applicat ion adjacent to 
the railway it will be necessary for details of the landscaping to be known and approved to ensure it 
does not impact upon the railway infrastructure. Any hedge planted adjacent to Network Rail's 
boundary fencing for screening purposes should be so placed that w hen fully grown it does not 
damage the fencing or provide a means of scaling it. No hedge should prevent Network Rail from 
maintaining its boundary fencing. Lists oftrees that are permitted and those that are not permitted 
are provided below and these should be added to any tree planting condit ions: 

Permitted: Birch (Betu la), Crab Apple (Malus Sylvestris), Field Maple (Acer Campestre), Bird Cherry 
(Prunus Pad us), Wild Pear (Pyrs Communis), Fir Trees - Pines (Pinus), Hawthorne (Cretaegus), 
Mountain Ash- White beams (Sorbus), False Acacia (Robinia), Willow Shrubs (Shrubby Salix), Thuja 
Plicatat "Zebrina" 

Not Permitted: Alder (Alnus Glutinosa), Aspen- Popular (Populus), Beech (Fagus Sylvatica), Wild 
Cherry (Prunus Avium), Hornbeam (Carpinus Betulus), Small-leaved Lime (Tilia Cordata), Oak 
(Quercus), Willows (Salix Willow), Sycamore- Norway Maple (Acer), Horse Chestnut (Aesculus 
Hippocastanum), Sweet Chestnut (Castanea Sativa), London Plane (Platanus Hispanica). 

Vehicle Incursion 
Where a proposa l calls for hard standing area I parking of vehicles area near the boundary with the 
operationa l railway, Network Rail would recommend the installation of a highways approved vehicle 
incursion barrier or high kerbs to prevent vehicles accidentally driving or rolling onto the railway or 
damaging lineside fencing. 

As the site is adjacent to Network Rail's operational railway infrastructure, Network Rail strongly 
recommends the developer contacts AssetProtectionAnglia@networkrail.co.uk prior to any works 
commencing on site, and also to agree an Asset Protection Agreement with us to enable approval of 
detailed works. More information can also be obtained from our website at 
www.networkrail.co.uk/aspx/1538.aspx. 

Kind regards, 

Property 

Adrian Toolan, 

Town Planning Technician, 

Page 166



1 Eversholt St reet , 
London, 
NW12DN. 
Mobile - 07710 959 611 
Adrian.Toolan@networkrail.co.uk 

*************************************************************************** 
*************************************************************************** 
********** 

The content of this email (and any attachment) is confidential. It may also be legally 
privileged or otherwise protected from disclosure. 
This email should not be used by anyone who is not an original intended recipient, nor may it 
be copied or disclosed to anyone who is not an original intended recipient. 

If you have received this email by mistake please notify us by emailing the sender, and then 
delete the email and any copies from your system. 

Liability cannot be ,accepted for statements made which are clearly the sender's own and not 
made on behalf of Network Rail. 
Network Rail Infrastructure Limited registered in England and Wales No. 2904587, 
registered office Network Rail, 2nd Floor, One Eversholt Street, London, NWl 2DN 

*************************************************************************** 
*************************************************************************** 
********** 

Page 167



Consultee Comments for application 3918/15 

Application Summary 

Application Number: 3918/15 

Address: Former Grampian Harris site, St Edmunds Drive, ElmsweiiiP30 9HF 

Proposal: Application for approval of reserved matters pursuant to outline planning permission 

0846/13 relating to Appearance, Landscaping, Layout & Scale for the development which includes 

the erection of 190 residential dwell ings 

Case Officer: Rebecca Biggs 

Consultee Details 

Name: Mr Robert Boardman (Stowmarket Ramblers) 

Address: 8 Gardeners Walk, Elmswell, Bury St Edmunds IP30 9ET 

Email: bob@gardeners8.plus.com 

On Behalf Of: Ramblers Association - Bob Boardman 

Comments 

The Footpath Committee of Stowmarket Ramblers have viewed this application and we have 

serious concerns with the plans to divert the footpath not through the development as such but 

with its destination at the railway foot crossing. This will deliver many new residents to this 

increasingly busy and potentially dangerious crossing. 

Network Rail wish to close this type of crossing as soon as possible but as yet there is no firm 

proposals as to an alternative means of crossing the railway lines. 

The committee has discussed with interested bodies how this crossing closure may be achived 

and we have views as to the alternative route for this footpath. 

We wi ll make known our proposals when a plan is publ ished . 

Page 168



Rebecca Biggs 

From: 
Sent : 

Stephen Lee- TW East Ang lia <Stephen.Lee@taylorwimpey.com> 
11 May 2016 14:38 

To: Rebecca Biggs 
Subject: FW: Harris Bacon Site, Elmswell 

From: Julie Abbey-Taylor [mailto:Julie.Abbey-Taylor@baberghmidsuffolk.gov.uk] 
Se nt: 19 April 2016 14:04 
To: Henrietta Pointer 
Subject: RE: Harris Bacon Site, Elmswell 

Hi Henrietta sorry for the delay- I thought I had replied!! 

I would have liked to see slightly better space standards but will agree this mix in order to move forward and deliver 

the site. 
Could you tell me which RP's have bid for the AH units on the site please? 

Many thanks, 

Julie 

Julie Abbey-Taylor 
Professional lead- Housing Enabling 
Babergh & Mid Suffolk District Councils 
Tel: 01449 724782 
Email: julie.ab bey-taylor@baberghmidsuffolk.gov. uk 

*** Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) charging is coming to Mid Suffolk and Babergh on 
the 11th April 2016. See our websites for the latest information here: MSDC-CIL BDC-CIL 
**** 

From: Henrietta Pointer 
Sent : 14 April 2016 10:28 
To: 'Julie Abbey-Taylor' 
Subject: RE: Harris Bacon Site, Elmswell 

Hi Julie, 

Glad you are feeling better! 
Thanks for your email, I passed it on to Taylor Wimpey. 
The mix they are proposing is as follows:-

Rent 
8 x 1 bed house 2 person @ 55.9 sqm (HQI require 45-50 sqm) 
1 x 2 bed bungalow 4 person@ 67.5 sqm (HQI require 67-75 sqm) 
5 x 2 bed house 4 person@ 75.1 sqm (HQI require 67-75 sqm) 
2 x 3 bed house 5 person@ 84.5 sqm (HQI require 75-85 sqm) 

Shared 

1 
Page 169



3 x 2 bed house 4 person@ 75.1 sqm (HQI require 67-75 sqm) 
2 x 3 bed house 5 person@ 84.5 sqm (HQI require 75-85 sqm) 

The one beds are big enough and the 1 bed house has been moved from shared ownership to rented. 
I hope this is now ok with you? 

Best wishes, 

Henrietta 

Henrietta Pointer BA (Hons) 

Business Officer 

{92usiNG ~~~9E.,~~!~.~ 

Tel Mobile: 07584 411448 DOl: 015< 

Switchboard: 01508 570005 Fax: 0150 

Website: www .housingexpectatio 
Email : henriettapointer@housingexpect; 

This e-mail is confidential and privileged. If you are not the intended recipient please accept our apologies; please do not disclose, copy or distribute information in this • 
to do so is strictly prohibited and may be unlawful. Please inform us that this message has gone astray before deleting it. Thank you for your co-operation. 

2 
Page 170



··- .. ~ ...... .. . . .. . 

. ( 

Tracey Hunter 

From~ 

Sent: 
Barrel l, Shaun <shaun.barrell@ukpQ.wernetworks.co.uk> 
08 April 2016 15:58 

To: Planning Admin 

Subject: Application 3918/15 - Objection 

Categories: Blue Category 

Dear Sirs 

You have written to EDF Energy as a consultee for the above application however this should have been address to 
either UK Power Networks or Eastern Power Networks. ., 
I can confirm that UK Power Networks objects to the application as made. UK Power Networks enjoys access and 
cable rights that cro~s the former Grampian Harris site for the oenefit of our Primary Electricity Substation adjacent to 
the site. The proposal would infringe our dghts with the proposed construction of dwellings on land subject to the 
easement, this has been highlighted at more than one occasion when consulted previously on the plans for this site 
but appears to have been ignored . 

Regards 

Shaun Bar.rell 
Major Projects & Protected Areas Wayleave Surveyor 
Property & Consents 

Barton Road 
Bury St Edmunds 

· Suffolk 

IP32 7BG 

01284 726416 
shaun.barrell@ukpowernetworks.co.uk 

_,/~ 

/2. /~/16 ... f 
. !!&. 

This email and any attachments are strictly confidential and may contain legally privileged information. It is 
intended forth~ addressee(s) qnly. If you are not the intended recipient, please do not print, copy, store or 
act in reliance on the e-mail or any of its attachments. Instead, please notify the sender immediately and 

( then delete the e-mail and any attachments. 

Unless expressly stated to the contrary, the opinions expressed in this e-mail are not necessarily the opinions 
of UK Power Networks Holdings Limited or those of its subsidiaries or affiliates (together Group 
Companies) and the Group Companies, their directors, officers and employees make no representation and 
accept no liability for the accuracy or completeness of this e-mail or its attachments. 

This e-mail has been scanned for malicious content but the Group Companies cannot accept any liability for 
the integrity of this message or its attachments. No employee or agent of the Group Companies is authorised 
to conclude any binding agreement on behalf of a Group Company or any related company by e-mail. · 

All e-mails sent and received by any Group Company are monitored to ensure compliance with the Group 
Companies inform~tion security policy. E xecutable and script files are not permitted through the mail 
gateway of UK Power Networks Holdings Limited. The Group Companies do not accept or send emails 
above 3 0 Mb in size. 

UK Power Networks Holdings Limited 
Registered in England and Wales No. 7290590. 
Registered Office: Newington House, 237 Southwark Bridge Road,. London SEl 

1 Page 171



,. 

( 

( 

... 

FROM: 
TO: 
OUR REF: 
DATE: 

PROPOSAL: 

LOCATION: 

lSO 
MEMORANDUM 

PLANNING CONTROL MANAGER 
Hannah Bridges 
3918/15 - AMENDED PLANS 
23/03/2016 

Application for approval of reserved matters pursuant to outline planning 
permission 0846/13 relating to Appearance, Landscaping, Layout & Scale 
for the development which includes the erection of 190 residential 
dwellings 
Former Grampian. Harris site, St Edmunds Drive, ElmsweiiiP30 9HF 

I recently sent you a consultation in respect of the above application for Approval of 
Reserved Matters. 

I have recently received further information/revised plans in respect of this and would ask 
you to take this additional information in account when replying. Please ensure that I receive 
your reply by 13/04/2016 at the latest. 

Planning Control Manager 

My observations are: 

From viewing the amended proposed plans the only concern that I have is that access might be too narrow 
for a dustcart to access should there be cars parking infront of the properties, I have highlighed the area in 
concern. 

There are also soft verges which are located in front of most properties, we would prefer these to be hard standing 
rather than grassed areas as these areas might have to be driven over should cars be parked awkwardly 
preventing access to collect bins. Other developments have had to have these areas changed from 
soft verges to be tarmac for this reason. 

Signed: 

Dated: 

H.Bridges 

13/04/2016 

Page 172



{ 

I 
s 
~ 

Page 173



Mid Suffolk District Council Planning Control Department 
131 High Street Needham Market IP6 8DL 

OUTLINE PLANNING PERMISSION 
Town and Country Planning Act 1990 

THE TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING (DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT 
PROCEDURE) (ENGLAND) ORDER 2010 

Date of Application: March 26, 2013 
Date Registered: April 15, 2013 

REFERENCE: 0846 I 13 

Documents to which th is decision relates: 947-02 Rev K 

CORRESPONDENCE ADDRESS: 

Mr Bloomfield 
Bidwells 
16 Upper King Street 

· Norwich 
NR31 HA 

NAME AND ADDRESS OF APPLICANT: 

Harrow Estates pic 
Bridgemere House 
Chester Road 
Preston Brook 
Cheshire 
WA7 3BD 

PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT AND LOCATION OF THE LAND: 

Outline planning application for demolition of all buildings on site (comprising 
redundant factory buildings in Use Class B2, settlement tanks and 6 derelict 
residential properties) and erection of up to 190 residential dwellings and pumping 
station. Construction of a new access road to Station Road . (Appearance, 
landscaping , layout and scale to be the subject of a future reserved matters 
application) 

-Former Grampian Harris, St Edmunds Drive, Elmswell 

The Council, as local planning authority, hereby gives notice that OUTLINE PLANNING 
PERMISSION HAS BEEN GRANTED in accordance with the application particulars and plans 

submitted subject to the following conditions: 

1. ACTION REQUIRED PRIOR TO COMMENCEMENT OF ANY WORKS 

Details of the appearance, scale and layout of the bui lding(s) and the landscaping of 
the site (hereinafter called "the reserved matters") shall be submitted to and approved 
in writing by the Local Planning Authority for each phase of the development, before 
any development within that phase begins. The development shall be carried out as 
approved. 

Reason - To enable the Local Planning Authority to secure an orderly and well 
designed development in accordance with the character and appearance of the 
neighbourhood and in accordance with the Mid Suffolk Local Plan. 

Page 174



.1_53 

2. TIME LIMIT FOR RESERVED MATTERS APPLICATION 

Application for approval of reserved matters must be made not later than the 
expiration of three years beginning with the date of this permission, and the 
development must be begun not later than the expiration of two years from the final 
approval of the reserved matters or, in the case of approval on different dates the 
final approval of the last such matter fo be approved. 

Reason - Required to be imposed pursuant to Section 92 of the Town and Country 
Planning Act 1990 as amended by Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory 
Purchase Act 2004 

3. PRIOR TO COMMENCEMENT OF DEVELOPMENT - PHASING OF WORKS 

No development shall commence, except for demolition and remediation, until a 
phasing plan for its construction has been submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority. The development shall be carried out, completed and 
occupied in accordance with the approved programme. 

Reason - In order to secure an orderly development in the interests, and to safeguard 
the proper and timely build-out of the scheme in the interests of good design. 

4. ARCHAEOLOGICAL INVESTIGATION ACTION REQUIRED BEFORE WORKS 
COMMENCE 

No development shall take place within the area the whole site until the 
implementation of a programme of archaeological work has been secured, in 
accordance with a Written Scheme of Investigation which has been submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
The scheme of investigation shall include an assessment of significance and 
research questions; and: 
a. The programme and methodology of site investigation and recording 
b. The programme for post investigation assessment 
c. Provision to be made for analysis of the site investigation and recording 
d. Provision to be made for publication and dissemination of the analysis and records 
of the site investigation 
e. Provision to be made for archive deposition of the analysis and records of the site 
investigation 
f. Nomination of a competent person or persons/organisation to undertake the works 
set out within the Written Scheme of Investigation. 
g. The site investigation shall be completed prior to development, or in such other 
phased arrangement, as agreed and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. 

Reason - To allow proper investigation and recording of the site that is potentially of 
archaeological and historic significance. 

5. PRIOR TO OCCUPATION- ARCHAEOLOGICAL ASSESSMENT COMPLETION 

No dwelling shall be occupied until the site investigation and post investigation 
assessment has been completed, submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority, in accordance with the programme set out in the Written Scheme . 

Page 175



of Investigation approved under Condition 4 and the provision made for analysis, 
publication and dissemination of results and archive deposition. 

Reason - To allow proper investigation and recording of the site that is potentially of 
archaeological and historic significance. 

6. ACTION REQUIRED PRIOR TO COMMENCEMENT OF ANY WORKS 

No development above slab level shall commence in relation to any phase of the 
development until precise details of the manufacturer and types and colours of the 
external facing and roofing materials to be used in construction have been submitted 
to and agreed, in writing , by the Local Planning Authority. Such materials as may be 
agreed shall be those used in the development unless otherwise agreed, in writing, at 
a later date with the Local Planning Authority. 

Reason- To secure an orderly and well designed development sympathetic to the 
character of the existing building(s) and in the interests of visual amenity and the 
character and appearance of the area. 

7. PRIOR TO ANY WORKS COMMENCING: SURFACE WATER DRAINAGE 
DETAILS ~EQUIRED 

No development shall commence, with the exception of demolition and remediation, 
until full details of surface water drainage have been submitted to and agreed, in 
writing, by the Local Planning Authority. No part of the development shall be first 
occupied or brought into use until the agreed method of surface water drainage has 
been fully installed and is functionally available for use. 

Reason - To safeguard the ground water environment and minimise the risk of 
flooding. 

8. ACTION REQUIRED PRIOR TO COMMENCEMENT OF ANY WORKS 

No development shall take place, with the exception of demolition and remediation, 
until there has been submitted to and approved, in writing, by the Local Planning 
Authority a scheme of hard and soft landscaping works for the site, which shall 
include any proposed changes in ground levels and also accurately identify spread, 
girth and species of all existing trees, shrubs and hedgerows on the site and indicate 
any to be retained, together with measures for their protection which shall comply 
with the recommendations set out in the British Standards Institute publication "BS 
5837: 2005 - Trees in Relation to Construction." Any landscaping scheme must take 
into account the recommendations for Ecology mitigation as stated in Naturally Wild 
Phase 1 Habitat Survey and Protected Species Surveys, former Grampian Country 
Foods Factory, Elmswell, Suffolk received 26th March 2013. 

Reason - In the interests of visual amenity and the character and appearance of the 
area. 

9. TIMESCALE FOR LANDSCAPING 

All changes in ground levels, hard landscaping, planting, seeding or turfing shown on 
the approved landscaping details shall be carried out in full during the first planting 
and seeding season (October - March inclusive) following the commencement of the 

Page 176



development or in such other phased arrangement as may be agreed in writing by 
the Local Planning Authority. Any trees, hedges, shrubs or turf identified within the 
approved landscaping details (both proposed planting and existing) which die, are 
removed, seriously damaged or seriously diseased, within a period of 5 years of 
being planted or in the case of existing planting within a period of 5 years from the 
commencement of development, shall be replaced in the next planting season with 
others of similar size and species, unless the Local Planning Authority agrees in 
writing to a variation of the previously approved details. 

Reason - To ensure that the approved landscaping scheme has sufficient time to 
establish, in the interests of visual amenity and the character and appearance of the 
area. 

1 0. ACTION REQUIRED PRIOR TO COMMENCEMENT OF ANY WORKS 

No development shall commence, with the exception of demolition and remediation, 
before a scheme has been submitted to and agreed with the Local Planning 
Authority, which specifies the provisions to protect the amenity of occupiers of the 
dwellings from noise from adjoining uses. 

Reason - To ensure the continuation of the neighbouring uses without detrimentally 
affecting the amenity of occupiers the proposed dwellings due to noise. 

11. HIGHWAYS: PROVISION OF ACCESS PRIOR TO DEVELOPMENT/OCCUPATION 

The new vehicular access shall be laid out constructed up to base course level in 
accordance with Drawing No. 947-02 Rev Kanda surface course laying programme 
will have been submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority 
prior to occupation of the dwellings. The surface course shall be laid in accordance 
with the agreed programme and the access shall be retained thereafter in its 
specified form. 

Reason - To ensure that the access is designed and constructed to an appropriate 
specification and made available for use at an appropriate time in the interests of 
highway safety. 

12. HIGHWAYS: BEFORE USE- PROVISION OF VISIBILITY SPLAYS 

Before the access is first used visibility splays shall be provided as shown on 
Drawing No. 947-02 Rev K and thereafter retained in the specified form. 
Notwithstanding the provisions of Part 2 Class A of the Town & Country Planning 
(General Permitted Development) Order 1995 (or any Order revoking and 
re-enacting that Order with or without modification) no obstruction over 0.6 metres 
high shall be erected, constructed, planted or permitted to grow within the areas of 
the visibility splays. 

Reason - To ensure vehicles exiting the drive would have sufficient visibility to enter 
the public highway safely and vehicles on the public highway would have sufficient 
warning of a vehicle emerging in order to take avoiding action 

13. CONSTRUCTION OF FOOTWAY LINK 

No occupation shall take place until the details of the proposed footway link to the 

Page 177



industrial estate and a programme for its construction has been ·submitted to, and 
approved in writing by, the local planning authority. Development shall be carried out 
in accordance with the approved details and programme. 

Refuse: To provide a sustainable link to the development. 

14. PRIOR TO FIRST OCCUPATION: TRAVEL PLAN 

Prior to first occupation of the dwellings hereby approved, a travel plan shall be 
submitted to and agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The provisions of 
the approved travel plan shall be maintained unless otherwise agreed in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority. 

Reason: To encourage the use of public transport in order to limit effects of the 
proposal of the local highway. 

15. PRIOR TO COMMENCEMENT OF DEVELOPMENT: FIRE HYDRANTS 

Prior to commencement of development, with the exception of demolition and 
remediation, details for the phased provision of fire hydrants throughout the site shall 
be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority . Thereafter, 
the scheme as approved shall be fully implemented in accordance with the said 
approved details and phasing plan, unless otherwise agreed, in writing, by the Local 
Planning Authority, concurrent with the delivery of the buildings to be served hereby. 

Reason - To facilitate the provision of appropriate fire protection measures in the 
interests of safety. 

16. ACTION REQUIRED PRIOR TO COMMENCEMENT DEVELOPMENT: MITIGATION 
TO BE AGREED 

Prior to the commencement of development a scheme of appropriate mitigation and 
biodiversity enhancement measures (including precise details of the timing, any 
translocation measures deemed necessary and method of protection) shall be 
submitted to and approved, in writing, by the Local Planning Authority in accordance 
with the recommendations of Naturally Wild Phase 1 Habitat Survey and Protected 
Species Surveys, former Grampian Country Foods Factory, Elmswell, Suffolk 
received 26th March 2013. No development shall be undertaken except in 
accordance with the approved scheme of mitigation and timings agreed. 

Reason - In . order to safeguard protected wildlife species and their habitats in 
accordance with the NPPF. 

17. PRIOR TO DEVELOPMENT: MITIGATION OF RISK AT HAWK END LAND 
CROSSING 

No development, with the exception of demolition and remediation, shall take place 
on the site until a strategy for mitigating risk at Hawk End Lane crossing has been 
agreed in writing by the planning authority. The strategy shall have been the subject 
of consultation by the developer with Network Rail and the Parish Council and shall 
demonstrate the steps taken to address advice given. The strategy shall include a 
clear timetable for delivery of mitigation of risk relative to the construction and 
occupation of the development. The development and any risk mitigation measures 

Page 178



18. 

251 

shall thereafter be delivered in accordance with the agreed strategy and timetable. 

Reason: To provide a strategy to mitigate the risk to pedestrians from the 
development from crossing the railway at Hawk End Lane. 

CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT TO BE AGREED PRIOR TO COMMENCEMENT 

No development shall take place, including any works of demolition, until a 
Construction Environment Management Plan (CEMP) has been submitted to, and 
approved in writing by, the local planning authority. The approved Plan shall be 
adhered to throughout the demolition and construction periods and shall incorporate 
the following information:-

a) Details of the hours of work/construction of the development within which such 
operations shall take place and the hours within which delivery/collection of materials 
for the said construction shall take place at the site. 

b) Details of the storage of construction materials on site, including details of their 
siting and maximum storage height. 

c) Details of how construction and worker traffic and parking shall be managed. 

d) Details of any protection measures for footpaths surrounding the site. 

e) Details of any means of access to the site during construction. 

f) Details of the scheduled timing/phasing of development for the overall construction 
period. 

g) Details of a strategy to minimalise waste from the site. 

The construction shall at all times be undertaken in accordance with the agreed 
methodology unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 

Reason - To minimise detriment to nearby residential and general amenity. 

19. PRIOR TO ANY WORKS COMMENCING: SURFACE WATER DRAINAGE 
DETAILS REQUIRED 

20. 

No development shall commence, except for demolition and remediation until full 
details of foul water drainage have been submitted to and agreed, in writing, by the 
Local Planning Authority. No part of the development shall be first occupied or 
brought into use until the agreed method of foul water drainage has been fully 
installed and is functionally available for use. 

Reason - To safeguard the ground water environment and minimise the risk of 
flooding. 

LISTING OF APPROVED PLANS & DOCUMENTS 

The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the 
following approved documents or such other drawings/documents as may be 
approved by the Local Planning Authority in writing pursuant to other conditions of 

Page 179



j_S8 

this permission/consent; or such drawings/documents as may subsequently be 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority as a non material amendment 
following an application in that regard : 

947-02 Rev K 

Reason - For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning of the 
development. 

SUMMARY OF POLICIES AND PROPOSALS WH ICH ARE RELEVANT TO THE 
DECISION: 

1. Th is permission has been granted having regard to policy(ies) 

COR1 - CS1 SETTLEMENT HIERARCHY 
COR2- CS2 DEVELOPMENT IN THE COUNTRYSIDE & COUNTRYSIDE 
VILLAGES 
COR3 - CS3 REDUCE CONTRIBUTIONS TO CLIMATE CHANGE 
COR4- CS4 ADAPTING TO CLIMATE CHANGE 
COR5- CS5 MID SUFFOLKS ENVIRONMENT 
COR6- CS6 SERVICES AND INFRASTRUCTURE 
COR?- CS7 BROWN FIELD TARGET 
COR8- CSB PROVISION AND DISTRIBUTION OF HOUSING 
COR9 - CS9 DENSITY AND MIX 
COR11 - CS11 SUPPLY OF EMPLOYMENT LAND 
CSFR-FC1 -PRESUMPTION IN FAVOUR OF SUSTAINABLE 
DEVELOPMENT 
CSFR-FC1.1 -MID SUFFOLK APPROACH TO DELIVERING SUSTAINABLE 
DEVELOPMENT 
CSFR-FC2- PROVISION AND DISTRIBUTION OF HOUSING 
CSFR-FC3- SUPPLY OF EMPLOYMENT LAND 

of the Mid Suffolk Core Strategy Document, and to all other material 
considerations.The carrying out of the development permitted, subject to the 
conditions imposed, would accord with those policies and in the opinion of 
the Local Planning Authority there are no circumstances which otherwise 
would justify the refusal of permission. 

2. -r:his permission has been granted having regard to policy(ies) 

GP1 - DESIGN AND lAYOUT OF DEVELOPMENT 
H17 - KEEPING RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT AWAY FROM POLLUTION 
HB14- ENSURING ARCHAEOLOGICAL REMAINS ARE NOT DESTROYED 
H7 - RESTRICTING HOUSING DEVELOPMENT 
H13 - DESIGN AND lAYOUT OF HOUSING DEVELOPMENT 
H14- A RANGE OF HOUSE TYPES TO MEET DIFFERENT ACCOMMODATION NEEDS 
H15 - DEVELOPMENT TO REFLECT LOCAL CHARACTERISTICS 
CL8- PROTECTING WILDLIFE HABITATS 
E4- PROTECTING EXISTING INDUSTRIAL/BUSINESS AREAS 
E6- RETENTION OF INDIVIDUAL INDUSTRIAL AND COMMERCIAL SITES 
E7- NON-CONFORMING INDUSTRIAL USES 
T2 - MINOR HIGHWAY IMPROVEMENTS 
T4- PlANNING OBLIGATIONS AND HIGHWAYS INFRASTRUCTURE 
T9- PARKING STANDARDS 

Page 180



;15 9' 

H3 - HOUSING DEVELOPMENT IN VILLAGES 
T9- PARKING STANDARDS 
T10 - HIGHWAY CONSIDERATIONS IN DEVELOPMENT 
T11 - FACILITIES FOR PEDESTRIANS AND CYCLISTS 
T12- DESIGNING FOR PEOPLE WITH DISABILITIES 
T13 - BUS SERVICES 
RT1 - SPORTS AND RECREATION FACILITIES FOR LOCAL COMMUNITIES 
RT4- AMENITY OPEN SPACE AND PLAY AREAS WITHIN RESIDENTIAL DEV'T 
RT5 - RECREATIONAL FACILITIES AS PART OF OTHER DEVELOPMENT 
RT6- SPORT AND RECREATION FACILITIES IN THE COUNTRYSIDE 
RT11 -FACILITIES FOR INFORMAL COUNTRYSIDE RECREATION 
RT12- FOOTPATHS AND BRIDLEWAYS 
SC4 - PROTECTION OF GROUNDWATER SUPPLIES 

. of the Mid Suffolk Local Plan, and to all other material considerations.The 
carrying out of the development permitted , subject to the conditions imposed, 
would accord with those policies and in the opinion of the Local Planning 
Authority there are no circumstances which otherwise would justify the refusal 
of permission. 

3. This permission has been granted having regard to policy(ies) 

NPPF- NATIONAL PLANNING POLICY FRAMEWORK 
C0299- CIRCULAR 02/99: ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT ASSESSMENT 
C0505 - CIRCULAR 05/05: PLANNING OBLIGATIONS 
C1195 - CIRCULAR 11/95: USE OF CONDITIONS IN PLANNING PERMISSION 

of the Planning Policy Statement, and to all other material considerations. The 
carrying out of the development permitted , subject to the conditions 
imposed , would accord with those policies and in the opinion of the Local 
Planning Authority there are no circumstances which otherwise would justify 
the refusal of permission . 

NOTES: 

1. Summary Reason(s) for Approval 

The proposal has been assessed with regard to adopted development plan policies, 
the National Planning Policy Framework and all other material considerations. 

Taking all relevant matters into account the proposal is considered to be acceptable 
subject to appropriate conditions. 

Statement of positive and proactive working in line with the National Planning Policy 
Framework (NPPF): 

The NPPF encourages a positive and proactive approach to decision taking, delivery 
of sustainable development, achievement of high quality development and working 
proactively to secure developments that improve the economic, social and 
environmental conditions of the area: 

In this case the applicant took advantage of the Council's pre-application and duty 

Page 181



planning officer service prior to making the application. The opportunity to discuss a 
proposal prior to making an application allows potential issues to be raised and 
addressed pro-actively at an early stage,. potentially allowing the Council to make a 
favourable determination for a greater proportion of applications than if no such 
service was available. 

2. It is an OFFENCE to carry out works within the public highway, which includes a 
Public Right of Way, without the permission of the Highway Authority. 

Any conditions which involve work within the limits of the public highway do not give 
the applicant permission to carry them out. Unless otherwise agreed in writing all 
works within the public highway shall be carried out by the County Council or its 
agents at the applicant's expense. 

The County Council's Central Area Manager should be contacted on Telephone 
01473 341414. 

A fee is payable to the Highway Authority for the assessment and inspection of both 
new vehicular crossing access works and improvements deemed necessary to 
existing vehicular crossings due to proposed development. 

3. The applicanUdeveloper is advised that the application site is, or appears to be, 
affected by the existence of a public right of way. It should be noted that:-

(i) it is an offence to obstruct or divert a public right of way (or otherwise 
prevent free passage on it) without the proper authority having been 
first obtained. In the first instance contact should be made with 
Sharon Berry Public Rights of Way Officer, Mid. Suffolk District 
Council, 131 High Street, Needham Market, Suffolk IP6 8DL. The 
telephone number is 01449 724634. (email 
sharon.berry@midsuffolk.gov.uk) 

(ii) The granting of planning permission does not authorise the 
undertaking of any work on a public right of way. Where it is 
necessary for a right of way to be stopped-up or diverted in order that 
development may take place, no work may take place upon the line of 
the right of way until an appropriate order has been made and 
confirmed (see (i) above). The applicanUdeveloper should note that 
there is a charge for making a change to the rights of way network. 

(iii) Where a private means of access coincides with a public right of way, 
the granting of planning permission cannot authorise the erection of 
gates across the line or the carrying out of any works on the surface 
of the right of way and that permission for any changes to the surface 
must be sought from the highway authority (Suffolk County Council). 

This re lates to document reference: 0846 I 13 

Signed: Philip Isbell 

Corporate Manager 
Development Management 

Dated: March 17, 2015 

MID SUFFOLK DISTRICT COUNCIL, 131 HIGH STREET, NEEDHAM MARKET, 
IPSWICH IP6 SOL 

Page 182



MID SUFFOLK DISTRICT COUNCIL 
DEVELOPMENT CONTROL COMMITTEE- 25 May 2016 

AGENDA ITEM NO 
APPLICATION NO 
PROPOSAL 
SITE LOCATION 
SITE AREA (Ha) 
APPLICANT 
RECEIVED 
EXPIRY DATE 

2 
1873/16 
Erection of two storey side extension. 
10 Eastward Place, Stowmarket, IP14 1HB 

Mr & Mrs Masterson 
April15, 2016 
June 11 , 2016 

REASONS FOR REFERENCE TO COMMITTEE 

The applicants are related to a Member of staff at Babergh/MidSuffolk District Councils and 
the application is reported on the advice of the Development Management Corporate 
Manag~r. · 

PRE-APPLICATION ADVICE 

1. Pre application advice was not sought in respect of this proposal. 

SITE AND SURROUNDINGS 

2. The application building is a detached 2 storey dwelling. The site has an area of 
parking to the front with a driveway and garage to the rear. The garden is to the 
south elevation and laid to grass with an area of decking to the east. The 
surrounding area has a mix of dwellings to the north and east with a large open 
grassed amenity area with a TPO's tree in the middle, apartments to the south 
and police station to the west. 

HISTORY · 

The property is located along a small road leading to Evelyn Fison House and 
mews. 

3. There is no planning history relevant to the application site. 

PROPOSAL 

4. Erection of a two storey side extension to enlarge two existing bedrooms and a 
sitting room area at ground floor. The extension will match the eaves height and 
will be slightly below the overall height of the main dwelling. 

Page 183



POLICY 

5. Planning Policy Guidance 

See Appendix below. 

CONSULTATIONS 

6. MSDC - Environmental Health - Land Contamination 

No objections 

MSDC - Tree & Landscape Officer 

No arboricultural implications relating to this proposal. 

LOCAL AND THIRD PARTY REPRESENTATIONS 

7. This is a summary of the representations received. 

No comments received. 

ASSESSMENT 

8. There are a number of considerations which will be addressed as follows. 

• Principle of Development 
• Design and Layout 
• Residential Amenity 
• Impact on Conservation Area 

Principle of Development 

The property is a dwelling house and subject to policy constraints, and ensuring 
no material harm to the building, the erection of householder extensions and 
outbuildings within the domestic curtilage are in accordance with pol icy. 

Design and Layout 

The extension is on the side (south) elevation and extends out to two storey. 
The extension will have a window at first floor and ground floor in the east 
elevation and a small window at first floor and large bi-fold doors at ground floor 
level to the south elevation. The materials will be hardiplank with slate tiles to the 
roof. 

The form and detailing of the proposed extension are considered to be in 
keeping with the character and appearance of the host dwelling and the area in 
general. 

Page 184



Residential Amenity 

The proposed extension is not considered to give rise to loss of neighbour 
amenity. The proposed window in the south elevation effectively moves an 
existing window 3.3m closer to the boundary of the property, however there is 
still a good separation distance from the neighbour to avoid significant loss of 
amenity that would warrant refusal. On that basis no significant residential 
amenity issues have been identified. 

Heritage 

The site is adjacent to Evelyn Fison House a grade 2 listed building. No 
comments have been received from our Heritage Team at this time and shall be 
reported at committee. Overall in heritage terms the extension would form part 
of the current dwelling and be retained in visual terms to the current plot. The 
design is not considered intrusive and on this basis no harm to the setting of the 
nearby Listed Building is envisaged. 

The application raises no issues with regard to the protected tree to the frontage 
and the extension relates to a different part of the dwel ling. 

Conclusion 

In assessing the development on its merits, and having regard to relevant 
national and local planning pol icy, the proposed two storey side extension is 
considered to be in keeping with the existing dwelling and to have no detrimental 
impact on the character of the area, neighbouring amenity or other material 
planning matters. It is considered to accord with development plan policies GP1 , 
SB2, H16, H18, H17, HB1 , CL6, Cor 5, FC1 & FC1.1 and national planning 
guidance in the NPPF. 

RECOMMENDATION 

That Planning Permission be granted subject to conditions:-

• Time Limit 
• Approved Plans as agreed 
• Materials to be agreed 

Philip Isbell 
Professional Lead - Growth & Sustainable Planning 

APPENDIX A - PLANNING POLICIES 

Sarah Scott 
Planning Officer 

1. Mid Suffolk Core Strategy Development Plan Document and the Core Strategy 
Focused Review 

CSFR-FC1 -PRESUMPTION IN FAVOUR OF SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT 

Page 185



CSFR-FC1.1 - MID SUFFOLK APPROACH TO DELIVERING SUSTAINABLE 
DEVELOPMENT 
Cor5 - CS5 Mid Suffolks Environment 

2. Mid Suffolk Local Plan 

H17 - KEEPING RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT AWAY FROM POLLUTION 
CL8 - PROTECTING WILDLIFE HABITATS 
CL6 - TREE PRESERVATION ORDERS 
HB1 - PROTECTION OF HISTORIC BUILDINGS 
GP1 - DESIGN AND LAYOUT OF DEVELOPMENT 
SB2 - DEVELOPMENT APPROPRIATE TO ITS SETTING 
H16 - PROTECTING EXISTING RESIDENTIAL AMENITY 
H18 - EXTENSIONS TO EXISTING DWELLINGS 

3. Planning Policy Statements, Circulars & Other policy 

NPPF - National Planning Policy Framework 

APPENDIX 8- NEIGHBOUR REPRESENTATIONS 

No letters of representation have been received. 

Page 186



Title: Constraints Map 
Reference: 1873/16 Listed Buildings TPO Individual TPO group 
Site: 1 0 Eastwood Place 

Stowmarket 
Listed Buildings 'v 0 TPO Individual 

0 TPO group 

MID SUFFOLK DISTRICT COUNCIL 
131 , High Street, Needham Market, IP6 8DL 
Telephone : 01449 724500 
email: customerservice@csduk.com 
www .uk 

SCALE 1:1250 
Reproduced by permission of 

Ordnance Survey on behalf of HMSO. 
© Crown copyright and database right 2016 

Ordnance Survey Licence number 100017810 

Date 

Page 187



NATIGNAL 
MAP CENTRE 

Supplied bv: 
Ucense number: 
Produced: 
Serial number: 

Hussev Knillhts lpsv.idl 
100031961 
1110412016 
1659691 

OS Plan B&W 

Scale: 1:1250 

HUSSEYjKNIGHT S 

Plot centre co-ordinates: 
t::Jc:r,.wiload file: 
Project name: 

Map do to 

604443.259201 
PS BTP.zio 
Eastwood Place 

Produced from the Ordnance Survey National Geographic Database and incorporating survey revisions available at this dale.© Crown copyright 2016. 
Reproduction in ....tlole or in part is prohibited without prior permission of the Ordnance Survey. Ordnance Survery and the OS symbol are trade marks. 
The representation of a road, track or path is no evidence of a right of way. The representation of features as line is no evidence of a property boundary. 

Page 188



)( ~ 
ft ' 

E I 
1 j) tl J1 

~ I I "1l -I~ j ~ 
.2: I AJ1 ~ 

·1 J. 
~~ 

E c:n-
U">C 

~ E L,~l ·rfi ;l r ~ "•' J • a. 
I' ' 1 -"0 

~ ::;:l. ~ t.l 
.D 

~"" H 
iii ... "0 .0::. 

t.l 
)( 41 

~~ I>~ I t--- --- ~j 
.:J I .""' 

I 14,. 
- il J ~s ~"J .,J I J.t )( .... 

1J_ "-· .t 

~' 
·~ , 

:{i ·~ 11 ~. :s 
I •' ·~. l j \_,., ( . I 

~ ~ . ~-' 1: 0\ .. { t 
'{ § 11 ~...,.. 

11 ~ ·'-== J --t.l I Ill ,:.... 

Ill 
01 ~u_..,. il I ~Q s 

~ 
..... ~.· g 

~~~ r. I u 
Ul~~ ~ 

~~ I -c 

I )( -o5i 
~0. 

~ I M 
01 Page 189



From: Nathan Pittam 
Sent: 27 April 2016 09:55 
To: Planning Admin 
Subject: 1873/16/FUL. EH -Land Contamination. 

M3: 177841 
1873/16/FUL. EH- Land Contamination. 
10 Eastward Place, STOWMARKET, Suffolk, IP141HB. 
Erection of two storey side extension. 

Many thanks for your request for comments in relation to the above application . I 
have reviewed the application and can confirm that I have no objection to the 
proposed development from the perspective of land. contamination . I would only 
request that we are contacted in the event of unexpected ground conditions being 
encountered during construction and that the developer is made aware that the 
responsibility for the safe development of the site lies with them. 

Regards 

Nathan 

Nathan Pittam BSc. (Hons.) PhD 
Senior Environmental Management Officer 
Babergh and Mid Suffolk District Councils- Working Together 
t: 01449 724715 or 01473 826637 
w: www.babergh.gov.uk www.midsuffolk.gov.uk 

Page 190



From: David Pizzey 
Sent: 04 May 2016 08:14 
To: Sarah Scott 
Cc: Planning Admin 
Subject: 1873/16 10 Eastward Place, Stowmarket. 

Hi Sarah 

There are no arboricultural implications relating to this proposal. 

David 

David Pizzey 
Arboricultural Officer 
Hadleigh office: 01473 826662 
Needham Market office: 01449 724555 
david. pizzey@baberg hmidsuffolk.gov. uk 
www.babergh.gov.uk and www.midsuffolk.gov.uk 
Babergh and Mid Suffolk District Councils - Working Together 

Page 191



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	5 CONFIRMATION OF MINUTES
	Representations from
	Planning Application Number

	8 PLANNING APPLICATIONS FOR DETERMINATION BY THE COMMITTEE
	3918-15_Redacted
	3918-15 Background Papers
	3918-15 Background Papers (2)
	3918-15 Background Papers (3)
	3918-15 Background Papers (4)
	1873-16
	1873-16 Background Papers




